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DECLARATIONS BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
(In accordance with article 4 par. 2c of L. 355@2D

It is hereby confirmed, to the best of our knowledthat the annual financial statements of the GompNIREUS
AQUACULTURE S.A” for the year, %t January to 31 December 2016, which have been compiled in acooslavith
International Financial Reporting Standards as stbpy the European Union, give a true and faiwvié the assets
and liabilities, the net equity and the currentriaesults of the issuer and its entities whick arcluded in the
consolidation and are taken as a whole and thedbofadirectors report reflects a true view of trevelopment, the
performance and the position of the issuer, incigdhe entities which are included in the consaiida taken as a
whole, including the description of the major risksl uncertainties which they encounter.

Koropi, 28 March 2017

The declarers

CHAIRMAN OF THE B.O.D CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  VICE PRESIDENT OF THE B.O.D
ARISTEIDIS ST. BELLES CHACHLAKIS G. ANTONIS NIKOLAOS EMM.CHAVIARAS
ID. No. AB 347823 ID. No. AE 083337 ID. No. AH 935562
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ANNUAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT
of the company

“NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A.”

On the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statesmen
For the year 2016 (fronfUanuary to 31 December 2016)

Dear Shareholders,

We submit to you, based on legal requirements &ed Gompany’s articles of association, the annuzdnftial
statements for the year 2016 (1/1/2016-31/12/20ff@)ally approved.

For your better notification, we present data axfdrimation with respect to the development of opena as well as

presenting the financial position of all entitiebigh are included in the consolidation, the majsks and uncertainties
which the Group of companies may potentially en¢euand finally the major transactions which haeermincurred

between the issuer and its, related to the Groanies.

|. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND EXPLANATION OF RESULTS

A. Sales

Group sales in 2016 amounted to € 197,8 mil., aspeved to € 185,4 million, during the prior yead20marking an
increase of 6,7%.

The analysis of sales variation by segment is pteskein the below table:

Amounts in mil. €

2016 2015 Variation %
Aquaculture (fish and juveniles) 177,3 167,2 10,1 4,0%
Fish feed 71 51 20  39,71%
Aviculture Stockbreeding 10,1 9,9 0,2 2,1%
Other 3,3 3,2 0,1 3,1%0
Total 197,8 185,4 12,4 6,790

The increase in the value of fish sales is attétiuib an increase in sales volume by 7,5% whichr owgered the
reduction in sales prices of 2016 as compared 1% 20d thus contributed to the increase in safesalue terms, by
5%. More specifically, sales fish increased by & jllion from € 160,9 million in 2015 to € 168,9ilion in 2016,

which is attributed to increased sales quantititsea bream as a result of increased demand arithlalty as

compared to the corresponding prior year of 2015e average sales prices of fresh fish decreasee B9 as
compared to the corresponding prior year due tostpeificant decrease of sea bream prices whicimstieom the
fierce competition of the Turkish aquaculture comipa.

Furthermore, the increase in sales juveniles b$%2or € 2,1 million as compared to the prior yeated due to
increased sales quantities, in addition to theemse in sales of the fish feed segment by 39,6% 2y1 million,

resulted in the positive variation of sales in 2@%6compared to the prior year 2015.
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B. Financial Results of the Group

Group results marked reduced profits in 2016 aspewed to the corresponding profits of 2015. Totakax results in
2016 amounted to profits of € 7,9 mil., versus saff € 68,1 million in 2015. The results aftexea corresponding to
the shareholders of the parent company amountpdofis of € 10,9 million in 2016 as compared toffis of € 59,2

million 2015.

The above variation is attributed to the fact fvér year's profits included non-recurring netrgaof a total amount of
€ 53 million mainly derived from: a) the measureineifinancial loans at fair value following thefirmncing of loans
in accordance with 1AS 39, paragraph @8 57, andOE 62, of € 18,1 million b) the increase in shareitzhpn
accordance with IFRIC 19 " Extinguishing finandiabilities with equity instruments " and IAS 39©39,1 million c)
from impairment losses on sale of subsidiarieslasskes from the revaluation of assets of an amofu@®4,2 million.

Furthermore, non-recurring amounts which were razagl during the current year amounted to € 1,4ianilpre-tax

(€ 2,0 million financial cost from the discountin§the gain on valuation of loan borrowings, gadmsthe valuation of
the refinancing of financial liabilities of € 0,7%illion, in addition to losses from the measuretmafinancial assets
at fair value)

Therefore, Group results before tax, like for lik@lowing the deduction of the above amounts pressta decrease of
€ 5,8 million. The results were mainly negativefieated by the reduction in the year-end fair vabuiees of biological
assets as compared to the corresponding priomgzard and positively affected by the reductioffimancial expenses
which resulted from the refinancing of loans.

The Group’s operating EBITDA (prior to the effedttbe valuation of biological assets at fair valashounted to €
27,3 million in 2016 as compared to € 22,3 millisn2015, presenting an increase of € 5 million. Tiereased
guantities of fish in addition to the improvememthe production cost were the main reasons ofllowe increase.

[I. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN THE CURRENT YEAR
A. Restructuring of the loans of SEAFARM IONIAN SA

As at 14.01.2016 and subsequent to the mergeeafdmpany with it subsidiary SEAFARM IONIAN SA (22.2015)
the refinancing of the loans of merged company S&ERM IONIAN of an amount of € 20,9 million was conded.

B. Increase in the Company’s Share Capital

Following the merger of SEAFARM IONIAN and approwlthe trading of new shares as at 24.03.2016821478
shares of a value of € 9.474.743 were issued. Eumire, during the year 2016, 884.404 shares, \wlae of €
265.321 from the conversion of bonds which the thotders held from the convertible bond loan, wasuéd. As a
result, the Company’s share capital as at 31.18.2@8thounted to € 87.449.210,40 divided into 291.3@F common
shares with voting rights, at a par value of € G286h.

Amounts in Euro

Balance 31.12.2015 77.709.146,20
Increase of share capital due to merger by absorpti 9.474.743,40
Conversion of 15.075 bonds (26.04.2016) 200.739,30
Conversion of 4.850 bonds (02.11.2016) 64.581,90

Total 31.12.2016 87.449.210,4p
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The company as at 31.12.2016 holds 24.061 treasluayes and the subsidiaries do not hold any shareke
Company.

C. Removal of the trading of NIREUS AQUACULTURE SAshares from the “under surveillance” category

The Stock Market's Steering Committee of the Ath&tgck Exchange during its session dated on 1luieeprll
2016, approved the removal of the shares' tradimg the “under Surveillance” category, based onféoe that there
are no further reasons for the placement of thepamy in the aforementioned category. The tradinthefcompany’s
shares in the Main Market of the Athens Stock Ergaais effective as of 12 February, 2016.

. DEVELOPMENT OF FINANCIAL RATIOS & ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Based on the Guidelines of the European Secudigkority which are included with the ESMA / 201&td / 1415el
document and in accordance with the announcemehectapital Market Committee, the Group definealssnative
performance measures, the following key indicators:

1. Operating EBITDA (prior to the effect of the mation of biological assets at fair value) increbbg 22,24% from €
22.340k in 2015 to € 27.309k in 2016. The operaBBITDA margin (prior to the effect of the valuatiof biological
assets at fair value) increased from 12,05% in 20115,81% in 2016.

Operating EBITDA is defined as EBITDA prior to eft of the valuation of biological assets at failue versus cost.

EBITDA is defined as earnings before taxes plumotus financial and investment results, plus tdigbreciation and
amortisation expense. Investment results includesgar (losses) on revaluation of fixed assetsnigtampairment of
goodwill and intangible assets and gains or (Igsskesubsidiaries held for sale.

A reconciliation with the corresponding figurestbé financial statements is presented in Note tB@finnual financial
statements “Calculation of EBITDA versus operatif TDA” and in Note 26: Biological Assets, table falysis of
the Impact of the valuation of biological assetfaatvalue versus cost”.

2. Net Debt to operating EBITDA (prior to the effex biological assets) decreased from 6,86 in 2015,67 in 2016
(Note 34: Loan Borrowings).

IV. MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1. CURRENT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTS IN GREECE

In the context of the economic environment whictioisned by the continuous imposition of varioustnieions on
capital movements, risks and uncertainty arisetdysessures imposed on the financial system ahticpiinances.

The management of the Group and the Company exdntiveeconditions raised by these developmentsenGreek
economy, and considering factors such as the Gsofgpéign export sales which approximate 80%, theenit and
expected customer base, the profitability and ¢asts of the Group and the Company, it assessedniaignificant
impact is expected to result on the business #&gtifimancial position and results of the Group émel Company.
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Furthermore, current developments as regards tlitedUKingdom’s (U.K’s) referendum to leave the Buean Union
is not anticipated to significantly affect the riésswf the Company and the Group, given that saléke U.K amount to
approximately 5% and 6% of total sales of the Camypend the Group respectively, while purchasesof materials
from the above country are insignificant as comgdoethe total Group purchases.

2. INVENTORIES-BIOLOGICAL-VALUATION
The business activity of the Group may be affecbhgdrisks associated with the sensitivity of inverés

The Group has significant reserves of live (liveck) given its target to continuously supply therkea with fish and
fry. Due to their increased sensitivity, and altgloiit has been ensured that the stocks are héfetimost hygienic and
safe conditions, and given the quality control parfed on an ongoing basis, there is always thenpaterisk of
impairment of inventories by the presence of aadisedue pathogenic bacteria.

Although inventories of the Group are secured agaanvariety of risks, potential damage to the igyalf the stocks
would adversely affect the business and finanaaitjpn of the Company and the Group.

Any price reduction of the Group's aquaculture pradts may adversely affect its business, financialsjtion and
operating results

Prices of fish products are affected by a set dffofs that contribute to their formation. Indicatiy, in previous years
there was a small increase in the production obassmand seabream in Greece, products that magiacaby be
oversupplied resulting in reduced sales pricestheamore, the increase in production by Turkishdpi®rs, which
products are sold in the same market at a lowee glue to government subsidies and lower productsits, may lead
to the sale of products at low prices. In additittrgir selling prices may be affected by climatimoge and extreme
weather conditions affecting their production.

Given that the production of seafood is plannedes#vmonths prior to placing the finished produstsa bream, sea
bass), as the process of development of the fishrder that they reach an average commercial sizestabout 18
months, and given that the long-term efforts madfoiecasting prices of fish are extremely difficthe Group faces
the possibility of a reduction in sales prices ifsrproducts. Therefore, a negative change in prioe fish products,
may materially and adversely affect the busineissntial position, results and prospects of the gamy and the
Group.

The Group is subject to the risk of reduction ofghotal value (impairment) of fish inventory as thaluation of
these depends on a number of factors such as thieie of biomass, the size distribution of fish arldeir fair
values

The pricing of fish products (in relation to fad@affecting prices for fish products see above 'tisky price reduction
of the Group's aquaculture products may adverséfgca its business, financial condition and opergtiresults),
affects the valuation of biological assets whick generally considered the most significant as$éedgoiaculture
companies. Under this context, because stocksofjicd! assets) are measured at fair value, a neduict their total
value (impairment) may occur thus impacting theme statement accordingly.

The valuation of biological assets is subject gmsicant assumptions, estimates and judgmentseroimg the volume
of biomass, the size distribution of fish and tHair values.

Estimates and judgments by management are reviatvedch reporting period so as to comply, wheresiples with
the general conditions and dynamics that prevathénmarket in which the Company operates. The alestimates and
judgments may be modified in the future dependingaay changes in the conditions and market dynaniibis
methodology results in that during periods of isegrowth / (reduction) rate of stocks and incrégsecrease) of the
selling price, significant gains / (losses) ocaunti the difference between the production costthedcorresponding
valuation price at sales market prices.
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3. CUSTOMERS-CUSTOMER CREDITS

The company’s receivables from its customers hawenamal exposure to the risk of bad debts whichk Hiowever is
reduced due to the large diversification.

The remaining amount is double insured, eitherughocustomer credit insurance contracts which e8@% of the
owed amount in the event of default in paymentoough the retention of the ownership of the seotstpct (juveniles)
until the date of repayment. The repayment datequtes the production completion date (from juvenitemarketable
size fish).

4. PERSONNEL

The Management of the Company and the Group is@stgghbby an experienced team of qualified persomhéth has
complete knowledge in their area of expertise aitti vespect to market conditions, thus contributiaghe smooth
functioning and development of the Company.

The relations between Management and personnaltdrest and no working problems are encounterech Aesult of
these relations, the working litigation concernimgrking issues is minimal amongst the number of legredl persons.

5. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group operates on a global basis. The Grou®=ire to foreign exchange risks is minimal givkat the
transactions at their majority are realized in Edrbis type of risk mainly arises from the commaldransactions in
foreign currency incurred under normal businesssaations.

V. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

I. Revocation of the resolution on the share capitaéduction of the subsidiary company KEGO AGRI SA

In the context of the Group’s loan restructuringl @s mentioned in the concise Memorandum of Unaledstg dated
24.3.3015 between the parent company and the beamdsn accordance with the resolutions of the Extieary
General Assembly of the shareholders and the amemdnof the articles of association as have beeorded in the
General Electronic Commercial Registry on 17.05&2Qke share capital of the subsidiary company KE&&ERI S.A
was approved to be decreased by an amount of 8.92&1 The decrease has been made with a cashptderof
shares and through a reduction in the par valughafes by an amount of € 0,64 each, with an ulémat-off of the
liability towards the parent company.

Following the above, a revocation of the sharetahpeduction and restoration of the respectivielarbf the Articles of
Association was resolved according to the resaistiof the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of KEGGRI, dated
15.2.2017.

II. Proposed increase of the Share Capital of the Gean subsidiary NIREUS GMBH

The Board of Directors unanimously resolved to apprthe proposal on the issue of the capitalizatiaihe receivable
of NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA and an increase in its@stment in its subsidiary company NIREUS GMBH, wahic
subsidiary will proceed with an increase in itsreheapital of an amount of € 3.900.000 and a su#csettiement of
its liabilities towards its parent company.
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VI. PROSPECTS FOR 2017

The continuously increasing world population ané ttecreasing fish population of wild catches iseexpd to
significantly increase the demand for aquacultutapcts. As a result, demand for the Group's prisdiscexpected to
increase proportionally in the forthcoming decaddsreover, demand for other product categoriesefjiles, feed,
aviculture and stockbreeding equipment) continadsetintense.

Within this environment, the Group has designettategy in order that it play a significant roletirese developments
as the leading power in the Mediterranean aquaeuihdustry.

This strategy aims at strengthening the commurmingtiolicy aimed at building a strong corporate brateveloping
new commercial networks, and developing added vdWaP) products. Furthermore, it targets at inciegs
profitability through improving significant KPI'srniaddition to reducing production costs. Additidpathe strategy
foresees the reorganization of information systantsthe efficient implementation of managementesyst

The Group heavily invests in research and developnae activity that focuses on reducing the gropéhiod of fish,
reducing the FCR, increasing survival indicatorg] developing value added products. In additioa,@noup actively
participates in defining parameters for the actjoisiof ASC certificates.

All research and development activities focus @nehhancing and ensuring sustainable development.

VII. BRANCHES

The company maintains 57 branches in Greece anthdtady which comprises its largest branch.

VIII. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANYA ND ITS RELATED
PARTIES

The major transactions between the Company anelased parties in accordance with 1AS 24, relatérdnsactions
with its subsidiaries (related entities based diclar42S of L.2190/20) which are shown in the ¢albélow:

1. Transactions and Compensation of Related parties

Transactions and compensation to Directors and key management GROUP COMPANY

Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Salaries, employment benefits and compensation to Directors 1.263.946 1.377.299 1.116.763 1.208.329

Salaries and other employment benefits to key management 717.651 819.245 431.719 475.124
1.981.597 2.196.544 1.548.482 1.683.453

10
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2016

COMPANY BEARING THE NIREUS PREDOMAR| PROTEUS  |MIRAMAR PROJECTS NIREUS KEGO AGRI AL
RECEIVABLE AQUACULTURE SA S.L. EQUIPMENT S.A COLTD - UK INTERNATIONAL LTD SA
NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA 4.067.260 345.961 - 72.948 756.959 5.243.127
PREDOMAR S.L. 39.600 - - - - 39.600
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A 11.320 - - - 11.320
MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD - UK 14 - 14 - 28
5.294.075
TOTAL 39.614 | 4.078.580 345.975 - 72.948 756.959 -
SELLING COMPANY
PURCHASING COMPANY NIREUS AQUACUL TURE PROTEUS SA PREDOMAR KEGO AGRI S.A TOTAL
:"ijh/ed sen oth :"ijh/ed Seni Finished Finished Fixed ginijzle‘j servi Fixed oth
Pr(ojguzts enees ther Pr(ojguzts enices Goods/ Products | Goods/ Products Assets F'rg(c)iucts ervices Assets ther
NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA
Administrative expenses 48.943 141.502 27.753 76.696 141.502 -
Fixed Assets 2.370.990 - - 1.582 2.370.990 1.582
Finished Goods/ Products - 39.600 2.247.936 2.287.536 = -
PREDOMAR S.L.
Administrative expenses - 128.124 - 128.124 -
Finished Goods/ Products 2.523.106 - 2.523.106 - -
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A
Administrative expenses 99.661 15.600 = 99.661 - 15.600
KEGO AGRI S.A
Administrative expenses - 141.122 24.075 - 141.122 - 24.075
Finished Goods/ Products 764.148 764.148 - - -
TOTAL
Administrative expenses - 368.907 39.675 48.943 141.502 - 27.753 76.696 510.409 - 39.675
Fixed Assets = = = 2.370.990 = = = 1.582 2.370.990 = 1.582 =
Finished Goods/ Products 3.287.254 39.600 2.247.936 5.574.790 = =

The Company’s trading transactions with relatedigsuduring the year 2016, were conducted undenabmarket conditions.
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NON-FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE B.O.D REPORT

(the present is prepared in accordance with astitBeand 9a Directive 2013/BA as included in article 1 of the
directive 2014/99U and comprises a part of the Annual Report oBbard of Directors)

1. CONCISE DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S PROFILE
1.1 PROFILE

NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A is the parent company oludlyf vertically integrated Group, with aquacultureing its

main core of activities.

The parent company was established in 1988 in Chioghich region the first aquaculture unit inityaoperated. In its
28 years of operation, and through continuous dgweént, mergers and acquisitions, NIREUS conquéredeading

position in the production and sale of Mediterranésh species worldwide, simultaneously being agnttre 10 largest
aquaculture companies in Europe.

According to international studies and surveys, ¢bmpany is further considered one of the key pkayeorldwide
with respect to the aquaculture fish market.

The company's shares are listed on the Main Mavkéhe Athens Stock Exchange since 1995, while 069the
trading of bonds from the convertible bond loamégsin 2007, commenced.

Located in the municipality of Koropi Attica, thelREUS Group maintains production facilities in Gzeeand in
Spain. It sells its products to more than 35 coestworldwide and is a leader in the market witkpezt to all of its
products: fish, juveniles and fish feed.

Our customers include large Super Market chaingledalers and processors in Europe and Americéhémnore, the
customers of NIREUS include aquaculture companidsch are served for the purpose of meeting allrajpenal
requirements through the purchase of fish feedrjilgs of excellent quality, as well as high qyadiuipment.

The NIREUS Group is fully and vertically integratedthe production and sale of aquaculture produeisering the
entire value chain of fish feed production broodktojuveniles, sea bream, sea bass, meagre, rag/pagre,
processed products and aquaculture equipment ifolfosving key operating segments: i. Aquacultugetions, ii.
Fish feed operations, iii. Aviculture-stockbreedimgerations and iv. Other Segments which compriggaduction of
hatcheries, pre-fattening and fattening units, packinits, processing units, fish feed units, agltace equipment
production unit and one (1) genetic material praiduicunit for pig breeding. Furthermore, NIREUS hase (1)
research and development units.

Information concerning the Group's production féie# in NIREUS and other Group companies in additio the
capacity of these facilities by business operatfoliews:

I. Aguaculture Activities: The Company has in aetioperation, a sufficient number of aquaculturdsuto serve its
markets in accordance with its long-term stratédgre specifically, NIREUS and its Group consolidhtsmpanies
currently have an annual production capacity ofr @&000 tonnes of fish and 167 million pieceswfgniles for the
Mediterranean fish species in their owned facsiii@ Greece and in Spain, which include in Gre26efattening units,
4 hatcheries, 2 pre-fattening units, 6 packingsyrit processing unit, 2 logistics centers and iair8al pre-growing
unit.
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It should be noted that in addition to the abowe:via one (1) additional fish hatchery unit opesatvhich undertakes
research for genetic selection. In addition, theuprmanages, through collaborations, eleven (1ditiadal fattening
units in Greece and six (6) packing units in Gresoe in Spain, in addition to (1) logistics ceriteGreece and one (1)
in Italy.

The juveniles production units, fish fattening amécking units in Greece, are concentrated in Astako
Aitoloakarnanias, Igoumenitsa, Evia, Chios andattesser extent, in Phokida and Argolida. The m@siog unit is
located in Koropi, in order to better serve thedseef Greek customers. The logistics centers azatéal in Patras,
Koropi, Astakos and in Milan, Italy.

The geographical dispersion of the units is a egiatchoice of the Group in order to secure thedpction from
various risk factors, such as environmental impédisate, pollution, etc.).

Up until early 2015, the Group had in Turkey twttdaing units, 1 hatchery, one pre-fattening unil ane packing
unit, which were sold following management's deeido accumulate all production capacity in Gresue Spain.

Il. Feed Fish Activities: The company has two prefarry fish feed plants with a total annual capaoit 90.000 tons.
One fish feed unit is located in the industrialeaod Patra in a privately owned area of 22.000 szjnseters, where
buildings have been raised of a total surface afegproximately 6.942 sq.m. The second fish feitlia located in
the industrial area Nea Artaki, Evia on a privatelyned property of a total of 19.618 sq.m. wheridings have been
built of a total area of approximately 9.009 sq.@ffices are included in the units of the two famsr

[ll. Aviculture StockbreedingActivities: The Group, and specifically the KEGO AGRA, has a modern genetic
material production unit for pig production capgaf 140 sows, which is legally established andrages in the area
"Soros” in the Local Community of Kallithea Muni@pUnit of Tanagra of Viotia. The unit includes &y gheriod unit,
pig farrowing, weaning, growth, selected animadgtehning and boars building, office buildings andidgical waste
unit.

As for the production of vitamin premixes and malesupplements, this takes place, as mentionedeatigvNIREUS,
but for account of KEGO AGRI SA., in the privatadyvned unit of the first, which is located in thellistrial Area Nea
Artaki, Evia. The annual production capacity isC@@ons of nutritional supplements for livestock.

2. SOCIETY

2.1 MAJOR SOCIAL RISKS, WHICH ARE ASSOCIATED WITH T HE COMPANY’S
ACTIVITIES

CONSUMER HEALTH AND SAFETY

Consumers demand the food they purchase and consule safe and of a high quality. Despite the thet the
institutional and regulatory framework plays an artant role in ensuring food safety and qualitye thitimate
responsibility for ensuring the implementation @peopriate procedures and controls lies with thedferoducing
company, which supervises and monitors the prodaraduced from raw materials to the final end pridu

The food production company’s success which is oregsin terms of profitability, is fully dependenpon the
satisfaction of its customers. Therefore, it igha Group’s interest that it develops monitoringitcols that ensure a
continuously safe and high quality product. Mean&ytthe issue also significantly impacts all Gratggkeholders.

FISH HEALTH AND WELFARE

Fish health and welfare is vital for any aquac@twompany, both from an ethical as well as fromnarial
perspective. The management of the issue has mapaicts on the first two stages of the value chaig, in relation to
fish feed and its cultivation, as well as in theafi stage, being the customer. More specificallg, iealth and welfare
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of fish significantly contributes to a high survivate, while it is also a key factor for the tmmant of viruses or
disease. A potential disease which may emerge fisha population and lack of timely treatment, thgbubest
management practices, can lead to significant igwonsequences, to the degradation of the efigiiegpopulation’s
survival, and can thus reducing the quality of pheduced product. Moreover, it also affects, amotingrs, important
parameters in relation to the value chain such raslytt price, consumers’ perception of food quaéityd hence
consumers’ decision to purchase. The results ofepting the health and welfare of fish also impastsployees,
shareholders, investors and the academic commasityell as a wider group including social instdang and NGOs.
Actions required to improve this target are to ksuaned throughout the entire production chain.dgffeness also
depends upon close working relationships with depplas well as through the entire research andleacia

community, in view of developing innovative techogies, applications and products to ensure anddmgte fish

health and welfare.

SUSTAINABLE FISH FEED & RAW MATERIALS

SUSTAINABLE FISH FEED

By the term "sustainable fish feed" we refer tdfised composed of raw materials which are naturalynthetic by-
products and side products of vegetable or animginoproducts, are produced under agriculturakdiock and fishing
best practices of sustainable agriculture and daffiect human interest for nutritional use.

Sustainable fish feed is a major topic, given thettainability of aquaculture is to a large extmged on raw materials
used for the production of fish feed (fishmeal disth oil). Apart from the reduction in supply whidh the most
significant risk, several objections and criticiseraerge, such as whether the use of wild catchdcpotentially be a
ready-to-eat food instead of being used as a raterrahfor the production of intermediate suppamks$ in the food
chain, comprising a major issue with significanpants for shareholders, customers and NGO'’s.

Furthermore, an important factor to be emphasindtich further impacts the sustainable developméigoaculture,
is the performance indicator of farmed aquaculfigte as a proportion of fish meal and fish oil comption as a food
ingredient, in addition to wild catch used for fm@duction of fishmeal and fish oil. The mathematimrmula of this
performance indicator is expressed by the FIF® f@&ish in - Fish out).

RAW MATERIALS

For the purpose of fish feed production in our plents, specific raw materials standards are ugkith have been set
by the Nutritional and Quality Control departmehttee Nireus Group. The main raw materials usefisimfeed for the
farming of marine species are fish meal and fistwah special nutritional value comprising the mesary ingredients
of fish feed. As regards the production of thesecHjr raw materials, fish meal and fish oils, widtches are used
which are not directly intended for human consuomtthey have a high-volume production and usualg short life
cycle. They are caught in certain areas of thedydor most of which, proper fisheries policy appbed. Furthermore,
the diet of our fish which includes fish feed megtivhich meet certain standards is taken serianstyconsideration
by our customers (super market chains, restaurantsconsumers), some of which also set this ag@quisite for
initially cooperating with our Group. Therefore, proper management of this significant issue negbtiaffects all
stages of fish feed, fish cultivation and our vathain customers, while significant impacting signsland NGO's.

CREATING VALUE IN LOCAL COMMUNITIES

Our Group acknowledges that highly rated compaaiegudged not only by their financial results grthe quality of
their products and services which they provide, dnet also judged in terms of their contributiorthe social groups
with which they interact, given that there is &r&f losing their “social license to operate”, ifegm the confidence
provided by the local communities to continue tlgierations.

14
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Creating value in local communities, comprises ana@ent chapter in the formation the CSR and ttadegjy of the

NIREUS Group and its employees. Managing the isbrextly impacts local communities of the regionsaihich we

operate. Furthermore, influences are acknowledgexxist at various stages of our Group’s valuerghsich as in the
production of fish feed, cultivation and processing

2.2 COMPANY POLICIES (due diligence procedures inalsive)

CONSUMER HEALTH AND SAFETY

A structure of vertically integrated production pesses, has allowed us to monitor controls appédaball production
stages, from the broodstock up to the final endlpeg both with respect to raw materials as wellaasl up to, the
intermediate and final end product. The Quality a@nDepartment, prepares annual budgets for thpgse of
monitoring raw materials, intermediate, semi-figidhand finished products. The Group has establiginedoperates
three laboratories for the purpose of product @dnone of which is used to monitor fresh harvedtsid and two for
monitoring feed. Through this manner regular inspecof produced products is ensured. Furthermihve Group has
established and maintains a long-term relationstith specialized monitoring laboratories for tegtia number of
parameters. Further specialized analyses for famal products are regularly performed by the follayvbodies:
University of Athens, University of Patras and Demims.

The Group operates under a complete traceabil#yesy, in accordance with predefined health andisatandards,
meeting the required standards and the needs afustomers worldwide. It ensures the quality ofduais provided,
abiding by a number of good practices, including:

» The non-use of genetically modified raw materials

» The continuous monitoring of the farming processes

» Continuous and strict quality controls for frygHifeed, finished products
» Monitoring the environment through tests and messents

» A Full traceability system.

Traceability is a method applied to fish farming@acling to which the Group records detailed infaliorg at all stages
of the product production process, such as froriith, to its growing process inside the seatddliet, its packaging
and its delivery to its final point of sale destina. In this manner, we are in a position to trdmefish’s entire history
until the point it reaches your table, thus beibhpdo guarantee a safe and highly nutritious fpamtiuct.

Group objectives as regards Quality and Food Safdtich are reviewed annually and are redefinedming to the
results of the Annual Review of the Quality ContByistem and Occupational Health and Food Safety:

» Environmentally, economically and socially susadile production of fish products.

» Compliance with legal regulatory requirements awning products’ safety and hygiene.

» Providing high quality products and services by @roup to its customers.

» Use of the most technologically advanced methodgifoduction and product distribution, under tbatmuous
target of improving the quality and safety of prodd fish and fish feed.

» Timely delivery of products, according to mutuadlgcepted contract terms.

» Minimizing non-conformities to nil incidences.

» Ensuring conditions that guarantee occupationalthh@nd safety.

» The focus of all employees in a continuous effoitmprove their quality of work.

» Suppliers’ compliance with quality and technidalnglards and to specific product delivery schedségdy the
Group.

» Production of feed that does not transfer natefsmical, biological hazards to farmed animalsrided for human
consumption.

» The supply and use raw material fish feed derfvech sustainable production processes, placingwgwhasis on feed

generated from the sea environment. Gradual restuitithe use of raw materials used for human copsion.
15
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» The production of non-genetically modified produand the use of non-genetically
modified organisms in food.

FISH HEALTH AND WELFARE

One of the Group’s main objectives and part obitsrall effort is to ensure viable sustainable dgwaent by applying
best practices for the fish health and welfarehim fish population. The overall control and resjiaility of ensuring
good health and welfare conditions of fish belotugthe Department of Fish Pathology.

The use of technology, continuous staff trainingiagment of its workforce capacity with speciatizecientists / fish
pathologists, modernization of equipment both srbiasic Group laboratory units, as well as in wagiproduction sites,
formation of special groups designed to improvevisat conditions, and maintain fish health at highels, have all in
total proven as being essential in achieving tleeifie objective.

Generally, this specific objective is generally @ex and an improvement in the prevailing situati®rsignificantly

affected by both external factors, environmentad aon-environmental in nature, which can be moaioby the

Group itself. Further information in relation tcetissue will be presented in the forthcoming Susfale Development
Report for financial year 2016.

Responsibilities: The Group has formed special te@afscientists specialized in the prevention am@tment of
various diseases in acknowledgement of these faetudt their impact on the health and welfare d&f. fia conjunction
with the above, work groups have been developedngirat reducing the presence of these such fadtothe
production environment which are responsible foreasely affecting negatively impacting the conditiaf the fish.

Specific actionsResearch efforts made in fighting various dise@sawollaboration with leading research institutions
and through the use of external assistance anddtrg tests conducted in collaborating researchiters and
universities such as the University of Sterlingefiwital importance.

Policies:The Group's plans also include the design of irtiegh and implemented policies and actions thatitwté to
good fish health and welfare such as:

» Production and development conditions in locatimaefully selected according to physicochemicab an
environmental measurements in isolated coastsstriting currents

» Cages with a small number of fish- cages with fislv stock densities so that fish can freely swimdptimum health
and firm flesh (2% fish, 98% water)

» Growth which is continuously monitored

» A balanced diet with high-quality raw materials

» Strict avoidance of all chemical substances, fitihg the use of genetically modified raw matesial

» Specific protocols for managing and executing potide functions adapted to the conditions of e@gfion

» Applying written documentation on best labor pi@es and behavior to ensure that farmed specieseated with
caution and respect

» Continuous measurements of various physicochemaameters of the production sea area

» Development and use of new technologies in allipction processes that ensures optimal fish surviva

» Applied vaccination plan tailored to the diversitiand peculiarities of each species producedsiagand exploiting
the mechanisms of each species in view of fighting possible infection

In the context of prevention planning and under lttehyopathology Department’s supervision, innaxatand new
vaccines aimed at controlling and limiting incidea®f various bacterial and viral diseases, weligad.

The target remains at high levels for the followiygars having designed an analytical plan of astionorder that
survival be improved by 4 units.
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SUSTAINABLE FISH FEED AND RAW MATERIALS
SUSTAINABLE FISH FEED

Sustainable TargetA sustainable target is that each kilo of wildotayields an equal or greater amount of farmed fish
namely FIFQ1.

Program on Sustainable Fish Feed Use : In ordach@ve the above future targets, further to theifitant results
already achieved up until today, the Group hasgiesi and developed a program on sustainable Ushdéed.

The sustainable fish feed project’s objective isattbpt new basic fish feed, and to adapt to aniasakts -bio
population-, and to guide its human resourcessa#e, aiming at replacing feed ingredients cuyreided by the
Group for Mediterranean fish farming with new figled. This will be achieved through the selectibalternative new
ingredients, either already existing, or ingredieakpected to be available in the near future, ounitithese being
competitive for the needs of human consumptionutaneously though meeting the nutritional requieats of fish.
Adapting to the new fish feed will result in addital targets aimed at ensuring the Group's highedygtivity, and
improving the individual productive indicators (K&l For this reason, a number of individual santptds of a small
or larger scale are needed and have been designeedtice risk and to adapt to the specific requims of
Mediterranean aquaculture.

The quality of end products -aquaculture fish- wélinain at high levels as is today, simultaneoirdtyrming both end
consumers, as well as all intermediate links intakie chain, with respect to the alternative ulsustainable raw
materials in the production of fish feed.

The specific program will be one of the most siigaifit Group projects aimed at the reduction of potidn costs in
the following 4 years. The program is monitoredthg Group’s specialized executive team, which & utrition
Group.

As a result of these ongoing activities, the Grbap been certified with a number of recognisedfuations such as
"Certification for Responsible Aquaculture”, “GLORAG.A.P” and "ACS."

Qualitative and Environmental Targets of Sustaiedfish Feed: Improvement in the characteristictheffinal end
product such as a reduction in flesh fat (<9%), amthe fish belly and the coverage of the demandsutritional
requirements for ensuring the daily dose of 250nRAE DHA from the consumption of 2-3 servings pezek
Furthermore additional targets have been set ss@naronmental targets for 2019: Fish In / Fisht ©4,5. Further
information in relation to the issue will be prethin the forthcoming Sustainable Development Refoo financial
year 2016.

RAW MATERIALS

Raw materials procurement policy: Our supply of naaterials is made in collaboration with the Grauppproved
suppliers. Furthermore, when it comes to screeaingw supplier, raw material specifications ard sehe potential
supplier, from which products are to be purchasedccordance with our Quality Control departmespecifications.
The supplier then returns back to us the resulthefrequested analysis as well as samples ofatiematerial to be
purchased, which is then tested in our own laboyatorough basic analyses. Once the specific raterzh has been
approved for acceptance, all remaining certificateguired by the Quality Management System (ISO,CAR,

required supporting documents for each consignnetat) are then requested. Certificates are exathane if these
meet our requirements, the supplier is recordedthenlist of approved suppliers and, if necessapprapriate
inspections of the supplier’'s premises are perfdrimea person from our Quality control department.

Concerning procurement procedures and our broadi@boration with raw materials suppliers, there procedures in
place and corresponding forms in our Group’s guadiystem (ISO). The responsible raw material prexent
practices of our Group will be presented in thehlfooming Sustainable Development Report for finalngéar 2016.
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Targets and Objectives: One of the environmentatblems currently being faced around the globedsotrerfishing of
oceans, a space of which is also used for the ptmfuof fishmeal and fish oil. Thus, the reduntiaf the proportion
of fishmeal and fish oil derived from wild fish antsed for fish feed is among our Group’s objectiv@st Group
correspondingly seeks to increase the proportiomaef materials originating from land-based cultuegsl from
products not intended for human consumption. Anotitigective is to increase the use of fishmeal f@stdoil certified
by IFFO RS (Global Standard for the Responsiblep8upf Fish meal and Fish oil).

CREATING VALUE IN LOCAL COMMUNITIES
The Group creates value for local societies:

» product donations and other grants

» employment workers from the local communities ieay large percentage of total Group employees
» selecting suppliers from the local communities

» carrying out educational activities in our faddg

» stable and frequent contact with them.

Objectives

» Minimize complaints.

» More systematic cleaning of the sea bed, porsstsdan operational regions.

» Gradual segregation and concentration (within &gjeof fattening units, in larger demarcated ke State parks so
as to reduce the fragmentation of our units, a$ agehrbitrary nuisance which may be created ierprises near our
activities.

2.3RESULTS OF THE SAID POLICIES AND NON-FINANCIAL BASI C PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

CONSUMER HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is certified according to the followingarnational recognized standards for Quality, Heahd Safety of
products, Environmental Management and Best Pecti8O 9001: 2008, ISO 22000: 2005, BRC, ISO 14Q014
GLOBALG.A.P. Proper implementation is verified bgspections from third parties, including certifibddies,
responsible state authorities, the EU and othentcis to which the Group exports. Examples inclieO: Food and
Veterinary Office EU, FDA: Food and Drug Adminidtom USA, ROSSELKHOZNADZOR: Russian Veterinary
Office. Furthermore, the Group is oftentimes subjewisits and inspections from its customers.

Inspections of farmed fish are both continuous ameherous. Apart from the same fish itself, tesesaso performed
with respect to farming waters, fish feed and veslisurface areas with which they come into contadependent
bodies and universities monitor procedures, allvbfch are certified. All of the above guaranteehhiguality and
provide reassurance to the final consumer., Maaa 800 chemical analyses and 5,000 microbiologinalyses of raw
materials, products, fresh and salt water and sesfaare annually performed. The majority of prosluetll also

undergo secondary long-term quality audits. 34 88&ages were tested inspected in 2016. The nuofls@mplaints
and grievances we receive from customers correspmn@,16 %o (2016).
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INCIDENCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE 2016 2015
Cases of non-compliance with regulations subjefints 0 0
Case.s of non-compliance with regulations subjeputtishable 0 0
warning

Cases of non- compliance with voluntary codes ( 1
Total number of incidences which impact health safity 0 1

The percentage of total products produced in dedtidireas amounts to 54% (2016).

FISH HEALTH AND WELFARE

Despite the fact that our industry is facing widballenges in relation to fish health and welfdng,evaluating and
comparing our Group against similar companies & Mediterranean aquaculture sector as well as tighbroader
industry of intensive aquaculture levels worldwid#,measures, rules and protocols applied withan Group as well
as final performance results, confirm the GroupghHevel of targets.

Monitoring mechanismsThe NIREUS Group is certified in accordance wité tipdated 4.0 edition of the GLOBAL
G.A.P. standard for aquaculture, and in 2016 it eeatified with the updated 5.0 edition of the star.

Results As a result of all these successive actions, kdyiemements in 2016 include the achievement in the
improvement of the, already high, survival ratealnyadditional 3%.

During 2016, efforts and sample tests were cawigdwith the use of electricity anaesthesia atsidden death stage
of wild catch. The plan for introducing new vaasnand technics which was designed during the quewears has
reached the levels of materialisation and the festlts are evidenced from the improvement inigsalvThe testing of
new such procedures and vaccines is a long-terna avell-designed project, the performance of wiécimonitored by
a specialised team of ichthiopathologists. Theltesi the actions will continue and be recordethia following years.
The total production of species are farmed in cageselected sea areas with specific stocking tlesgier cage and
per farmed species, in order to ensure both thé&aveehnd growth of fish.

FISHFEED AND RAW MATERIALS

SUSTAINABLE FISHFEED

NIREUS Group has, for several years, focused o glgnificant issue, which also comprises a kegetarThrough
systematic research undertaken by both the Nutrig@am that has been formed and which consistxméreenced
professionals with technical know-how in the braaéleld of aquaculture, and through cooperationhwiarious
research institutions and universities, has ackli¢venaintain:

» reduction in the use of fishmeal from 30%, being percentage contributed in the middle of the iptesvdecade, to
18%, presenting a decrease of 40%, with a correpgrreduction in fish oil used from 7.5% to 4%egenting a
decrease in excess of 46%. These achievementsob&@med following numerous time-consuming experitaeand

small sample uses in specific fish population’snidss, in addition to several improvements in thsulte of

experiments and the replacement of specific raneri@s used for fish feed with alternative raw mials mainly of

plant origin.
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» improvement in the FIFO ratio at the lowest vdlogts characterizing farming of Mediterranean spscDuring the
past years the FIFO ratio of the wider Mediterranaquaculture industry is currently at 1.85% wtlile corresponding
ratio of the NIREUS Group stands at 1,77%. It igdent that the indicator still deviates from outimbte target,
however, a detailed business plan, has been designgiling specific steps and according to wtdatkeclining trend
in the index is marked, aiming at it reaching simstile values by early next decade. The perioduochsa drastic
change is small compared to the overall averageéuatmn cycle of Mediterranean fish species whippraximates 16
to 18 months depending upon certain conditionspamemeters.

FIFO Ratio Kgr of Fresh wild catch used to produce one kil&eh
Bream or Sea Bass

2015 Fish In / Fish Out = 1,76

2016 Fish In / Fish Out = 1,76

RAW MATERIALS
During the screening procedures of suppliers, they provided with a questionnaire to be completed which
includes questions concerning environmental isagesell as an assessment of their own suppliers.

The Group’s Quality control and Procurement Departts monitor global alerts for qualitative issuésaov materials,
in order that if a supplier of ours is reportedhese, that he be temporarily removed from theofistesired suppliers
and depending upon the outcome of the alert, thditeheither re-activated or not.

PERFORMANCE 2016 2015
INDICATORS

Percentage of fishmeal derived
from fisheries certified as IFFO RS
(Responsible Sourcing)

100% 84,8%

3

Percentage of fishmeal derived fro
the processing of fishery products 12% 28,94%
for food production.

Percentage of expenditure (from a GREECE GREECE 73%

annual turnover 73%

of purchases) to local suppliers, 73%
SPAIN SPAIN 73%

in major locations of our operationg

CREATING VALUE IN LOCAL COMMUNITIES

Evaluating our management approach is mainly pewar through the General Department of Corporate Laagal
Affairs as well through our frequent engagementwiitose participating in our local communities. Bl@pecifically,
this is achieved through sponsorships, voluntargy aducational activities which will be included dur Group’s
Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
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PRODUCT FINANCIAL
REGION KILOS BENEFICIARY INSTITUTION DONATION DONATION
(KILOS) G)
2016
ATHENS 4.800 CHARITABLE ASSOCIATIONS - 7876 2,200
CULTURAL INSTITUTIONS
CHIOS 3441 NURSING HOMES - ORPHANAGES - 700
HOSPITALS
EVIA 668 MUNICIPALITIES — SOCIAL 550 1,200
GROCERY - PORT AND FIRE
DEPARTMENT SERVICES
PATRA 680 SPORTS ASSOCIATIONS 6.850
ASTAKOS 320 ACADEMIC INSTITUTIONS- 340 2,090
SCHOOLS-UNIVERSITIES
NAUPAKTOS 144 CHURCHES 72 -
NAUPLIO 90
IGOYMENITSA 30
LEUKADA 15
Total (10.188 KGR OF A TOTAL VALUE OF EURO 32.6p1 10.188 12.340

DONATIONS OF 10.188 KGS OF FISH HAD A COST OF 6@260 AND OTHER ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL AID

AMOUNTED TO € 12.340 TO O

RGANIZATIONS AS ANALYERBOVE

3. EMPLOYMENT AND RESPECT OF HUMAN RIGHTS

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES IN THE NIREUS GROUP
2016 2015

TYPE MALES FEMALES MALES FEMALES
Indefinite term 814 257 815 251
Fixed-term 12 18 14 15
Trainees 4 - -
Total 830 275 829 266
Full-time 823 252 805 228
Part-time 7 23 10 23
Total 830 275 815 251
Attiki 80 84 77 80
Aitoloakarnania 180 48 199 47
Argolida 28 25 4
Achaia 51 9 50 10
Evia 217 56 197 53
Thesprotia 65 16 64 14
Lefkada 24 1 24 0
Fokida 78 23 75 20
Chios 107 34 104 32
CARBONERAS 14 6
Total 830 275 829 266
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3.1 MAJOR RISKS IN RELATION TO EMPLOYMENT AND HUMAN  RIGHTS, WHIICH
ARE ASSOCIATED WITH THE COMPANY'S ACTIVITIES

As part of our approach to corporate responsibilitg recognize and systematically prioritize theués in relation to
labor and human rights connected to our activitied that may cause adverse effects to our staketsoldnd to the
overall Sustainable Development on a national babie links of the effects of our activities on usable
Development was made possible through the UN Giadsainable Development.

We methodically approach the important issues edlad labor and human rights that we have idedtifieorder to
limit the negative effects that may arise from thmproper management of the issue, and to increaseamarginal
benefit for our stakeholders through proper managenConsidering the above, we intensively mortiter effects of
our activities in relation to the following matters

e Occupational Health and Safety

e Training of employees

e Freedom of association

¢ Elimination of child and forced labor, and

e Avoidance of discrimination in the workplace

The manner by which risks are managed is presemti following sections.
3.2 COMPANY POLICIES

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group’s basic principle and commitment is tesgrve the overall health and physical integrititopersonnel
working on its sites and this is achieved by tHefang:

e Internal labor regulations / corporate governance
e Physicians in the workplace
e Employee Training and Development

EMPLOYEE TRAINING

Continuous training and education is the basi@apiif development of our human capital. Our Groap & widespread
perception that our vision for continuous advanaenie business and employee performance is dirdictked to the
continuous enhancement of our competencies and.gkibntinuous, broad and targeted training ofwarkforce has
been noted to be very crucial for both the compamy employees themselves. During the design antkimgmtation

of training programs, areas requiring improvemeastidentified and needs are assessed. Therea#eifispbjectives
are set as well as educational material requirednfeeting these targetbhe relative training seminars held in 2016 are
described in the following section:

HUMAN RIGHTS

The Group is committed to supporting the UniverlBatlaration of Human Rights of the UN, complyingttwall
relevant legislation (of Greece and of the coustiie which it operates). Furthermore, the Group'erfiy is the
satisfaction of its workforce (potential for furtheéevelopment, worthy benefits, organized semirfarsfurther
training). NIREUS seeks to ensure that its partaegsnot involved in any form of human rights viaas.
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The NIREUS Group secures employees’ freedom ofcéesson and for this reason there are two emplaygens in
the Group with which management engages in openfi@aient communication. We adhere to legislatidricty
prohibits any form of forced or compulsory employre

According to the principles governing the Groupd am compliance with the UN Global Compact, our Graloes not
support or encourage child labor. This is refeteth a large number of customer contracts. Ourpaomg recognizes
that its greatest asset is its people, and is finerattentive in promoting professional advancenaam development
through training and other activities. It furthemmppromotes through various corporate benefitsyoek balance
between professional and personal life. The comjmtherefore in full compliance with the Greek istgtion.

3.3 RESULTS OF THE POLICIES AND THE NON-FINANCIAL B ASIC PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Safety TechniciansSince November 2015 up until September 2016, adliss were certified by experts in all our
Group facilities.

Occupational risk assessment: The assessment opatienal risk comprises a complex and dynamic ggeavhich
through the working environment analysis, conteisuto the formation of a healthy and safe workpladapted to
human potential. All information and data deriveahfi the working environment analysis and its impachealth and
safety, properly processed, contribute to the fdiomaof preventive interventions that help to atljtiee working
environment to the dimensions of the working emptayA proper and effective assessment of occutitsks, is
thus, a basic requirement for safe work, rendetifigndamental in avoiding negative impacts.

Monthly reporting forms: In the context of contous improvement of employee Health and Safety énwvtlorking

environment, the Legal and Corporate affairs depant, in May 2013, established a procedure of cetimg monthly

reporting forms in relation to health, safety arideo administrative issues concerning all Grougsuloicated either on
land and/or in the sea area. This monthly fornoimgleted by each unit’s responsible official, untter supervision of
his manager, and which through e-mails is then serthe Head of Legal and Corporate affairs whanthas the
responsibility of informing other departments, éeined necessary.

2016
MALES FEMALES
INJURY RATE * 0,44 0,08
LOST WORKING DAYS 6,09 0.26
RATE **
UNJUSTIFIED 0,0147 0,0142
ABSENTEE RATE ***

* The injury rate is expressed as the number afreg workers per 100 employees. Injuries obsermestaff concerned minor
injuries such as cuts, abrasions and slight spafiasm-leg.

** The lost working days’ rate was calculated gseacentage of the number of total illness daystdumy disease and as a result of
occupational incidents.

*** The absentee rate was calculated as a percerdhtptal staff absentees in each unit to thd tatenber of working days in each
plant.
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The indices in the table above relate to domegigrations in Greece. It should be noted that dutfiegperiod 2016
there were no fatalities or cases of occupatiois@lase.

EMPLOYEE TRAINING

During 2016 the following training activities wewadertaken:

EMPLOYEE TRANING 2016
SUBJECT EMPLOYEES HOURS MONTH
GROUP SEMINARS
Health and safety in the workplace (Igoumenitsa) 98 20 May
Health and safety in the workplace (Aliveri) 33 10 May
Health and safety in the workplace (Fokida) 66 26 unel
Health and safety in the workplace (Astakos) 219 26 July
Health and safety in the workplace (Psachna, 84 36 November
Artaki, Pyrgoulaki, Kego Agri)
Health and safetyKlanatadika-Gialtra-Kofinas) 82 28 December
HACCP Aliveri 7 20 November
Seminars of Technical Security 6 7 April
Analysis of VAT provisions/regulations 12 12 April
Paperless office 8 8 April
PERSONAL SEMINARS
Training of employees-warehouse 1 8 March
Financial Statement Analysis 1 12 March
Management essentials 1 8 March
Adulteration and fraud in food 1 8 July
English courses 2 158 All year round
Post-graduate financial management 1 60 November
TOTAL 622 447

4. MAJOR RISKS IN RELATION TO CORRUPTION AND BRIBER Y

4.1 MAJOR RISKS IN RELATION TO CORRUPTION AND BRIBE RY WHICH ARE
ASSOCIATED WITH THE COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Since its inception, the NIREUS Group has stoodfouits professional ethics and timeless valudsictvcharacterize
every aspect of its business, in all applicableanghich were incorporated in the Code of Condubtch came into
force in 2013 and which depicts the Group's pasitto each shareholder, partner, trader and emploVhis
substantiates our commitment to high standardsonélect and our continuous effort for improvementlihareas of
concern.

Improper implementation and application of the ab@ould negatively affect the entire value chais,veell as
employees’ morale, with the imposition of legal &@ms and fines to the Group, consequently impgdts reputation
and financial performance. For this reason, ttesiashas been a key topic of interest for most btakers such as
Employees, Shareholders and Investors, the Acad€omemunity, the NGOSs, suppliers and Customersgsiineither
directly or indirectly impacts their activities.
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4.2 COMPANY POLICIES (due diligence inclusive)
BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Accountability and TransparencyNIREUS Group is particularly attentive to the imientation of all Corporate
Governance guidelines, which have been interndtipaatablished and which mainly focus on providowmnplete and
timely information to investors and to the relevanthorities, for each substantial issue concerrititer significant
developments or financial information, and for gnetection of shareholders’ interests and rights.

Our primary interest is to communicate and notlfystakeholders with respect to our activitiescampliance with the
mandatory provisions, given that this ensures thguired level of transparency further to that itesgthens
relationships of trust towards our Group.

In the meantime, people’s duty and responsibilitytd continuously act in a lawful and ethical manrihey are
furthermore, to perform duties uninfluenced by otheefusing any form of reward from third partiés,adhere to
professional confidentiality and to refrain fromyannauthorized commercial act, or other practice from any
prohibited use of inside information.

Code of Conduct- Labour regulatiois compliance with all the above and by applyingaations recorded in detail in
the Group’s Code of Conduct, all employees thenyribute to the prevention and/or to the propanagement of
any potential case of abuse, corruption or inconpeactice, thus contributing to the sustainmerthefGroup’s high
reputation.

The Group’s principles on corporate ethics and eyg#s’ appropriate conduct towards its customengplgers and
other partners are, inter alia, referred to in @reup’s Code of Conduct in Chapter Z "Protectioniraérests and
resources". The Code of Conduct, also providesherimposition of penalties in case of violationroles, which are
escalated according to the seriousness of the ndswod from reprimand up to dismissal.

Global Compact of the United Nations (UN Global @awt): NIREUS Group supports the 2008 Global Corhpac
mentioned in the relevant section of the Reportti€ipation and Recognition”. Certain principlestbé Global
Compact with which NIREUS Group has voluntarily qdiad, includes fighting against corruption, indlugl extortion
and bribery, protection of internationally procladhuman rights, and non-complicity in human rigitisses.

The target includes the expansion of the Grievakt@magement Policy (Whistleblowing Policy) enablitige

notification of grievance incidents to the Groullanagement as well as to any third-party stakematdgaging with
the Group such as public authorities, suppliers arslomers. The above is achieved through the @GeBepartment
of Legal and Corporate Affairs.

4.3 RESULTS OF THE SAID POLICIES AND THE NON-FINANC IAL BASIC
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

Policies on regular and extraordinary repokaving established numerous branches in Greecalaméd, and aiming
at the establishment of direct and structured comication of local working groups with headquartéttREUS Group
has established, since 2013, a monthly policy anpdeting Regular and Ad hoc grievance reports thinoa special
form. Further information on the issue will be imdéd in our Group’s Corporate Social Responsibifigport.

Grievance Management Policy (Whistleblowing Policifurthermore, the Groups has established since3 201
Grievance Management Policy implemented in alllitées, aiming at establishing early warning proges$ in view of
tracking any illegalities and irregularities foryamatter relating to the Group's operations. Witbpect this policy, all
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Group employees are notified through relevant anoements. Further information will be included iar &Group’s
Corporate Social Responsibility Report for the ficial year 2016.

Remediation Plans: Electronic submission of Regatett Ad-hoc Grievance Reports through means o€dalectronic
submission and automatic notification to all resgble officials concerned is in place, thus maimitgg, in this manner,
an electronic file for the purpose of transparency.

CONFIRMED INCIDENCES OF CORRUPTION AND REMEDIATION ACTIONS
TAKEN

2016
Total number and nature of confirmed incidentsarfaption. 0
Confirmed cases where employees were fired or whdiseiplinary 0
penalties for corruption were imposed.
Confirmed cases where contracts with business @artmere not renewed 0
due to violations relating to corruption.
Public legal cases of corruption in which the compar employees were 0
accused during the reporting period and the restiksich cases.

5. ENVIRONMENT
5.1 MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH COMPA NY ACTIVITIES

As part of our approach to corporate responsibilitg recognize and systematically prioritize envinental issues
associated with our activities and that may caudeeme effects to our stakeholders and to the widgural

environment as well as to the overall sustainabletbpment at a national level. Linking the effemt®ur activities on
Sustainable Development was made possible thrdwgblN Goals Sustainable Development.

We methodically approach to environmental issuaswe have identified in order to limit the negatieffects that may
arise from improper management, and increase thigima benefit from proper management. Considetirggabove,
we intensively monitor the effects of our activiti@ connection with the following environmentaugs:

* Protection of marine ecosystems on farms
* Liquid waste
* Solid wastes

The manner we manage these risks are presentee following two sections.
5.2 COMPANY POLICIES

Nireus has, over the years, been committed to wicigjea continuous improvement with respect to emvinental
performance, to the prevention of pollution, to thglementation of precautionary principles as veadlto ensuring
compliance with legislation. Towards meeting thisde the Group applies a continuously evolving Iraéed
Management System to all its operations, includimg environment, for occupational health and safatctions.
Besides being certified by GLOBAL G.A.P., the compalso possesses the 1SO certifications in acooalavith the
international 1SO standards 9001: 2008, ISO 22@m@5 (HACCP), ISO 14001: 2004 and BRC Global Stedsla
(British Retail Association).

ESMA/2015/1415el: The design of the Environmentalndgement System has been prepared in accordaticéhevi
Process Mapping methodology. The assessment israoted according to the International Bibliograptimg Law as
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well as to previous years' experience. Parametestuated as being significant become topics of remvhental
programs. This process is repeated on an annua$ Isasthat performance and substantiality of theliag
environmental programs, be evaluated.

Protection of marine ecosystems in farming units:
In conjunction with the physicochemical and micadbgical indicators, the biodiversity on the seabaderneath the
farming units and the results are evaluated irsttree manner.

Monitoring liguid waste parameters:

All liquid waste is monitored for biochemical oxygedemand (BOD), chemical oxygen demand (COD), total
suspended solids (TSS), total nitrogen and totasphorus through laboratory analyses performeateithin-house
laboratories and/or at external accredited laboirgoThe purpose of the analyses is to ensurdtibgihysicochemical
properties of the final recipient (sea, sewage)netd not be modified. During the years 2014-207%0 and 700
analyses, respectively, were undertaken in wasewagspectively.

Solid waste management:

The largest volume of waste generated by the faympiocess consists of fish feed plastic bags whiehcollected and
sent for recycling. The final produced product &kaged in fish containers from expanded polysgiréteanwhile,
the Group and in cooperation with its suppliersesking and examining alternative means of paokagiaterial.

The Group actively participates in Collective Rdioyg Programs held nationwide but is also engagesihialler own
developed projects which it has developed. Projesreassessed and the Group is in continuoushstarmaterials
and partners in order to improve its environmepéaformance.

5.3 RESULTS OF THE SAID POLICIES AND NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

In 2016, 900 physicochemical and 750 microbiologigelyses were performed in the liquid waste ahfag waters
and all results exceeded the limits set by ledmiat

The largest volume of waste generated by the fagngrocess consists of fish feed plastic bags, testeand

accumulators, paper, inc ribbons, oils, polysteremeich are gathered and sent for recycling. Timalfiproduced
product is packaged in fish containers from expdnpiaystyrene. Meanwhile, the Group and in coopanatvith its

suppliers, is seeking and examining alternative naeaf packaging material. In the meantime, the @raatively

participates in Collective Recycling Programs heltionwide but also engages in smaller own develgp®jects
which it has developed. Projects are reassessethar@roup is in continuous search for materiats artners in order
to improve its environmental performance.
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EXPLANATORY REPORT
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A
(based on paragraphs 7 and 8 of article 4 of L6ZE®7)

(a) The structure of the share capital, including thares not listed for trading in an organized markeGreece or
another member-state, reporting for each categbshares the rights and the obligations relatethito category and
the percentage of the total share capital thashiages of this category presented.

The share capital of the Company amounts to € 87249,40 composed into 291.497.368 shares of dae \Euro
0,30 each and is fully paid up. The entire compsausyiares are ordinary, registered, with votingtsiglsted for trading
on the Athens Exchange and have all the rightsledbligations prescribed by the Law.

(b) Restrictions in the transfer of the company’s skasuch as restrictions in holding of shares orothigation in
obtaining prior approval from the company or otekareholders or by a Public or Administrative Auityowith the
reserve of the article 4 par. 2 of L. 3371/2005.

The transfer of the company’s shares is made astexhéy Law and do not exist out of its Articles Adsociation
restrictions in their transfer.

(c) Significant direct or indirect participations asfided by articles 9 to 11 of the L. 3556/2007.
As at 31/12/2013 persons holding significant directindirect participations as defined by artickdo 11 of L.
3556/2007 are:

Surname Name Father’s Number of % Type of participation
Name Shares Percentage

National Bank of 18.017.816 6,18% direct

Greece

Linnaeus Capital 16.160.734 5,54% The company Linnaeus

Partners BV Capital Partners BV

indirectly holds 5,54%
with voting rights.
Linnaeus Capital
Partners BV was
controlled 100% by
Kahka Bendukidze who
died on 13.11.2014. As
at 26.02.2016 Linnaeus
Capital Partners BV
informed the company
that the sole hiers of the
deceased are Ms. Natalia

Zolotova and Anastasia
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Goncharova
Eurobank 45.577.428 15,63% Direct
Alpha Bank 60.207.070 20,65% Direct
Piraeus Bank 94.766.854 32,50% Direct and indirec

(d) Holders of any type of share granting special mbmights and description of relevant rights.
Shares of the company, which grant special conigbts to their shareholders do not exist.

(e) Restrictions in voting right such as restrictiamsoting rights to holders of certain percenta§éhe share capital or
to holders of certain number of voting rights, dinel time terms for exercise of voting rights.
The Articles of Association do not provide for amgtrictions in voting rights

() Shareholders Agreements, which are known to thgpamy and entail restrictions in transfer of share®strictions
in exercise of voting rights.

The company is not aware of the existence of slodalers’ agreements, which entail restrictions ia ttansfer of its
shares or in the exercise of the voting rightsragifrom its shares.

(9) Rules for appointment and/or replacement of membéthe Board of Directors and amendment of thieckss of
Association, when these differ to that providedhmyc.L. 2190/1920.

The rules provided by the company’s Articles of éddation for appointment and/or replacement of memiof its
Board of Directors and amendment of its articlesndt differ to that provided by the provisionscol.. 2190/1920.

(h) Competence of the Board of Directors or certaimimers of the Board of Directors, for the issue @ivrshares or
for the purchase of treasury shares accordingetaiticle 16 of c.L. 2190/1920.

A. The Board of Directors of the Company is allowedotoceed in the issuance of new shares, followiiulated
authorization on the basis of the General Assembgcision in the following cases.
1)In accordance with article 13 paragraph 9 of c.LR1B920, as in force, and in execution of the denisaken at the
Company’s Shareholders General Meeting held on®24@D6, which was listed in the Register of Comgsuoin 20-
06-2006, protocol number K2-9377, the three-yeaclsOption Plan granted to the Members of the BadrDirectors
and to the Company’s Management was approved. Byadlgi, following the exercise of rights have baersted from
the participants in the program, a decision is takg the Board of Directors as regards the increabthe Company’s
share capital by an amount which corresponds toridpets that have been exercised and the issuahtieeaespective
new shares, in execution of the assumed liabilitiased on the Plan. Subsequent to this, the Bo&rDirectors
proceeds with the decision released, based onlarlit of cL.2190/1920 in respect of the certifioatof the paid-up
share capital.
It is noted that due to the current economic decisif the capital market, the exercise of the abys in the third
year has not been made possible and following e yizar period the right of exercise is now inactiVeerefore a
proposal will be made to the General Meeting whigh have a declaratory character as regards theidmn on the
inaction of the right which was provided in virtaéthe resolution of the General Assembly date@&2006.
2) In accordance with article 3a of c.L 2190/192@, in force, and in execution of the decision ef &\ Reiteration
Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of the Compamlgich was listed in the Companies Register of thaidity of
Development on 9-5-2007 with protocol number K2&8Be issuance of the convertible bond loan irtmm@on with
voting right shares with preference rights to oliaseholders of an amount of 19.995.575,10 Euro e@ggroved.
Specifically, following the exercise of the riglitconversion of debentures to shares, a Board oéddors decision is
taken to increase the Company’s share capital byaamount which corresponds to the conversion of wieibes
depending upon the conversion requests, and theecsion ratio, and the corresponding issuance ef tbmpany’s
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new shares, in execution of the terms of the pmogoé the convertible bond loan as these are indoBubsequent to
the above, the Board of Directors proceeds withiiseance of the decision, based on article 11.10f2690/1920 in
respect of the certified paid-up share capital.

3) In accordance with Article 3a of L.2190 / 1928,in force, and in execution of the 04.05.2015gi@t of the Repeat
Annual General Meeting of shareholders, registerethe General Commercial Register on 26.5. 2016mer no.
57022 and approved the issuance of a bond conleitito ordinary registered voting shares with prgsive right of
the existing shareholders amounting to 29,466,288 Specifically, each time practicing bonds @msion rights to
shares following the Board of Directors to incredlse share capital by the amount correspondinch®donversion of
bonds into shares according to the respective cmiwe applications and the current conversion ratémd
corresponding issue of new shares of the compamgupnt to the terms of the Program of the abovedbissue, as
applicable. Then the Board shall issue a decisioadcordance with Article 11 of L.2190 / 1920, ifgig payment of
the share capital.

(h) Significant agreements of the company that aréoiioe, amend or expire in case of a change in tmpany’s
control following public motion and the results thie agreement, except if, due to its nature, tHaigation of the
agreement would cause serious loss in the compimy.exemption of publication of the agreement it eftective
when the obligation for publication arises fromeatprovisions.

In the event of a change in the company’s conttbbWing public proposal, there are no agreementhjch are in
force, are amended or expire.

(i) Agreements for indemnity compensation to membéteeBoard of Directors or personnel, in caseebfement of
dismissal without basic reason or end of term gagement due to public announcement.

There are no special agreements for indemnity coisgi@n to the members of the Board of Directorgogpersonnel,
specifically in case of retirement or dismissalheitit basic cause or termination of their servicetlogir engagement
due to public proposal.

The present Statement of Corporate Governancdsataintegral and special part of the companytwahBoard of
Directors Report.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(The present statement is compiled according tol@#3bb of the Law 2190/1920 and is
part of the Annual Report of the Board of Direcjors

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION/ GENERAL

1. Code of Corporate Governance

1.1 Disclosure on the voluntary compliance of tlmenpany with the Code of Corporate Governance

1.2 Deviations from the Code of Corporate Goverraaod explanation. Special stipulations of the Ctida the
company does not apply and explanation of the mgfication.

2. Board of Directors

2.1.1 Composition and manner of conduct of the BadDirectors
2.1.2 Information on the Board of Directors

2.1.3 Ensuring diversity of the BoD

2.1.4 Policies on disclosures of related partydaations

2.2 Committees

3. General Assembly of the Shareholders

3.1 Manner of conduct of the General Assembly aathrauthorities
3.2 Shareholders’ rights and way of exercise

4. Internal Audit operations and management of risls

4.1 Main characteristics of the internal audit opierat

4.2 Management of risks of the Company and of theu@® concerning the preparation of financial staets
(standalone and consolidated)

5. Additional information

INTRODUCTION/GENERAL

The term Corporate Governance refers to the totalues and principles applied for the proper opieraand
management of the company.

The ultimate purpose of Corporate Governance gsstfeguarding of the legitimate interests of tbemgany, the

promotion of the company’s competitive advantagd #re enhancement of transparency regarding thepaoy's
activities.
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The legislative framework regulating statutory regions in Greece is constituted by the provisiensompassed in the
Law governing the Société Anonym Companies (L.213020) as currently in force, in addition to La@@16/2002,
Law 3693/2008, Law 3884/2010, Law 3873/2010 andw 14803/2016 in which a new article of C.L.2190209
(article 43bb) has been added. The framework hi@bleshed the minimum mandatory contents of thdéeBtant of
Corporate Governance which is included in the AhiReport of the Board of Directors of companieshwsecurities
listed for trading on a regulated active market.

1. Code of Corporate Governance

1.1 Disclosure of the voluntary compliance of tbenpany with the code of corporate governance

The company voluntarily complies and adopts theetéreode of corporate governance of the HellenicpGate
Governance Council (HCGC) for public listed comganfreferred to as “Code”). The Code is postechensebsite of
the Hellenic Athens Exchange Markets in the follogvaddress:
http://www.helex.gr/documents/10180/906743/HCGC_GR0131022.pdf/e8e7b6da-6dd0-4c30-90e9-
79fe9ca8383d.

1.2 Deviations from the Code of Governance andamgtlon of non- compliance. Special stipulationshef Code
which are not applied by the company and explanatad the reasons of non-application.

The company states that it conforms to all legdigakions (C.L 2190/1920, C.L. 3016/2002 and C.L93&2008).
These minimum obligations are embodied in the Gxfdeorporate Governance of which a company mustptypmith
the shares of which are exchanges in an activeehark

The minimum requirements are included in the abOede of Conduct (SEV) to which the company comedeun
except for that the code includes a series of mddit (of the minimum requirements) special prihegp As compared
to the mentioned principles, there are currentlyaie deviations in order that there be compliawéh the conditions,
values, inheritance and ownership regime of thepaom such that the company’s interest be promatetthe best
possible manner. An analysis and explanation wjuistifies the reasons for the deviations follows:

Part A’- Board of Directors and its members

1. Role and responsibilities of the Board of Directis

The BoD has not formed a separate committee, whighages the procedure for recommending candidatedefction

of the BoD and prepares by itself proposals forBb®.

The proposals are submitted by the Board of Dirsctd the company to the General Assembly whictegponsible
for the approval of the election of the memberdhef Board of Directors. In addition, it has not ggeded with the
formation of a compensation committee given that@wmpensation and Benefits Committee which has bmened

has replaced the Management and Performance Sysiain was designed thfay Group in 2009.

II. Composition of the BoD

The BoD is comprised of one (1) executive and (8)-axecutive members.
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III. Role and characteristics of the President of thBoD

In the Company’s Articles of Association there iscgrn between the responsibilities of the Presiderd the
Managing Director, however, it is permitted thaedé responsibilities coincide. The BoD does notoajpan
independent Vice President from its independent bazs) but a non- executive Vice President, asdnsribution as a
Vice-President is considered of utmost importammcetfe operations of the company.

IV. Duties and conduct of the members of the BoD

The BoD has not adopted as part of its corporatie @i conduct, specific policies to encounter dohff interests
between its members and the company, given thatyrcase the stipulations of the law and the Assi@f Association
will come into effect. Certain members of the Boardl any third party to whom responsibilities oé tBoard have
been assigned are required to adequately and tidistyose to other board members the same intetkeatsmay
potentially arise from transactions of the compaiych comprise part of their duties, as well as ather conflict of
interest with those of the company or its affilthompanies arising in the performance of theiredut

V. Nomination of candidates for the BoD
e The maximum service of the BoD is not a four-yeariqd, but longer, (at least five-year), so tha tieed to
elect a new BoD does not come about in shortengsriwhich would mean additional formalities (as tfee
representation in the presence of third parties &werthermore, the expanded service duration efBOD
secures the better knowledge of the company andra discreet decision taking.
e There is no committee for recommending candidaighe¢ BoD, given that it is not deemed necessagytdu
the structure and operations of the company.

V|. Operations of the BoD

e There is no specific code of conduct for the openabf the BoD, as the articles of Association dhd
Corporate Code of Conduct are considered adeqoiated organization and functioning of the BoD

e There is no provision for the support of the BoDiulg the exercise of its duties by a competentcisieed
and experienced secretary, since the technologifahstructure exists to record and presentatioa th
convocations of the BoD

e There is no obligation for the President and the-executive members of the BoD to convene on alaegu
basis without the presence of the executive menibersler that the performance and the compensafitine
latter be discussed given that all relevant mategsdiscussed in the presence of all membersed@D.

e There is no provision for the existence of intradug informative programs for the new members af BoD
or their continuous education since the members dhra promoted for election have adequate and prove
experience of organisational and managerial skills.

e There is no provision for the allocation of suféiot resources to the committees of the BoD foffulfément
of their obligations and for the hiring of extermansultants to the degree these are needed, lasesaurces
are approved by the management of the companyd lmasthe company’s needs.

VIl. Performance Evaluation of the BoD

There is no institutional procedure which assetise®ffectiveness of the BoD and its committeetherassessment of
the performance of the President of the BoD dutirgprocedure in which the independent Vice- Pestidirects, or
any other non-executive member of the BOD in theeabe of an independent vice-president. This proees not
deemed necessary given the structure of the company
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Part B- Internal Audit Committee

1. Internal Control — Audit Committee

No specific and fixed funds are given out to thenodttee for the use of external consultants, astmposition of the
committee and the specialized knowledge and expezief its members ensure its operation.

During 2016 and in accordance with the Audit Conteeitin cooperation with the Internal Auditor of Beoup a major
project review of all Group procedures was impletedrand delivered with specific proposals whichiargrogress for
further actions.

Part C- Compensation

1. Level and structure of the compensation

e there is no compensation committee, comprisingusketly of non-executive members, independent dir th
majority, which aims at defining the compensatidrnihe executive and non-executive members of thB Bo
and thus there are no rules for the frequencysafanvocations and other issues concerning itsatipar The
Compensation Committee which has been formed hdaced theManagement and Performance System
which was designed by Hay Group since 2009.

e in the contracts of the executive members of thB,Bbere is no provision that the BoD may ask fartfor
full refund of the bonuses paid due to possiblésien of the financial statements of previous yearsn
general as regards erroneous financial data thet wsed to calculate such a bonus since such rogme
about, only after the approval of the financiatestiaents.

e the compensation of every executive member of B B not approved by the BoD after the proposahef
compensation committee without the presence oBtBB’s executive members, given that no such conemitt
exists for the compensation of the Board of Direstout rather all such benefits are approved byGaeeral
Assembly.

Il. Remuneration Structure Policy

The compensation setting process is characterigeabfectivity, transparency and professionalisng @& free from
conflicts of interest. The remuneration of non @xese directors reflects the period of employmantl their duties
and are not directly related to the performancefcompany.

The level and structure of remuneration aim atating and retaining the company, board membensijrastrative

executives and employees that add value to the aoynpiith their skills, knowledge and experienceeTavel of

remuneration is in line with their qualificationadatheir contribution to the company. The BoardDifectors has a
clear policy as to the manner by which the compaanys its executives, especially those who areldyitgualified for

the effective management of the company.

The remuneration of executive board members iscétsa with the corporate strategy, the purposthefcompany
and the realization of these, with the ultimateschje of creating long-term value to the company.

In determining the remuneration of executive divesitthe Board of directors takes into considematio

e Their duties and their responsibilities

e Their performance

e The financial position, performance and the protpetthe company

e The level of remuneration for comparable executieevices in comparable companies
e The level of remuneration f@mployees in the company and in the entire Group.
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lll. Fees paid in cash or in kind other than sharegnot affiliated with shares) executive Board membs .

The General Meeting of 30.06.2016 following thepmsal of the Board for the year 30.06.2016-30.67283proved
the payment of the net amount of up to 15.000 €hpenth to the CEO in addition to the fringe bersefif leased cars,
private insurance, mobile phone and corporate coadd.

No benefits are provided in shares or rights ohares (share-based payments) to executive Boarderem

IV. Non-executive board members.

The General Meeting of the shareholders held 00632016, following the proposal from the Board dfdotors,
approved the remuneration of non-executive boanchipees for the year 30.06.2016-30.6.2017 of the annoi2000 €
per meeting with a maximum of 14 meetings. In addito the members of the Audit Committee the amadfirb00 €
per meeting for the Audit Committee with a maximafisix meetings.

Furthermore, the company shall pay to the Chairar@hNon-Executive Member a total annual gross fe&300.000
under the approved, by the General Meeting of $iwddlers, employment contract term (July 2015- J2018).
Furthermore, under the relevant resolution of then&®al Meeting of Shareholders, the President axetuEive
Member is paid an annual total gross remuneratidg1db0.000 with a fixed-term employment contraktly 2015-July
2018). These two members do not receive a remuoernatt € 2.000 per meeting.

2. Board of Directors

2.1 COMPOSITION AND MANNER OF CONDUCT OF THE BOD

The primary obligation and responsibility of all miers of the board of directors of the company &sted in an
organized market company, is the continuous enmaectof the long-term economic value of the compang the
protection of the company’s interest.

The Board is the ultimate governing body of the @any, which mainly modulates the strategy and agpraknt
policy of the Company and decides on any matteatirg] to the administration, the management ofagisets and
generally adheres to the achievement of its purpds@art of these responsibilities, it can de@deall matters except
those that are within the exclusive competencéi®@iGeneral Assembly, according to Law 2190/192@nasnded, and
the Articles of Association.

Each Board member shall be liable to the Compamggards the management and administration of catp@ffairs
in accordance with the provisions of Law 2190/19R0rthermore, each member has obligations as atgullby the
Articles of Association, the present Regulation dimel legal framework applicable to companies lisbadthe stock
market.

The Board of Directors is exclusively responsibid &able for:
The review that all accounting practices and gaheapproved accounting standards are abided by.
A. The review of the financial results of the compamyelation to the budget, the prior years anddhmpetition.
The involvement in the preparation and the regidassessment of the strategic design.
The approval of significant investments, loans,uggitions and sale of financial assets of the camipa
The approval of significant changes in the compaupglicy and its structure
The monitoring of the company’s compliance to ragjahs, operational methodologies and the decisibtise
authorities
The proposal for distribution of profits
The recommendations-proposal to the shareholderasa of election or re-election of the Board membe

B
C.
D.
E

O m
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The constitution of the Board of Directors providesas follows:

1. The Company is governed by the Board of Directbet is composed of a minimum of 3 and a maximum bf
members. The members of the Board of Directorsebeeted by the General Meeting of the Shareholttersigh a
silent vote and with a quorum and a majority basedrticle 35 and 42 of paragraph 1 of the Artidégssociation.

2. The Board members are divided into executive amdexecutive. The number of non-executive membsosld not
be less than 1/3 of the total number of membera.fthction results, it is rounded up to the nenit.LAmong the non-
executive members, at least two independent memipeist exist, in accordance with the following pasgoins.
The status of the board members as executive as etermined by the board. The independent mesrdfehe Board
are appointed by the general meeting.

3.The members of the Board of Directors is 5 yekdrbegins from their elections from the General éably of the
shareholders and is extended up to the ordinare@eAssembly who will approve the annual finansi@tements of
the year, but which cannot exceed a six-year term.

4. The Board of Directors elects members in replacgraé members that have resigned, have died, oe hast their
identity with whichever manner. The election issibée under the condition that the replacemenhefabove members
is not possible from substitute members, who haentelected by the general assembly. The aboviosldmom the
Board of Directors is done with a decision takert®yremaining members, if these are at least {{&eend is valid for
the remaining of the service term of the memberghvthey replace. The decision of election is sutadito the public
according to article 7b of C.L. 2190/1920, as ftisisvalid, and is announced from the Board of Dwegtin the
immediate general assembly which follows, even ¢fmono relevant issue may have been stated in tedag

5.In the event of resignation, death or in any othanner loss of the identity of the member or membé the Board
of Directors, the remaining members can contingentanagement and the representation of the cormgrachyvithout
the replacement of the missing members based ompréneeding paragraph, under the condition that mhisiber
exceeds half of the members, as was the case bhforecurrence of the above events. In any cagenot permitted
that these members be less than three (3).

6. In any case, the remaining members of the BoBirectors, irrespective of their number, can gred in convening
in a general assembly with a sole aim the elecifdhe board of directors.

7. A member of the Board of Directors can even begall entity. In this case the legal entity is obtigo appoint a
physical person for exercising the authority ofldgal entity as a member of the Board of Directors

8. The company, within twenty days from the establishtnof the Board of Directors, shall submit to ®EC the
minutes of the general meeting that elected thedaddent directors. Similarly the minutes of thardas submitted
within the same period and, which states the switesich member of the board as executive, nonegixecor has been
temporary elected as an independent member inceplent of another member who resigned, or has dedea who
for any reason was deposed.

Invitation of the Board Meeting Procedures:

1. All members of the Board of Directors are inglitey the President or the legal proxy at least Pkimg days before
convening via an invitation, which includes theaiand place where the Board of Directors will coreen addition to
the matters included in the agenda with clarity aathtive information material with the relevantoposals if
necessary, otherwise decision making is permittdg onder the condition that all members of the iBloaf Directors
are either present or are represented and no geet®ko the decision making process.

The President sets the agenda with the matters thsbussed as set by the Secretary account e&sittiwo days prior
to the of the conference invitation.

The list is drawn up by the company's CEO at iscdition, taking into account any recommendatiansrstted
through administration procedures.
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The President and the Board of Directors may attang, commencing from the initiation of the togin the agenda
until its resolution to request, through the CER® submission of any additional information or doeut relating to
the subject matter.

Each Board member may propose any topic for digousgith a brief explanation to the Managing Digtwho will
propose the matter to the President of the Boadldrasiude this on the agenda

2. Two members of the Board of Directors can reqtlestconvocation of the Board of Directors throagrequest to
the President or to his substitute, who are obligecbnvene the Board of Directors so that the mgdie held within
the time limits of 7 days commencing from the dateequest.

3. In this request application, the matters which wdtupy the Board of Directors should be statedh wharity. If the
Board of Directors does not convene through theiBeat or the substitute as of the above timefratre,permitted
that the members that have requested the meetatgthiby themselves call the meeting within 5 dagfoile the
expiration of the above 7 days’ time limits, noiify the remaining members of the Board of Directaith an
invitation.

Meetings - Quorum- Discussion-Resolutions

1. The Board shall meet at the headquarters ofdh@any, whenever the law, the statutes or thesnekthe company
SO require.

The Board can validly convene outside the corpdnetalquarters in another place, either in Greeabmad, provided
that all members are either present or are rept@s@md no one not objects to the meeting andetaléicision making.
The company’s Board of Directors can convene thinae¢econferencing. In such a case the invitatiothe members
of the Board of Directors will include the necegsaformation for the participation of these in timeeting, given that
the minimum technical security specifications imeection with the validity of the meeting, as thesay have been
specified by the Ministry of Development, are met.

2016 BoD Meetings

1. In 2016 the Board convened 21 times in which argmmoexisted for the purpose of decision makingmieetings
with an agenda of significant matters (approvdirmncial statements etc) a quorum of all Board tmers was noted.
2. The Board of Directors is in a quorum and congeme a timely basis when half and one membersrasept or are
represented by the elected members. In no caseevieowdoes the number of members who are persopedent
cannot be less than three (3). In order for thewmdo be identified the rounding number is ignored

3. A director who is absent or unable to attend, ahelggate under his own responsibility his reprigam in the BOD
meeting only to another member, whom he may appyiret notarial deed or by a simple letter addresséhe Board.
The authorization for representation may includeranihan one meeting. No director can represent rtteae one
members.

4. Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, each memust be present and continuously participataeetings of
the Board.

5. The existence of a quorum, is monitored by thesiBemt, upon commencement of the meeting as weihgluts
duration. In the event that a quorum does not exitdr the commencement of the meeting, the Chairsteall
terminate the meeting. All resolutions taken dutimg meeting in which a quorum was establishedegr@ and valid.
6. The meetings of the Board are attend at withouingorights, and after invitation of the Presidetite Legal
Consultant of the Company and Company executiveaffifated companies or parties, given that issaésheir
responsibility are discussed.

7. The Chairman of the Board coordinates and diréloés meetings and the overall functioning of the f8oa
As regards all other matters, it has the same gigiid obligations as all other members of the Board
8. During the meeting, the CEO as a rapporteur piailefs the matter of discussion with a clear pr¢ation of the
rapporteur’s decision, thereafter questions aisehby the members of the Board of Directors, arydsapplementary
informative proposals as well as views from theesottompany executives and finally the positiongsomembers.
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The contents of the recommendations may be ameddigag the meeting, when the final amended propadlabe
recorded.

9. The decisions of the Board of Directors are taera timely manner by a majority of the member® abe present
personally committee and those that may be repteden

10. In the event that any matter of the agenda refetise private interest of a Board member or telative up to third
degree, by blood or affinity, this member, follogitis declaration or by another Board member, duebed from

discussion and shall not participate in taking smgh decision.

11. Upon completion of the discussion of each mattes,issue is put to a vote for a final resolutignting is always

nominal and apparent and begins with the vote ef @GO as a rapporteur. If there contrary proposalamended
proposals, the contrary proposals are first votieeln the amended ones and finally those presentedebManaging
Director.

12. The discussions of the meeting may be taped #iterPresident's proposal and decision of the Baant the

relevant records are maintained until the ratifarabf the relevant practices.

Maintaining Minutes of the Board of Directors

1. Discussions and decisions of the Board of Directme certified with minutes from he who has beeatesd as
President from the members that were present imdeting as well as from the secretary.

The minutes shall include: the name of those ptesshagenda issues with the relevant recommeosaitand
informative material, the summary of the discussiopics, any opinion of the minority members andaly the
decisions per matter of discussion.

2. The minutes are certified in their entirety,tie next meeting or in urgent cases during the sdayeafter being
circulated to members of the Board of Directors rieading and further comments. By exception andnwdheemed
necessary, the part can be confirmed on the samevidizh encompasses the urgent matter of the Beard,in the
following meeting the full text of the minutes claa signed.

Each member of the Board, prior to the validatibthe minutes, can propose the oral amendmens aupplementary
amendment given that it is accepted by the Boalirefctors.

Recommendations can be sent in writing to the @twair of the Board up to the date the meeting isfieett in order
that these be taken into account.

If a member of the Board does not send any wrifiezposals and is not present in the validation mgeit is
considered that he fully agrees with the text falidation which has been distributed.

3. No member can ignore the signing of the minatethe meeting who participated, he can howevek,that his
opinion be accurately summarized in the minutdwifdisagrees with the opinion that is being takerany case his
non-approval in no manner constitutes the decisiten as void, as long as his refusal to sign istimeed in the
minutes.

4. The President, with custody of the Secretaryhef Board of Directors may compile the minutes digfo which
decisions are taken without a meeting having beeoegled (decisions by circulating minutes).
In this case, the preparation and signing of tibeched minutes by all Board members or by theirasgntatives, in

writing or by fax is the same as the resolutiothef Board of Directors.

5. The minutes of the Board, given that these ad®rsed, are maintained in the Board Secretargs @bpies of these
are given to Board members upon request.

6. Copies or extracts of the minutes are issueithéyhairman of the Board or by the persons whiely substitute.
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7. The secretariat support of the Board of Directgrall be provided by the Legal Counselor, who aksves as the
secretary of the Board and the Secretariat of theithent of the Board of Directors.

The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall emdhe delivery of copies of the Board's decisiamalt internal
departments of the company if necessary and to isutmpies of those decisions to the public autiesijtincluding
their publication in the SA & Ltd Bulletin, in acatance with the provisions of the current legislati

2.1.2 Information on the Members of the Board of Diectors
The present BOD of the company is composed of 9lmesrand comprises of the following:

1) Aristides Bellesof Stergiou and Anti, economist, born in KataraRhios in 1953, citizen of Ano Voula Attikis,
President, and Non-Executive Member.

He has also served as Chairman of the Board déthek Entrepreneurship Club and also as Chairrhdredoard of
the Federation of Greek Mariculturers. He holdggrde in Business Administration from the Universit Piraeus.

2) Nicholaos Chaviarasof Emmanuel and Ekaterini, entrepreneur, was hoiafnhona Chios in 1952, Vice-President,
and Non-Executive Member

Mr. Nicholaos Chaviaras is the co-founder and majbareholder of the Company. He is responsible tier
coordination and implementation of the investmemjgrts of NIREUS group. He is also Member of theaRl in
subsidiaries of the Group.

3) Anthonios Chachlakis of Georgiou, mechanical electrician was born i589n Pireaus, CEO and Executive
Member Mr. Anthonios Chachlakis holds a BSc andvist in Electrical Engineering Department from thecfinical
University of Brooklyn, New York, USA. He joined éhGroup in 1996, while he also had 10 years of meaual
experience in Industrial Automation.

4) Petros Fronistasof Christos and Katigkos, born in Sikinos Cycladed945 and is resident of Zografou Attica,
Independent Non Executive Member.

Mr. Petros Fronistas graduated from the Athens élsity of Economics (and Business) with a long eaiia the
banking sector, tenure and in senior managemerntiges mainly in the Group of the National Banke s an
Independent, Non Executive Member of the Board ioé®@ors of the companies THRACE PLASTICS SA (Listen
the ASE) and SARAKAKI Bros SA.

5) Christina Sakellaridi of Stavros and Penelope, Business Consultant, ihofthens in 1929, resident of Athens, is
an independent Executive Member.

Ms. Christina Sakellaridi serves as President ef Banhellenic Exporters Association, Chairman oB G¥SSET
MANAGEMENT AEDAK President 'Ch. SAKELLARIDI ‘expost - Investment Advisor and Board Member ACCI
(Athens Chamber of Commerce and Industry) who seageFirst Vice President. She was President obEx@redit
Insurance Organization (OAEP), President of theetr®rganization of Commerce Abroad (HEPO), CEO of
INTERINVEST NATIONAL INVESTMENT SA, Vice Chairman fothe International Chamber of Commerce &
Member of the General Council of the Bank of Greelige attended the University of Athens Law Scraral the
FACULTE DE DROIT in Paris. She was awarded by thesklent of the Greek Republic Karolos Papoulia wie
"Golden Cross of Merit" and by the French Presidditblas Sarkozy Lord with the "Famous Knight oé tRrench
National Order of Merit".
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6) Anna Pouskouriof Michael and Helen, Economist, born in Athend @49, resident of Germany, Independent Non
Executive Member

Anna Pouskouri has 32 years of experience in tteenational banking sector. She began her cargbeiimternational
Trade Division of Bayerische Vereinsbank (thereaBayerische Hypo - und Vereinsbank, Unicreditg slstablished
the Representative Office and in 1989 the Banlksdir in Greece. She dealt mainly with Corporate lamdstment
Banking (Syndicated Loans, Project Finance, Tradari€e, Shipping, Real estate) in Greece and southgrope and
lastly as Managing Director for Southern Europee &ft the Bank in June 2010 and since then oféehgce on
strategy and financing to companies in Greece &ndaal. Ms. Pouskouri studied at the University #re Technical
University of Munich Economics (MA) and Urban andd®nal Development.

She has attended many training seminars, inclutfisgAdvance Management Program at Harvard Busi§ehsol.
She speaks German, English and French. She isathamid has two children.

7) Constantine Lambrinopoulos of Petros and Evangelia, Entrepreneur, born ireAshin 1952, resident of Athens,
Independent Non- Executive Member

Mr. Konstantinos Lambrinopoulos is a graduate isiBess Administration of Piraeus University andititall Sciences

in Panteion University. He is a PhD candidate irrédéing at the University of Piraeus. He has 35ryexperience in
managerial positions in Greek and multinational panies. Is a CEO at PRC GROUP and CEO in SPRINT
Advertising. He is also Chairman of the Board HMAe(lenic Management Association) and Vice Presiddrthe
Entrepreneurship Club, President of the Europeaeife¢gion of Management, Board Member of IOBE, Mendfehe
General Council of SEV (Hellenic Federation of Ept&ses). He is honorary president of the Europaad World
Federation of Marketing.

8) Lito loannidou of Antonios and Alexandra, Business Consultant wiag born in P. Faliro Attiki in 1954, is an
Independent Non Executive Member.

She is a holder of the Bachelor of Commerce anfBA in Business Administration from McGill Univetgi Canada.
Ms. Lito loannidou is a Consultant for fund raisimgergers & acquisitions, finding strategic investand restructuring
of debts and business strategy through the comfiady. BUSINESS CONSULTANTS" founded in 2006 and has
served as Executive Vice President-General Direatdhe Athens Exchange SA (2001-2005). She hassdsved as
President and CEO at City-Leasing SA (1998-2000)iae President - Deputy Market Manager Greec®@p0Vice
President-Corporate Head (1993-2000), Head of GatpcCredit / Risk Management in the Country citibdNA,
Greece (1989-1993).

She has also been a member of the Working Committégher Coordinating Committee) of the Federatimin
European Securities Exchanges (FESE) and ChairrhdinecAudit Committee of FESE and has been involied
conducting portfolio quality control and risk maeagent procedures for Citibank Germany (1986), Egypt
(1988),Argentina (1989), Italy (1991), London (199&he has participated in Board of Directors of IMAS
PACKAGING SYSTEMS SA & LAVIPHARM.SA

9) Markos Komondouros of Panagiotis and Janet, Economist who was borAthens Attiki in 1963 and is an
Independent Non-executive Member.

Mr. Markos Komondouros has a 15 year career in SBWg / UBS covering all aspects of finance andriicial
advisory financial services in international masketspecializing in mergers and acquisitions . tAftee years in
London and Paris , he moved to Constantinople andded the Turkish office of the bank. He remaiime@urkey for
5 years , increasing the size of activities infialds , with particular emphasis on internatioimsestments in Turkey .
Most recently , Markos has established and ledeaialfist team of UBS London in the field of suppsetvices. After
his departure from UBS in 2003 , Markos Komondoucostinued his advisory services in the United Kiow,
Greece and Turkey through Vector Partners. He deirvéhe BOD of Probank and continues to be a merobé¢he
BOD in TANEO. He speaks English, Turkish, Frencpaidish and Italian. He holds of a B.Sc in Matheosatiom the
Imperial College, an MBA from the London Businessh&l and an MA in applied linguistics from the IBieck
College.
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The above members of the Board of Directors hakiergirofessional obligations which are presente@itiachment |
of the Present report.

The term of the above Board of Directors which wiscted by the Annual General Meeting of 04.05.2@&lls in
2020.

2.1.3. Ensuring Diversity of the Board of Directors
The company has not implemented a specific polayttie diversity of the composition of the Board ifectors.
Despite this, it is in the process of updating tloeporate code of conduct as well as examiningféasibility of

integrating the aforementioned policy.

The Board of Directors has for several years cosegriof experienced and distinguished represensativevarious
sectors such as businessmen, economists, lawyeiseers and bank officials.

The following information concerns the percentaggresentation of members by, male/female, category.

Board of Directors Number of Members Percentage%
Males 6 66,6%
Females 3 33,3%
Total 9 100%

The average age of the member of the Board of @ireds 65 years.
2.1.4 Policies on disclosure of related party tramstions

The Company has adopted policies to ensure thaBtdsrd has sufficient information to support itscid®ns in
relation to transactions between related partielsiiting transactions of subsidiaries with relatedips.

Related party transactions have been includedarsikR-month and Annual report of the Board of Dioes as well as
in the Annual and Six-month Financial report. Farthore, all contracts relating to transactions walated parties are
signed by all Board members.

2.2. COMMITTEES

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The company had already formed an Audit Commitieees2002, while it fully complies with the prowsis of article

37 of the L.3693/2008 regarding the formation of Adit Committee comprising of members of the Boaifd

Directors.

The Audit Committee has the following tasks:

a) Supervising the financial reporting procedure
b) Supervising the effectiveness of the Internal Aadid the risk management systems, as well as ssjmgythe
efficiency of the Internal Audit department of tt@mpany
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¢) Monitoring the audit procedure on financial and slidated financial statements.
d) Reviewing and monitoring all issues related toitttiependence and objectiveness of the externalt Audiit
firm, in particular when other services are alsovited from the audit firm to the company.

The task of the audit committee and the matterslisfussion are in connection with securing the c#iffeness and
efficiency of the company’s operations, the auditl aeliability of financial information presented investors and to the
company’s shareholders, the company’s compliandd tie legal and statutory framework, the safegugraf the
company’s assets as well as the identificationamdrontation of the most significant risks.

The Audit committee during the year 2016 (01/016831/12/2016) convened on:

1. 26.01 with E&Y and the Financial Department fandling the issue on the capitalization of loand goodwill as a
result of the capitalization of these at a prigghler than that of the stock market as well as étitesnent of loans at a lower
interest rate than that applied up to the settlémate and for loans of corresponding credit ratikgurthermore, discussion
included the aim of upgrading internal control @dares according to the respective advisory ses\o€¢he internationally
recognized chartered auditors.

2. 29.03 with the Financial Department for interaadit matters, approval of the results of 31.12%20mpairment of
assets, corporate planning and transformationpocate transactions as well as procedures on thep@oy's share capital
increase due to conversion of bonds into sharesammhdments of Article 5 of the Articles of Assdidia.

3. 25.04 with E & Y and the Financial Departmemt &pproval of the 3months results (1.01.2016-32@B5) and with
respect to their agreement for the services reddeyeE&Y with respect to the assessment, settingfrofctures, procedures
and areas on internal control procedures.

4. 22.07 with E & Y and the Financial Department tlee purpose of being informed by E&Y concernihg tesults and
recommendations regarding the improvement of sirast procedures and internal audit areas.

5. 27.09 with E & Y and the Financial Department &pproving the results of the 6-month period (:31.06) as well as
for internal audit issues.

6. 21.10 with the Financial Department as regardsricrease of Share Capital through the conversitmonds into shares.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Petmamistas, Mr. Konstantinos Lambrinopoulos, and M& loannidou.
Ms. Lito loannidou is the president of the Comndtte

B) Corporate Governance Committee:

The objective of the Corporate Governance Commitide monitor the code of corporate governanceptetbby the
Company, to monitor the implementation of intercaimpany policies as regards procedures, keepimpnupends in
terms of corporate governance systems and bestiggmas well as with respect to prevailing doneetiv and
recommendations to the Board for the amendment,awgment or adoption of new best practice behavior.

C) Strategic Planning and Investments Committee:

Furthermore, given that the Internal Policies oé tGompany provides for the possibility of estabhighother
Committees, the Board of Directors at its meetimg June 3,2016 decided to establish a Strategicnitignand
Investment committee.

The members of the Committee are the following:

- Ms. Pouskouri, President

- Ms. Sakellaridi member
- Mr. Lambrinopoulos member
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- Mr. Komondouros member
- Mr. Chachlakis member
- Mr. Elissaios, member

The Committee’s duties includes the formulatiorpadposals to the Board of Directors on strateggaés, in addition
to that the Committee is to internally establisé thanner by which it functions and is to maintéi@ minutes that will
be brought to the attention of the Board, if neagssunder the diligence of the President. In tleary2016 the
Committee convened 5 times.

According to the resolutions of March 29, 2016, Bward elected as members of the Governance CoemMs. Lito

loannidou, Ms.Christina Sakellaridi and Mr. Petfronistas. The Commission will set up a body rtawe and will

elect / the President.

Finally, there is the Group Executive Committee posed of executive directors and General Manadatsnhanage
operational issues.

3. General Assembly of the Shareholders

3.1 Manner of operation of the General Assembly anids basic Authorities

3.1.1The General Assembly is the supreme body of thegamy and has the right to decide on any comparttema
and all legal decisions are forced on all sharetrsléven those who may be absent or which mayrdisag

More specifically the General Assembly is exclukivesponsible to decide upon:

a) the amendments of the articles of association hvimiclude increases or decreases of the capitat shpart from the
cases which are mentioned in article six (6) paalgrof the Articles of Association and other cabes are enforced
by law.

b) the election of the members of the Board of Doestwith the exemption of paragraph 1 of articfeof the Articles

of Association and the appointment of the Auditors,

c) the approval of the annual financial statementh®fCompany,

d) the distribution of annual profits,

e) the issuance of loans with debentures as thesefareed to in articles 3a, 3b, and 3c of C.L.@1920.

f) the merger, extension of the duration or dissofutif the Company,

g) the appointment of liquidators,

h) the appointment of members of the first BoD, asest in paragraph 4 of article 16 of the Articlég\ssociation.

3.1.2The General Assembly convenes obligatorily atGoenpany’s offices or at the region of of anothemiuipality
which is located within the province in which theald office is located or in the region where thicefof the
exchange market is located, at least once in daahdial year and within 6 months at most from ¢imel of the year
(Ordinary Shareholders Meeting).

3.1.3 The General Assembly is always convened by the BoBn extraordinary meeting whenever it considers
necessary

3.1.4The Shareholder Meeting ordinary or extraordinaiyh the exception of the repeating Meetings dmbé¢ that
simulate it, must convene twenty (20) days at ldsfore its date including the non-working dayseTdate of
publication of the invitation and the day of then@eal Assembly are not calculated.

3.1.5The invitation to the Shareholder Meeting includédeast the location, the date and the time efrtieeting in
addition to the matters in the agenda in a clearmea
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3.1.6 The right to extension in any general assemblginary or extraordinary, in person or via a proxfions a
shareholder of the company or is a third partytag been appointed from the shareholder as a pvitlyany sort of
document even through a simple letter is possesgedch shareholder having at least one share.

3.1.7 The Shareholder Meeting has a quorum and duly al@ss in the matters of the agenda when in the said
shareholders who represent one fifth (1/5) at ledghe paid share capital are represented. If spadrum is not
achieved the General Assembly converges againentiw(20) days from the date of the meeting whiels wancelled
invited for that purpose ten (10) at least day$iexarThe said repetitive meeting duly convokes tfee matters of the
initial agenda no matter what percentage of theesbapital is represented.

A new invitation is not required if in the firgtvitation the date and location of the repetitiveeting is stated in the
provisional by law meetings, for the event of namiavement of a quorum.

3.1.8Exceptionally, when it concerns decisions regaydire alteration of the Company’s nationality, #teeration of
the purpose or object of the Company’s businessatteration of the Company’s shares to registettesljncrease of
the obligations of shareholders, the increase afesleapital, which is not based on the provisiohthe Articles of
Association in accordance with article 13 (paragramnd 2) of C.L 2190/1920 or as required by ttielas of the law
or through the capitalisation of reserves, the el@me of share capital, the alteration of the mdddistribution of
profits, the merging, dispersion, alteration, revief the company, extension of the company’s tefnoperation or
dissolution of the company service or renewal of Huthority to the Board of Directors for capitatriease in
accordance with article 13 of paragraph 1 of C.e®1920. The General Assembly has a quorum and arlyokes
when shareholders representing two thirds (2/3jhef paid share capital are represented. If suclicaumq is not
achieved, the General Assembly is invited and ikeyad according to the provisions of paragraph&ticle 35 of the
Articles of Association and forms a quorum and magion the matters of the initial agenda when astlé2 of the
paid-up share capital is represented. If such auwpmads still not achieved, the General Assemblynigted and is
gathered and meets upon the matters of the imigjahda when at least 1/5 of the paid-up shareatapitepresented. A
new invitation is not required if in the first ination the date and location of the repetitive nmgets stated in the
provisional by law meetings, for the event of nahiavement of a quorum.

3.1.9The President of the BoD or when he is hinderedawful replacer presides temporarily in the Gah&ssembly
and defines as secretary one of the Shareholdetseor proxies who are present, until the list baieholders is
certified by the General Assembly, who are entitiegarticipate in the said and elects the ordimagsiding office.
The Presiding Office is composed of the Presidewt the Secretary who also executes duties of vatdler. The
election is performed with a silent vote excepthé General assembly decides through a majorityelbetion of the
President with an open voting procedure.

3.1.10The discussions and the decisions of the Generséribly are restricted to the mattes of the agéftiaagenda
is drawn by the BoD and includes the proposalsi®@fBoD towards the Assembly. Discussions other thamatters in
the agenda are not permitted with the exceptioextfaordinary cases such as the modification ofiskaes of the
Board of Directors to the General Assembly or fatters intended for another General Assembly.

3.2 Shareholders Rights and manner of exercising éise

Each share carries all the rights and obligatiatsosit in law and in the Articles of Association the Company.
Ownership of a share automatically entails accegtdry the owner of the Articles of Association asfdthe legal
decisions taken by the competent bodies of the @omp

Each common share entitles the owner to one vote.

Shareholders’ liability is limited to the nominalue of the shares they hold.
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3.2.1. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS IRRESPECTIVE OF THE PERCENTAGE SHAREHOLDING

a. Right to attend and vote at the Shareholderee@d Meeting

Any person appearing in the capacity of shareholdethe Dematerialized Securities System files rgadaby
“Hellenic Stock Exchanges SA”, where company’s sigies are being held, is entitled to participatettee General
Meeting.

Shareholding capacity is evidenced by presentirgevant written certificate issued by the aforatimned entity, or
by direct online connection of our company withdsantity’s files. Shareholding capacity must beeetfifve at the
beginning of the fifth (5th) day (Date of Record)op to the date of the General Meeting, and thevemnt certificate
regarding the shareholding capacity must be reddiyeCompany no later than the third (3rd) day ptiothe date of
the General Meeting.

With regard to the 1st Reiterative Extraordinaryn@al Meeting, the shareholding capacity must liect¥e at the
beginning of the fourth (4th) day prior to the datdeduled for the 1st Reiterative Extraordinarnésal Meeting (1st
Reiterative Extraordinary General Meeting dateesford), and the relevant written or electronicifieate regarding
shareholding capacity must be received by companyater than the third (3rd) day prior to the dafethe 1st
Reiterative Extraordinary General Meeting.

The same provisions are applicable in the eveat2rid Reiterative Extraordinary General Meeting.

Any shareholder failing to comply with the provisgof article 28a of codified law 2190/1920 maytiggrate at the
General Meeting only upon its permission. Exeroisthese rights does not require blockage of thefieiary’s shares
or compliance with any other procedure restricting ability to sell and transfer them during theige: between the
Date of Record and the date of General Meeting.

A shareholder may attend the General Meeting atel @idher in person or by proxy. Each sharehold&y appoint up
to three (3) proxies. Legal entities may participat the General Meeting by appointing up to th{8endividuals as
proxies. However, if a shareholder holds shares ibompany, which appear in several securities attspaid
restriction will not prevent said shareholder frappointing different proxies in respect of the gisan each securities
account in relation with the General Meeting. Axyr@cting on behalf of several shareholders mag differently for
each shareholder.

A shareholder proxy must disclose to the compasjore the General Meeting begins, any specific ewdrich may
be useful to the shareholders in assessing theofidke proxy serving interests other than thosthefshareholder. In
the sense of this paragraph, a conflict of inteneay especially arise when a proxy: a) is a shadehaontrolling the
company or is another legal entity or an entitytoalled by that shareholder; b) is a member ofttbard of directors or
of the administration of the company or sharehotdmtrolling the company in general, or anothealegntity or an
entity controlled by a shareholder who controls ttmmpany; c¢) is an employee or auditor of the campar
shareholder controlling the company, or of anothgal entity or entity controlled by a shareholadro controls the
company; d) is spouse or first degree relativent® af the individuals referred to under (a) throgghabove.

The appointment and revocation of a shareholderypgomade in writing and notified to the Compamgdar the same
form, at least three (3) days prior to the dateedaled for the General Meeting.

The company will make available at its website (wmiveus.com) for the purpose of the General Assgrablorm
which may be used for the appointment of proxy Wwhian also be obtained from the Company’s officek Z10-
6698224, Investors Relations Department). The $aich must be submitted, duly completed and signgdthe
shareholder, to the Company’s Shareholders Seatidst km Koropiou-Varis Avenue, Koropi Attikis 18@ or by fax
to the number 210-6627407 at least three (3) deys o the date of the General Meeting. Benefiefmare responsible
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for confirming successful remittance and receiptpadxy documentation by the company, by calling tbkowing
numbers: 210-6698224.
The participation of the shareholders to the Garndeeting by electronic means is not yet available

b. Preference rights :In case of a share capital increase, when tha¢ase is not realized by contribution in kind, or
by the issue of convertible bonds, preference sighe granted to Shareholders of the Company atldte of issue,
proportionate to their holding in the existing shaapital.

According to the provisions of article 13 cl.10 0£2190/1920, preference rights can be limited oncefled, by
decision of the General Meeting, taken accordinth&provisions of articles 29 cl.3 and 31 cl.2thed L.2190/1920
(quorum of 2/3 of the issued share capital, majarit2/3 of the present or represented voting gpht

c. Right to collect dividends:According to the company’s Articles of Associatitie minimum dividend which must
be distributed each year by the Company is equah@éominimum annual dividend specified by law (&l 45 of
Codified Law 2190/1920) which according to Articke of Development Law 148/1967 is at least 35% af th
Company’s net profits, after all necessary withiradd are made in order to establish the statuesgmve.

Dividends are paid within 2 months from the datetted Ordinary General Assembly of Shareholders lwiiave
approved the Company’s annual financial statemehte place and method of payment is announced fite®
published in the press, the ATHEX Daily Officialstiand website and the Company website. Dividerfdshairemain
unclaimed for a period of five years from the datewhich they become payable may not be claimedaaadorfeited
to the State.

d. Rights in product of liquidation: On completion of the liquidation, the liquidatoeturn the contributions of the
Share-holders in accordance with the Articles afa®gation and distribute to them the balance frbenliquidation of
the Company’s assets in proportion to their shat@e paid-up capital of the Company.

e. Right to request information: Following a request of any shareholder, whichuisrsitted to the Company at least
five (5) full days prior to the Annual General Asday, the Board of Directors is obligated to pravidt the General
Assembly the specifically requested informationareling the affairs of the Company, to the extemit ttihese are
relevant for the proper evaluation of the issuetheragenda.

f. Right to request the recording of an accurate summarigsobpinion in the minutes of a shareholders gdnera
meeting.

g. Right to receive copies of the annual financial statesiantd reports from the Board of Directors and ausliten
(10) days prior to the Annual General Assembly.

h. Right to object the list of the attending and votingrshalders, which is prepared 24 hours before tlagetiolders
meeting, until the opening of the meeting.

i. Right to claim loss indemnity from the company for dasmmcurred due to a shareholders’ meeting decistdah

was not taken according to the law or the compaastisles of association or which was made by aligower from
the majority shareholders or which was taken bgmregal meeting illegally convoked or formed or douehe fact that
the requested information on the items of the agemere not provided ( this right must be exercisétiin three (3)
months from the date of the submission of the gdmaeeting minutes to the competent authority)

j- Right to claims against the members of the company’srd@é Directors in relation to the management & th
corporate affairs, if the damage incurred was dufeatud.
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3.2.2. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS REPRESENTING AT LEASTL.@0 OF THE SHARE CAPITAL

Right to request by a civil lawsuit the annulmehtacshareholders’ meeting decision. A decision mayannulled if
taken without giving the required information regigsl by the shareholders who are also requestengrthulment or
by abuse of right by the majority under the cowdisi of article 281 of the Civil Code.

3.2.3. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS REPRESENTING AT LEASPA/OF THE SHARE CAPITAL

a. Right to request from the President of the mgetonpostpone (only once) the taking of a decidigrthe general
meeting for all or some subjects of the agenda.riéeting continues within 30 days the latest.

b. Right to request from the company’s Board of Dioestthe convocation of an extraordinary Generar&iwders
meeting within 30 days.

c. Right to request from the Board of Directorsriolide in the agenda of the General Meeting whachdiready been
convoked any additional subjects including justifion and decision drafting, if the relevant requesommunicated
to the Board of Directors at least fifteen (15) sldgfore the meeting. The revised agenda is padishirteen (13)
days before the meeting, including justificatiordecision draft.

d. Right to request, until the 7th day before thar8holders Meeting, to be provided with the draftthe decisions on
the items of the agenda at least six (6) days bdfwr Meeting.

e. Right to request the announcement to the Anneaale@l Meeting the amounts which during the last years were
paid to each member of the Board of Directors errttanagers of the company, as well as any bepefiesse persons
for any reason or any contract between them anddhwany.

f. Right to request that the decision on any sulijétiie agenda of the general meeting is takerolxcall vote.

g. Right to oppose to the granting of permission lgydeneral meeting for the granting of guaranteattodr security in
favour of the persons which are subject to ar8a 2190/1920 as in force, under the conditiongkwhre stated in the
same article.

h. Right to file a petition to the Court of first imstce of the district where the company has itssteggd seat
requesting the company’s audit. The court ordezsatidit if it finds probable that certain acts &tel the provisions of
the law or the company’s articles of associatiothergeneral meeting’s decisions.

i. Right to object to given specific authorizatioorh the general meeting following the finalisatioh contracts
between the Company and persons which are sulgeabetconstraints of Article 23a of Law 2190/1920im force,

which exceed the limits of the Company's curresmigactions with third parties.

3.2.4. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS REPRESENTING AT LEASTA/OF THE SHARE CAPITAL

a. Right to request for a mandatory filing of claimgainst the members of the Board of Directorsrayirom the
management of the company’s affairs, within six therfrom the request. The request of the minotiglisbe taken
into account only if it is verified that the ap@itts had become shareholders at least three (3jhmbefore such
request was submitted.
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b. Right to oppose to the approval by special decisibrihe Ordinary General Meeting on the grantingaofy
remuneration or compensation to a Director (apannfthe remuneration on profits or fees in accocdawith a
specific relationship of employment or mandate).

3.2.5. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS REPRESENTING AT LEASH OF THE SHARE CAPITAL

a. Right to request from the Board of Directors pinevision of information to the General Meeting abthe course of
the company matters and the financial positiorhefdcompany.

b. Right to oppose to the company’s waiver of iirol for damages against members of the Board afcfirs or to
the settlement two years after such claim was bshedal, in the frame of the General Meeting conebteedecide upon

granting of consent on the above matters.

c. Right to petition the Court of First instance resfireg the audit of the company, if from the ovetedick record it is
credible to believe that the management is notoésed according to the rules of good and prudemagament.

3.2.6. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS REPRESENTING AT LEASB OF THE SHARE CAPITAL

Right to oppose to the approval by special decisibthe Shareholders General Meeting of a contoativeen the
company and the members of the Board of Directbespersons who exercise control over the comphey, spouses
and relatives by blood or by marriage up to thedtliegree, as well as the legal entities whichcargrolled by the
above persons. The above approval is not necessaase of acts that do not exceed the limits oferu transactions
of the company with third parties.

4. Internal Audit Operations and Risk Management

4.1 Main characteristics of the Internal Audit Operations

4.1.1. The Internal Audit of the company is conducted thg internal audit department according to the taudi
procedures as included in the internal CorporatgeCd Conduct.

It is noted that the audit on the base of which ridevant report is compiled, is performed in ademice with law
3016/2002, as is currently in force and especiallgccordance with the articles 7 and 8 of the gmetaw, as well as
Decision 5/204/2000 of the Hellenic Market Comndtes is valid following the alteration by the D#acn of the BoD

of the Hellenic Market Committee no 3/348/19.7.2005

4.1.2During the performance of the audit, the Interfatlit department, takes into account all necesbanks, files,
bank accounts and portfolios of the company andests for the complete and continuous cooperafionamagement
so that all the necessary information and dataliaired for the purpose of reaching conclusions doanot entalil
substantial inaccuracies. The audit does not irchuy evaluation of appropriate accounting priegpghat have been
adopted as well as estimations made by managemméinése are a matter of the statutory auditoreflbmpany.

4.1.3The audit scope includes the evaluation of thedbeo internal audit procedures. In any period uadelit several
audit scopes are selected, while the organizatiwh gperation of the BoD is continuously auditedwasd| as the
operation of two basic departments, that of ther&iwders and Investor Relations as well as theardeent of
Corporate Announcements that function in accordémd¢aw 3016/2002.
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4.2 Risk management concerning the preparation ofhe Company’s and Group’s financial statements
(Standalone and Consolidated)

The Group has installed and maintains an infragiracof information systems which secure the adeuraflection of
financial data. More specifically, the parent compand the companies which are located in Greeesatp via a
Central ERP system in which entries are recorddgtarsubsystems of sales, production, trackingainer accounting
management processes, on a daily basis.

In addition aPayroll Monitoring System and Human Resource Manag®ent systemoperates for the proper
presentation of the payroll costs.

Sales Management systemvhich aims at the detailed analysis per item, doent, sale customer, country etc for the
preparation of the weekly sales report which inekudistorical, budgeted, and actual data and a@sajthe deviations
at both the level of the parent company as wetiraa Group basis.

The production management systemvhich manages all fattening production units witthagly recording and audit of
all production processes.

Budgeted and actual monitoring management systenfor each company and for the consolidated datae Th
organisational structure in addition to the busine®mdel of each company has been coded for eaith gperations.
The entries of financial production and other da&a made on a cost center and business unit Gdmy. are audited
and analysed and are presented both on a weeklsnanthly basis.

Furthermorethere are security checks during the preparation ofinancial statements and financial reporting.

The basic areas in which the above checks operathea following:
Organisation — Allocation of Responsibilities

e The assignment of responsibilities and authoritgeaior management as well as to middle and loasel |
management ensures the enhancement of the perfoentdrthe System of Internal Audit, with a parallel
safeguarding of the necessary segregation of duties

e The appropriate staffing of the finance departmesth employees that have the necessary technical
knowledge and experience for the responsibilitiewliich they are assigned.

Accounting review procedures and preparation of fimncial statements

e The existence of common policies and methodologieshe accounting departments as these have been
announced to the subsidiaries of the Group, whaoreherms, accounting principles used by the Compad
its subsidiaries, guidance for the preparationraricial statements, financial reporting consolatagtc.

e Automatic audits and checks which are carried buvugh the various information systems while sgecia
approval is required for one-off non-recurringragtdinary transactions.

Safeguarding of assets
e The existence of specific checks for fixed assetgntories, cash and cash equivalents —cheque®sthed

assets of the company, such as for instance thgiqahysecurity of cash or stock and the stocktaking the
comparison of the counted quantity and those oatle®unting books.
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o Existence of an approved list of levels of authesitpresenting the assigned authorities grantedatous
company managers for performing specific transastior duties (for example payments, receipts, legal
transactions etc).

5. Additional information

5.1 Article 10, par. 1 of the Guidance 2004/2BK of the European Parliament and Committee of April21st 2004,
relevant to the public offerings for the titles ofcompanies that are negotiated in organized markets:

“The EU countries ensure that the companies whigh raferred to in article 1 of paragraph 1 publdgtailed
information with respect to the following) structure of their capital including titles whicheanot listed in an
organised market of an EU country and in speciaksg an indication of the different categoriestudres with the
rights and the obligations which are associatet edtch category of shares and the percentage titdieshare capital
which they represerit) all restrictions in the transfer of titles, suchthe restrictions in the ownership of titles o th
obligation to obtain approval from the company ramni other owners of titles, with the reservatioradfcle 46 of the
Guidance 2001/34/EK.

c) the significant direct or indirect participatiofincluding indirect investments via pyramid struefuas defined by
articles 85 of the Guidance 2001/34/EK

d) the owners of any type of title which grants spkaudit rights and description of the said rights

e) the audit mechanism which may possibly be proviftedin a system in which employees participategdamthe
condition that the audit rights are not exercisiedadly through the employees.

f) any type of restrictions in voting rights, suchtlas restrictions in the voting rights to ownersaddpecific percentage
or number of votes, the due dates of exercising/tiimg rights or systems to which along with tlemgeration of the
company, the financial rights which result from thikes and are separated from the titles.

g) agreements between shareholders which are knowlmeteompany and may possibly result in restrigion the
transfer of titles and/or voting rights as defilgdthe Guidance 2001/34/EK

h) regulations concerning the appointment and ogpient of board of directors members in additiotheoamendment
of the Articles of Association

i) each significant agreement to which the compamgigi@ates and which begins to be valid, is amenaleexpires in
the event of a change in the audit of the compaftigviing public acquisition proposal and the reswf such an
agreement except if, due to its nature, its disolsvould create serious damage to the companyg.e}@mption is not
valid when the company is explicitly obliged toaase similar information based on other legal nequents.

j) Each agreement which the company has contractifdtind members of the board of directors or wighpiersonnel,
for which a provision exists for indemnity in theeat of resignation or redundancy without a jushfe reason or their
employment has terminated as a result of the palhigiisition proposal”.

5.2 In relation to this information the company deéares the following:

(a) The structure of the share capital, including shares not listed for trading in an organized niaikeéSreece or
another member-state, reporting for each categbshares the rights and obligations related to ¢htegory and the
percentage of the total share capital that theeshafrthis category present.

The share capital of the Company as at 31.12.26idiated to Euro 87.449.210,40 composed of 2913487shares

of par value Euro 0,30 each and is fully paid ughe entire company’s shares are ordinary, regidtesith voting
rights, listed for trading on the Athens Exchangd have all the rights and the obligations presttiby the Law.
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(b) Restrictions in the transfer of the company’s shasuch as restrictions in holding of shares orothlegation in
obtaining prior approval from the company or otekareholders or by a Public or Administrative Auityowith the
reserve of the article 46 of the Guidance 2001/B4/E

The transfer of the company’s shares is made asteday Law and do not exist out of its ArticlesAsBociation
restrictions in their transfer.

(c) The company does not have direct or indirect pigdtions (including indirect investments pyramicusture) as
defined by articles 85 of the Guidance 2001/34/EK.

Furthermore, the significant direct or indirectfapation in the share capital and voting rightskee Company, based

on the last disclosure, as defined by articles Bltof L. 3556/2007 are as follows:

Surname Name Father’'s Number of % Type of participation
Name Shares Percentage

National Bank of 18.017.816 6,18% direct

Greece

Linnaeus Capital 16.160.734 5.54% T he company Linnaeus

Partners BV Capital Partners BV

indirectly holds 5,54%
with voting rights.
Linnaeus Capital
Partners BV was
controlled 100% by
Kahka Bendukidze who
died on 13.11.2014. As
at 26.02.2016 Linnaeus
Capital Partners BV
informed the company

that the sole hiers of the

deceased are Ms. Natalia

Zolotova and Anastasia

Goncharova
Eurobank 45.577.428 15,63% Direct
Alpha Bank 60.207.070 20,65% Direct
Piraeus Bank 94.766.854 32,50®irect and indirect

(d) Holders of any type of share granting special mdmights and description of relevant rights.
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Shares of the company, which grant special comigbits to their shareholders do not exist.

(e) Restrictions in voting rights such as restrictiamsoting rights to holders of certain percentaf¢he share capital
or to holders of certain number of voting rightsgahe time limits for the exercise of voting right

The Articles of Association do not provide for aestrictions in voting rights

(f) Shareholders Agreements, which are known to thepemy and entail restrictions in transfer of share®strictions
in exercise of voting rights.

The company is not aware of the existence of sbédelrs agreements, which entail restrictions in trensfer of its
shares or in the exercise of the voting rightsiagsrom its shares.

(g) Regulations with respect to the appointment apthoement of members of the Board of Directors @ameéndment
of the Articles of Association.

The rules provided by the company’s Articles ofo8isgion for appointment and replacement of membéiits Board
of Directors and amendment of its articles, dodiéfer to that provided by the provisions of c21190/1920.

(h) Ability of the Board of Directors or certain membeof the Board of Directors, to the issue new shaor
repurchase treasury shares.

A. The Board of Directors of the Company is allowedroceed with the issuance of new shares, faligwstipulated
authorization on the basis of the General Assembgcision in the following cases:

1)In accordance with article 13 paragraph 9 of cli9P/1920, as in force, and in execution of the slenitaken at the
Company’s Shareholders General Meeting held on®24@D6, which was listed in the Register of Comgsuoin 20-
06-2006, protocol number K2-9377, the three-yeaclsOption Plan granted to the Members of the BadrDirectors

and to the Company’s Management was approved. Bjadlgi, following the exercise of rights have baersted from
the participants in the program, a decision is takg the Board of Directors as regards the increakthe Company’s
share capital by an amount which corresponds toridiets that have been exercised and the issuahtteeaespective
new shares, in execution of the assumed liabilitiased on the Plan. Subsequent to this, the Bo&rDirectors

proceeds with the decision released, based onlariit of cL.2190/1920 in respect of the certifioatof the paid-up
share capital.

It is noted that due to the current economic decisif the capital market, the exercise of the abays in the third

year has not been made possible. Therefore, a padpwill be made to the General Meeting which waidlve a
declaratory character as regards the decision amitiaction of the right which was provided in vetaf the resolution
of the General Assembly dated 05.06.2006.

2) In accordance with article 3a of c.L 2190/192@, in force, and in execution of the decision ef A Reiteration
Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of the Compamlgich was listed in the Companies Register of theigtty of
Development on 9-5-2007 with protocol number K2&8Be issuance of the convertible bond loan irtmmon with
voting right shares with preference rights to oliaseholders of an amount of 19.995.575,10 Euro e@groved.
Specifically, following the exercise of the riglitconversion of debentures to shares, a Board aéddors decision is
taken to increase the Company’s share capital byammount which corresponds to the conversion of wlieives
depending upon the conversion requests, and theecsion ratio, and the corresponding issuance ef ctbmpany’s
new shares, in execution of the terms of the pmogoé the convertible bond loan as these are indoBubsequent to
the above, the Board of Directors proceeds withilseance of the decision, based on article 11.102490/1920 in
respect of the certified paid-up share capital.
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3) In accordance with Article 3a of L.2190 / 1928,in force, and in execution of the 04.05.2015gi@T of the Repeat
Annual General Meeting of shareholders, registeérethe General Commercial Register on262015 number no.
57022 and approved the issuance of a bond conleitito ordinary registered voting shares with prggive right of
the existing shareholders amounting to 29,466,288 Specifically, each time practicing bonds @msion rights to
shares following the Board of Directors to incredle share capital by the amount correspondinch®donversion of
bonds into shares according to the respective cmiwe applications and the current conversion ratémd
corresponding issue of new shares of the compamgupnt to the terms of the Program of the abovedbissue, as
applicable. Then the Board shall issue a decisioadcordance with Article 11 of L.2190 / 1920, ifgiig payment of
the share capital.

(i) Significant agreements of the company that iaréorce, amend or expire in case of a change éncbimpany’s
control following public motion and the results thie agreement, except if, due to its nature, tHdigation of the
agreement would cause serious loss in the compimy.exemption of publication of the agreement it eftective
when the obligation for publication arises fromeatprovisions.

In the event of a change in the company’s contthbWwing public proposal, there are no agreementhjch are in
force, are amended or expire.

(i) Agreements for indemnity compensation to merslidrthe Board of Directors or personnel, in casetirement of
dismissal without basic reason or end of term gagement due to public announcement.

There are no special agreements for indemnity coisgien to the members of the Board of Directorsogpersonnel,
specifically in case of retirement or dismissalheitit basic cause or termination of their servicetlogir engagement

due to public proposal.

The present Statement of Corporate Governancédseataintegral and special part of the Companysual Board of
Directors Report.
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Name

Aristeidis
Belles
Chairman

Nikolaos
Chaviaras
Vice President

Antonios
Chachlakis
CEO

Constantinos
Labrinopoulos,
Member of
BOD

Leto loannidou ,
Member of BOD

ATTACHMENT |

Company which participates
EUROMARE INSURANCE AGENCY S.A

PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A

KEGO AGRI S.A

SAFE ENERGY A.E. EXPOITATION OF MILD
FORMS OF ENERGY

TEMPLE TRADING

SUNNYLAND S.A. UTILISATION OF
PROPERTY

ENTERPRISE CLUB

GENERAL COUNCIL SEV

GREEK ALGERIAN COUNCIL SEV
VL VIPRO LTD (UK)

PREDOMAR S.L . (resigned on 31/12/2015)

PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A
NIREUS INTERNATIONAL LTD
MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD
KEY PARKING S.A.
WHITEFLEX LIMITED
CHAVIARAS N. & Co

SAFE ENERGY A.E. EXPOITATION OF MILD
FORMS OF ENERGY (until 30.08.2016)
PREDOMAR SL

KEGO AGRI S.A

PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A

EVOIKI SA DEVELOPMENT AQUACULTURE
DEVELOPMENT SA AQUACULTURE
ECHINADON NISON AND
AITVLOAKARNANIAS

SPRINT ADVERTISING SA
Hellenic Management Association (HMA)

ALBA Business School

Foundation for Economic and Industrial Research

ENTERPRISE CLUB
Being Essential SA

LAVIPHARM SA
LETO IOANNIDOU MONOPROSOPI LTD
CONSULTANTS

Position in the Company
President of the BOD and CEO

President of the BOD
President of the BOD

President of the BOD and CEO
Shareholder

President and CEO
Member of the BOD
Member of the BOD

President
Shareholder

President of the BOD

Vice President
Member of the BOD
Member of the BOD
Administrator
President
Administrator

Vice PresidenbD&puty CEO

Vice-President and CEO
Vice-President and CEO
CEO
President

President

President of the BOD
President of the BOD

Member of the BOD
Member of the BOD

A’ Vice-President

Executive Director

Member of BOD

Administrator
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Markos
Komondouros ,
Member of BOD

Petros Fronistas
Member of BOD

Christina
Sakellaridi,
Member of BOD

Anna Pouskouri
Member of BOD

ILIOGENESIS SA

VECTOR PARTNERS SA
NEW FINANCE FUND (TANEO)
AMKE

THRAKIS PLASTICS SA

SARAKAKOI SA

PRONOMIOUCHOS SA AND GENERAL
WAREHOUSE OF GREECE

KEGO AGRI SA

CH.G.SAKELLARIDI CONSULTANTS
PANELLINOS SYNDESMOS OF EXPORTS
CPB ASSET MANAGEMENT A.E.D.A.K

HELLAS CAPITAL LEASING SA

BODY OF ENTERPRISES NEON

Athens, 28 March 2017

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOD

THE CHAIRMAN

ARISTEIDIS ST. BELLES

Member of BOD

CEO
Member of the BOD
Deputy Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD
Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD
Owner
Member of the BOD
Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD

THE MEMBERS

An exact copy of the Minutes of the Megs of the Board of Directors
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ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS) Tel: +30 210 2886 000

EY Certified Auditors - Fax:+30 210 2886 905
Accountants S.A. ey.com

Building a better Chimarras 8B

working world 151 25 Maroussi, Greece

THIS REPORT HAS BEEN TRANSLATED FROM THE ORIGINZRSION IN GREEK

INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of “NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A”

Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financialt&ements

We have audited the accompanying separate and lmaied financial statements of NIREUS
AQUACULTURE S.A., which comprise the separate andsolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, the separate and consolidatechnstatement, comprehensive income, the stateshent
changes in equity and statement of cash flow fer year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory inforomati

Management's responsibility for the separate and awsolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpresentation of these separate and consolidated
financial statements in accordance with InternaioRinancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal controls asagement determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of separate and consolidated finargtatements that are free from material misstatgment
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesparate and consolidated financial statemestdban

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordanch thé International Standards of Auditing that hbeen
adopted by the Greek Law (GG/B'/2848/23.10.2012jose standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit toimhteasonable assurance whether the separate and
consolidated financial statements are free fromeratmisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaiklinevidence about the amounts and disclosurdisein
separate and consolidated financial statements . piduedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judigme
including the assessment of the risks of materigstatement of the separate and consolidated fimlanc
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ntpkimose risk assessments, the auditor considemait
control relevant to the entity’s preparation anil faesentation of the separate and consolidateghéiial
statements in order to design audit procedures dtetappropriate in the circumstances, but nottler
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiseré the entity’s internal control. An audit alscludes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting mdicised and the reasonableness of accounting &stima
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbymesentation of the separate and consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaimadfficient and appropriate to provide a basisdur
audit opinion.
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EY

Building a better
working world

Opinion

In our opinion the accompanying separate and cimtadeld financial statements present fairly in aditenial
respects the financial position of Nireus Aquaa@t8A and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 28idb,
their financial performance and cash flows forykar then ended in accordance with Internationaaial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EuropeamUni

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Taking into consideration that Management is resjiide for the preparation of the Board of Directors
Report and Corporate Governance Statement thancisided therein according to the provisions of
paragraph 5 article 2 of Law 436/2015 (part B),ne&e the following:

a)

b)

c)

The Board of Directors’ Report includes a Corpor@evernance Statement that contains the
information that is required by article 43bb of @Giedi Law 2190/1920.

In our opinion the Board of Directors’ Report haseb prepared in accordance with the legal
requirements of articles 43a and 107A and paragtajehand d) of article 43bb of the Codified Law
2190/1920 and the content of the Board of Direttaport is consistent with the accompanying
separate and consolidated financial statementhéoyear ended December 31, 2016.

Based on the knowledge we obtained from our addiileus Aquaculture SA and its environment,
we have not identified any material misstatemerhéoBoard of Directors’ report.

Athens, 29 March 2017

THE CERTIFIED AUDITOR ACCOUNTANT

PANAGIOTIS PAPAZOGLOU
S.0.E.L. R.N. 16631

ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS)
CERTIFIED AUDITORS ACCOUNTANTS S.A.

CHIMARRAS 8B MAROUSSI,

151 25,GREECE
COMPANY S.O.E.L. R.N. 107
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Statements of Profit or Loss

(Amounts in Euro)

Note
Fair value of biological assets at the beginning of the period
Purchases during the period
Sales during the period
Less: sale of subsidiaries
Fair value of biological assets at 31/12/2016
Gains resulting from changes in fair value of biological
assets at the end of the period 26
Sales of non-biological goods-merchandise and other inventories 10
Raw Material Consumption 27
Salaries & personnel expenses 11
Third party fees and benefits 12
Finance expenses 13
Finance income 13
Impairment of goodwill and investments in subsidiaries 20
Gain on measurement from refinancing of financial liabilities 34
Losses from measurement of financial assets at fair value 18,19
Losses fromsale of subsidiary companies 22
Depreciation 18,21,35
Other expenses 14
Other income 15
Results for the period before taxes
Income tax 16
Deferred income tax 16,23
Net profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent company
Non-controlling interests
Total
Earnings after taxes per share — basic in € 17
Earnings after taxes per share — diluted in € 17

GROUP

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

179.598.825 163.662.396
(1.136.253) (1.079.679)

170.421.005 157.573.038

= 295.437

180.624.862 179.598.825

170.310.789 172.725.225

27.391.186 27.826.774

(99.526.475)
(28.953.759)
(21.945.109)

(95.422.733)
(27.494.061)
(21.264.136)

(9.767.286) (13.438.929)
112.596 482.558
(57.633) -
750.664 57.186.865

(128.024) (1.246.026)
- (2.988.850)
(5.493.892) (6.199.963)
(26.486.015) (24.614.106)
1.652.127 2.505.269
7.859.169 68.057.887
(265.298) (139.800)
3.327.883 (7.862.105)
10.921.754 60.055.982
10.921.754 59.248.995
- 806.987
10.921.754 60.055.982
0,0385 0,5678
0,0337 04352

* Due to the reclassification of the amortization of grants from the figure "Other income"” offset to "Depreciation” Note

15,

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statement
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Statements of Profit or Loss

Note
Fair value of biological assets at the beginning of the period
Purchases during the period
Sales during the period
Fair value of biological assets at 31/12/2016
Gains resulting from changes in fair value of biological
assets at the end of the period 26
Sales of non-biological goods-merchandise and other inventories 10
Raw material consumption 27
Salaries & personnel expenses 11
Third party fees and benefits 12
Finance expenses 13
Finance income 13
Gain on measurement from refinancing of financial liabilities 34
Losses from measurement of financial assets at fair value 18,19
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 22
Depreciation 18,21,35
Other expenses 14
Other income 15
Results for the period before taxes
Deferred income tax 16,23
Net profit for the year

COMPANY

31/12/2016 31/12/2015
170.808.519 156.861.359
(1.136.253) (1.079.367)
157.240.985 148.771.671
172.405.271 170.808.519
157.701.484 161.639.464
17.802.949 16.649.520
(86.142.925) (81.135.572)
(26.832.742) (22.851.314)
(17.071.839) (21.645.310)
(9.548.284) (12.824.078)
325.743 605.610
750.664 57.186.865
(128.024) (1.246.026)
(1.100.000) (1.680.908)
(5.423.188) (5.573.281)
(25.197.193) (22.207.229)
1.372.931 2.078.958
6.509.576 68.996.699
3.471.644 (8.219.205)
9.981.220 60.777.494

* Due to the reclassification of the amortization of grants from the figure "Other income"” offset to "Depreciation” Note

15.

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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Statements of Other Comprehensive Income

(Amounts in Euro)

GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Net profit after taxes for the year 10.921.754 60.055.982
Other comprehensive income
Items which can be recycled through the income statement (I)
Currency translation differences fromthe consolidation of foreign subsidiaries 480.877
Transfer of foreign exchange reserve fromthe sale of subsidiaries 2.329.860
Effect fromthe change in the tax rate (Note 16) (1.079.444)
1.731.293
Items which cannot be recycled through the income statement (II)
Effect fromthe change in the tax rate (61.596)
Movement in the revaluation reserve of property plant & equipment (169.004) (1.851.068)
Less: Deferred Tax (Note 16) 43.904 536.810
(125.100) (1.375.854)
Remeasured actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (Note 11) (81.132) (130.406)
Less: Deferred Tax (Note 16, 23) 23.528 37.818
(57.604) (92.588)
(182.704) (1.468.442)
Other comprehensive income (I+II) (182.704) 262.851
Total Comprehensive Income after taxes 10.739.050 60.318.833
-Equity holders of the parent company 10.739.050 59.443.369
-Non-controlling interests = 875.463
10.739.050 60.318.832

The attached notes form an integral part of theseiriancial statement
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Statements of Other Comprehensive Income

COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Net profit after taxes for the year 9.981.220 60.777.494
Items which can be recycled through the income statement (I)
Effect fromthe change in the tax rate (Note 16) - (1.013.196)
- (1.013.196)
Items which cannot be recycled through the income statement (II)
Effect fromthe change in the tax rate - (61.596)
Movement in the revaluation reserve of property plant & equipment - (1.851.068)
Less: Deferred Tax (Note 16) - 536.810
- (1.375.854)
Remeasured actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (Note 11) (78.966) (128.110)
Less: Deferred Tax (Note 16,23) 22.900 37.152
(56.066) (90.958)
Other comprehensive income (I+II) (56.066) (2.480.008)
Total Comprehensive Income after tax 9.925.154 58.297.486

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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Statements of Financial Position

(Amounts in Euro)

GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

ASSETS Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 18 72.839.021 73.176.053 71.499.376 71.424.322
Investment property 19 3.948.906 4.076.930 3.948.906 4.076.930
Goodwill 20 30.298.997 30.356.630 29.968.825 29.968.825
Intangible assets 21 15.078.691 15.052.109 12.873.622 12.846.961
Investments in subsidiaries 22 = = 12.732.214 14.832.214
Deferred income tax assets 23 527.875 572.781 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 125.455 139.445 112.340 126.340
Other long-term receivables 25 427.048 283.430 402.387 258.769
Biological assets 26 65.870.495 60.828.477 63.760.470 59.441.639

189.116.488 184.485.855 195.298.140 192.976.000
Current assets
Biological assets 26 114.754.367 118.770.348 108.644.801 111.366.880
Inventories 27 10.459.431 9.488.572 7.941.754 7.485.510
Trade and other receivables 28 37.165.355 33.163.868 33.289.804 29.868.885
Other receivables 29 9.147.369 7.777.747 8.976.473 7.437.739
Other current assets 30 740.160 1.763.606 724.335 1.752.021
Restricted cash 31 4.236.567 6.984.229 4.236.567 6.984.229
Cash and cash equivalents 32 8.754.791 8.777.477 6.993.008 7.242.741

185.258.040 186.725.847 170.806.742 172.138.005
Total Assets 374.374.528 371.211.702 366.104.882 365.114.005
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued Share capital 33 87.449.210 77.709.146 87.449.210 77.709.146
Less: Treasury shares 33 (47.271) (47.271) (47.271) (47.271)
Share premium 33 36.769.486 36.840.284 36.769.486 36.840.284
Fair value reserves 33 37.098.494 37.244.726 36.755.808 36.776.940
Other capital reserves 33 75.281.788 84.814.135 75.517.776 85.048.585
Retained earnings (104.429.570) (115.372.456) (102.427.196) (112.429.548)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company 132.122.137 121.188.564 134.017.813 123.898.136
Non-controlling interests - - - -
Total Equity 132.122.137 121.188.564 134.017.813 123.898.136
Non-current liabilities
Long-term interest bearing loans borrowings 34 149.504.830 124.906.386 149.323.781 124.648.087
Deferred income tax liabilities 23 8.637.067 12.077.288 7.609.525 11.104.069
Net Employee defined Benefit obligations 11 2.771.065 2.608.348 2.662.257 2.508.226
Government grants 35 6.628.938 5.964.049 6.314.723 5.579.803
Other non-current liabilities 36 982.383 1.492.249 982.383 1.492.249
Provisions 37 989.796 2.879.403 855.711 2.752.478
Total non-current liabilities 169.514.079 149.927.723 167.748.380 148.084.912
Current liabilities
Trade & other payables 38 45.874.750 44.589.006 39.449.532 40.884.679
Short-terminterest bearing loan borrowings 34 1.627.158 10.281.264 1.491.828 7.170.369
Current portion of long-term financial liabilities 34 16.572.919 33.718.861 16.495.669 33.643.487
Other current liabilities 39 8.663.485 11.506.284 7.901.660 11.432.422
Total current liabilities 72.738.312 100.095.415 65.338.689 93.130.957
Total Liabilities 242.252.391 250.023.138 233.087.069 241.215.869
Total Equity and Liabilities 374.374.528 371.211.702 367.104.882 365.114.005

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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Statements of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(Amounts in Euro)

Foreign
Asset . .
Issuedlshare HCEEIR Share Premium Revaluation Currem.:y Other Reserves Retained Earnings C.ontrolllng Non.-controllmg Total
Capital Shares Translation interests interests
Reserve
Reserve
Balance of equity as at 1 January 2015 85.354.185 (47.271) 36.248.476 30.809.596 (2.739.378) 10.245.123 (108.684.369) 51.186.362 (7.785.751) 43.400.611
Movement in equity for the year
Profit after taxes ® ° 59.248.995 59.248.995 806.987 60.055.982
Other comprehensive income = = 6.325 (3.394.139) 2.739.378 (92.588) 935.398 194.374 68.476 262.850
Total comprehensive income after taxes - - 6.325 (3.394.139) 2.739.378 (92.588) 60.184.393 59.443.369 875.463 © 60.318.832
Acquisition of non-controliing interests - - - - - - (1.029.592) (1.029.592) (320.408) (1.350.000)
;E::)rtza;g)ln share capital due to capitalisation of loan borrowings 19.533.333 _ (946.290) _ _ _ _ 18.587.043 _ 18.587.043
Transfer of share capital to retained earnings (Note 33) 39.066.667 - - - - - (39.066.667) - - -
Reduction in share capital due to the decrease in the par value of (66.245.039) _ _ _ _ 66.245.039 _ _ _ _
shares (Note 33)
Effect fromthe merger by absorption of the subsidiary company - - 1.531.773 10.505.863 - 10.240.161 (29.871.519) (7.593.722) 7.494.573 (99.149)
Approved dividends from subsidiaries to non-controlling interests ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° (124.106) (124.106)
Transfer of non-controlling interests to retained earnings ® ° ° ® ® ® 595.104 595.104 (595.104) =
Net-off of retained earnings with reserves - - - - - (633.652) 633.652 - - -
Transfer of sale of subsidiaries - - - (676.594) - (1.189.948) 1.866.542 - - -
Other changes - - - - - - - - 455.333 455.333
Total ol (7.645.039) " = 591.808 6.435.130 2.739.378 74.569.012 (6.688.087) 70.002.202 7.785.751 77.787.953
Balance of equity as at 31 December 2015 77.709.146  (47.271) 36.840.284 37.244.726 - 84.814.135 (115.372.456) 121.188.564 - 121.188.564
Movement in equity for the year
Profit after taxes = = = = = = 10.921.754 10.921.754 = 10.921.754
Other comprehensive income - - - (146.232) - (57.604) 21.132 (182.704) - (182.704)
Total comprehensive income after taxes - - - (146.232) - (57.604) 10.942.886 © 10.739.050 - 7 10.739.050
Increase in share capital due to merger of subsidairy (Note 33) 9.474.743 = (79.642) = = (9.474.743) = (79.642) = (79.642)
Increases in share capital resulting from the convertible bond loan 265.321 _ 8.844 _ _ _ _ 274.165 _ 274.165
(Note 33)
Total 9.740.064 = (70.798) (146.232) = (9.532.347) 10.942.886 10.933.573 = 10.933.573
Balance of equity as at 31 December 2016 87.449.210 - 36.769.486  37.098.494 75.281.788 104.429.570 132.122.137 132.122.137

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity of the Parent Company

(Amounts in Euro)

Balance of equity as at 1 January 2015

Movement in Net equity for the year

Profit after taxes

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income after taxes

Increase in share capital from the conversion of the convertible
bond loan

Net off of retained earnings with reserves

Transfer of share capital to retained earnings (Note 33)
Reduction in share capital due to the decrease in the par value of
shares

Effect from the merger through absorption of the subsidiary

company
Total recognised Income/(Expense) for the period

Balance of equity as at 31 December 2015

Movement in Net equity for the year
Profit after taxes
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income after taxes

Increase in share capital due to merger of subsidairy (Note 33)

Increase in share capital with reserves (Note 33)
Total

Balance of equity as at 31 December 2016

Share Capital Treasury Share Premium Asset Revaluation Other Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Shares Reserve
85.354.185 (47.271) 36.248.476 29.096.988 9.057.838 (99.538.359) 60.171.857
- - - - - 60.777.494 60.777.494
- - 6.325 (3.328.845) (90.958) 933.470 (2.480.008)
- - 6.325 (3.328.845) (90.958) 61.710.964 58.297.486
19.533.333 _ (946.290) 18.587.043
- - - - (633.652) 633.652 -
39.066.667 - - - - (39.066.667) -
(66.245.039) - - - 66.245.039 - _

- - 1.531.773 11.008.797 10.470.318 (36.169.138) (13.158.250)
(7.645.039) - 591.808 7.679.952 75.990.747 (12.891.189) 63.726.279
77.709.146 (47.271) 36.840.284 36.776.940 85.048.585 (112.429.548) 123.898.136

- - - - - 9.981.220 9.981.220
- - - (21.132) (56.066) 21.132 (56.066)
- - - (21.132) (56.066) 10.002.352 9.925.154
9.474.743 - (79.642) - (9.474.743) - (79.642)
265.321 - 8.844 N - - 274.165
9.740.064 - (70.798) (21.132) (9.530.809) 10.002.352 10.119.677
87.449.210 (47.271) 36.769.486 36.755.808 75.517.776 (102.427.196) 134.017.813

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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Statements of Cash Flow

(Amounts in Euro)

GROUP COMPANY

Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations 7.859.169 68.057.887 6.509.576 68.996.699
Plus/less adjustments for:
Depreciation charge of property plant and equipment 18,21 6.286.513 6.896.573 6.145.778 6.189.958
Provisions (1.885.800) 947.575 (1.723.475) 282.904
Government Grants 35 (792.621) (696.610) (722.590) (616.677)
Provisions for retirement benefit obligations 162.717 251.729 154.031 237.812
Portfolio measurement = (406.015) - (406.015)
Dividends = = (230.633) (124.106)
Finance income 13 (112.596) (76.543) (95.110) (75.489)
Gain on measurement from refinancing of financial liabilities 34 (750.664) (57.186.865) (750.664) (57.186.865)
Change in the fair value of biological assets 26 4.866.583 (11.922.239) 4.366.036 (11.262.045)
(Profit)/Loss from the sale of subsidiaries - 2.988.850 - -
Other non-cash items 140.470 1.441.985 1.148.700 3.021.753
Gains/(loss) from sale of property, plant and equipment-investments (128.664) 24.242 (126.457) 27.482
Finance costs 13 9.715.327 13.387.119 9.498.323 12.774.373
Plus/less adjustments of working capital to net cash or
related to operating activities:
Decrease of inventories (6.863.480) (3.659.395) (6.419.032) (2.617.748)
Increase of receivables (4.529.894) (2.158.063) (4.018.246) 2.554.230
(Decrease)/increase of payable accounts (except Banks) (1.470.524) (2.006.764) (4.981.153) (3.728.779)
Less: -
Interest expense and similar charges paid (7.394.621) (9.701.016) (7.177.616) (9.356.709)
Income tax paid (332.276) (250.515) - -
Cash flows from operating activities (a) 4.769.639 5.931.935 1.577.468 8.710.778
Cash flows from /(used in) operating activities from sold
subsidiaries(a) - (50.598) - -
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities Total S(a) 4.769.639 5.881.337 1.577.468 8.710.778
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries and other investments = (1.418.711) - (1.417.911)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 14.000 4.149.802 14.000 1.919.436
Proceeds fromsale of other investments ° 1.210 - 1.210
:;J;thl:ses of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and of intangible 1821 (6.587.727) (6.910.994) (6.642.820) (6.830.417)
Proceeds fromdisposition of PPE and intangible assets 199.781 22.993 186.541 6.200
Proceeds from Government grants 1.457.510 - 1.457.510 -
Interest received 112.594 76.543 95.110 75.489
Dividends received - - - 124.106
Cash flows/(used in) investing activities (b) (4.803.842) (4.079.157) (4.889.659) (6.121.887)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities on sold
subsidiaries(b) - 2.940 - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities Total S(b) (4.803.842) (4.076.217) (4.889.659) (6.121.887)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from share capital increase / Conversion of bonds 274.166 - 274.166
Expenses related to the issue of shares (79.642) (946.290) (79.642) (946.290)
Proceeds fromthe refinancing of bank loans 20.888.465 82.084.142 20.888.465 82.084.142
Proceeds from other issued/raised short-term loans 11.832.017 23.097.754 11.832.000 21.213.923
Repayments due to the refinancing of loans (21.080.688) (74.815.894) (21.080.688) (74.815.894)
Repayments of other short-tem loans (14.570.462) (23.555.428) (11.519.505) (22.233.274)
Restricted cash 2.747.662 (2.738.865) 2.747.662 (2.738.865)
Repayments of financial instruments = (1.899.230) - (1.899.230)
Dividends paid = (111.695) - -
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (c) 11.518 7 1.114.494 3.062.458 664.512
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities on sold subsidiaries(c) 67.152 - -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities Total S(c) 11.518 1.181.646 3.062.458 664.512
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the period
Total of S(a) + S(b) + S(c) (22.686) 2.986.766 (249.733) 3.253.403
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in
foreign currencies - 349.181 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 8.777.477 5.441.530 7.242.741 3.685.215
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period of the
merged company 304.123
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8.754.791 8.777.477 6.993.008 7.242.741

The attached notes form an integral part of theseriancial statements
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1. Notes to the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements

1.1 General Information

The company “NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA” (hereinafteretiCompany”) is a company (societe anonyme) and a
parent company of the group “NIREUS AQUACULTURE'eteinafter the “Group”). The structure of the Graupl

the subsidiary companies are presented in Notetkeofinancial statements. The registered officéhef company is
situated at Koropi-Attica, Dimokritou Street, Pofdace. The company’s web site_is www.nireus.cdire company
was established in 1988 in Chios and in 1995 vedsdion the Athens Stock Exchange.

1.2 Nature of operations

The Company and the subsidiary companies of theisaoe involved in a range of activities in the agplture sector.

In particular, the main activities of the Grouplimes the production of juveniles, and fish as wsllithe trading and
distribution of various products in domestic anttinational markets, the production of equipmewhsas nets, cages
etc. for fish farming units, the production anddeaof fish feed, the production and trade of prsedsfish, and

production and sale of stock & aviculture products.

1.3 Main Developments

1.3.1 Removal of the trading of NIREUS AQUACULTURESA shares from the “under surveillance” category

The Stock Markets Steering Committee of the Atietoek Exchange during its session dated on 11 Bepdl 2016,
approved the removal of the shares' trading froen“tinder Surveillance” category, based on the tiaat there are no
further reasons for the placement of the comparthieraforementioned category. The trading of thepgany’s shares
in the Main Market of the Athens Stock Exchangeffective as of 12 February, 2016.

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated and separate financial statenmsntst 31 December 2016 have been prepared in acwardvith
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}hese have been issued by the Internationaluitioy Standards
Board (IASB) and have been adopted by the Europkson until December 31 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have begraped on a going concern basis and in accordartbettve historical
cost method apart from certain specific financededs and liabilities which are stated at fair gadnd as presented in
Note 44 of the annual financial statements. Thesclisiated financial statements are stated in Euro.

The consolidated financial statements are preséntedros.

The consolidated financial statements present coabpafinancial information in relation to the piews year.

The preparation of the annual of financial stateimen conformity with IFRS requires the use of aartcritical
accounting estimates. It also requires managenseekércise its judgment in the process of applyiregaccounting
policies of the Company and the Group. These dibiave been consistently applied to all yearsepted and which
are analysed in Note 3. Areas which involve a higlegree of judgment or complexity from managementareas
where assumptions and estimates are significathiet@eparate and consolidated financial statenasatstated in Note
5.
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The Financial Statements as at 31 December 201i6r gear 31 December 2015 data included), have lgproved
by the company’'s Board of Directors on March 28120According to the provisions of the Capital Mark
Commission, amendments to the financial statemamaot permitted following their approval. Authreidl changes
are made only by the Shareholders during the OrgliAanual Shareholders Meeting.

2.2 Going Concern

Current Economic Developments in Greece

In the context of the economic environment whicbaased by the continuous imposition of variougricins on

capital movements, risks and uncertainty arisetdymessures imposed on the financial system ahticdfinances.

The management of the Group and the Company exdntiveeconditions raised by these developmentsaenGreek
economy, and considering factors such as the Gsofgpéign export sales which approximate 80%, theenit and
expected customer base, the profitability and ¢asts of the Group and the Company, it assessedniaignificant

impact is expected to result on the business #&gtifimancial position and results of the Group #mel Company.

Furthermore, current developments as regards tlitedUKingdom’s (U.K’s) referendum to leave the Buean Union
is not anticipated to significantly affect the ritswf the Company and the Group, given that saleke U.K amount to
approximately 5% and 6% of total sales of the Camypend the Group respectively, while purchasesof materials

from the above country are insignificant as comgaoethe total Group purchases.

Restructuring of the Bond loans

As referred to in the financial statements of themyear 31.12.2015, on 02.10.2015 the capitabpatf part of the
existing loans totalling € 58,6 million was comglét From the above agreements and on 16.10.201&lamount of
€ 82,1 million was disbursed.

Subsequent to the above and following the compiaifche merger by absorption (22-12-2015) of NIREhith
SEAFARM IONIAN SA, an amount of € 20,9 million réilag to the refinancing of the loans of SEAFARM |G
SA.

Furthermore, the management of the Company an@tbep considers that:

-The Group’s operations as regards aquacultuteféisd and aviculture and stock breeding are snootinducted
given that a further increase in sales is expected.

-The Group and the Company have a strong custoaser. b

-The Group and the Company have biological astetdjquidation of which can immediately be madasiéle.

-The unstable economic environment is not expectediféat the activity and results of the Group amel Company
taking into account the extroversion and the expuosiness of the Group.
-The Group and the Company have positive cash ffoove operating activities which are used for thesth

operation of their businesses.
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In light of the above, following the successful qietion of the restructuring of the Company’s lgaansd subsequent
to the merger by absorption of SEAFARM IONIAN SAetnormal continuation on a going concern baststti the

Company and the Group has been ensured.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The attached Group financial statements comprisefittancial statements of the Parent Company intiaddto the
consolidated financial statements of the Group imdubsidiaries on which the Parent Company hasathility to

exercise control on 31 December 2016.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposedasrrights, to variate returns from its involvemerth the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns throitggbower over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if andly if the Group has:
o Power over the investee (i.e existing rights thee @ the current ability to direct the relevawctisities of the
investee)
e Exposure, or rights, to variate returns from itgirement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investeeftec its returns

When the Group has less than the majority of thagaights or similar rights of an investee, theo@ considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whitias power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other votddisl of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting figh

The Group reassesses whether or not it controisvastee if facts and circumstances indicate thextet are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Clifestion of a subsidiary begins when the Group inistaontrol over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losesotoithe subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, incormed expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the yearincluded in the statement of comprehensivenreciom the date

the Group gains control until the date the Grougses to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprgkie income (OCI) are attributed to the equitydeos of the
parent of the Group and to non-controlling intesesten if this results in the non-controlling netsts having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made tiintincial statements of subsidiaries to bringrthecounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting madis.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, @mee, expenses and cash flows relating to transecti@tween the

members of the Group are eliminated in full on cdidstion.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiafthout a loss in control, is accounted for agguity transaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary,etetognizes the related assets (including gooduigibilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equityle any resultant gain or loss is recognizegrifit or loss.
All investments are initially recognized at costldhereafter adjusted for accumulated impairmesgds.
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3. Summary of Significant accounting policies

The main accounting policies applied in the prefiamaof the consolidated financial statements amel $eparate
financial statements of the parent are set outvhelo

3.1 Segment Information

A business segment is a group of assets and apesatngaged in providing products or services d@hatsubject to
risks and returns that are different from thosetber business segments. In accordance with IFRBe8Group uses
the management approach to segment informatioarrhation is based on that which management usemailty for
evaluating the performance of operating segmentisadlocating resources to those segments. The segmaee the
following: Aquaculture, Fishfeed and Aviculture-skbreeding.

3.2 Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using tlygisition method. The cost of acquisition is meaduas the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, medsateacquisition date fair value and the amountany non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each heiss combination, the acquirer measures the namediarg interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the praposte share of the acquiree’s identifiable ne¢tsss

Acquisition costs incurred are expensed and induitiethe profit or loss statement. When the Groopu&es a
business, it assesses the financial assets aiiltiBalassumed for the appropriate classificatol assessment of their
fair values in accordance with the contractual termconomic circumstances and pertinent conditemsat the
acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in statifEsacquisition date fair value of the acquirersviously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fairevalithe acquisition date through profit or loss.

The financial statements of the subsidiary comaare prepared for the same accounting periodig®tithe parent
company and where deemed necessary adjustmentsaale in order that the accounting policies be atesi with
those of the Company and the Group.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred tey acquirer will be recognized at fair value at doguisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the casingonsideration which is deemed to be an asdathility, will be
recognized in accordance with IAS 39 either in prof loss or as a change to other comprehensivenie. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scop®A& 39 it is measured in accordance with the appate standard.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being theess of the aggregate of the consideration tranesfemd the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests, and angvipus interest held, over the net identifiablseds acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the nesets acquired is in excess of the aggregate @asioh transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly idedtdil the assets acquired and all the liabiliissumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts tcbgnized at the acquisition date. If the re-asseasstill results in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired the aggregate consideration transferred, thengain is
recognized in profit and loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured ebst less any accumulated impairment losses. Foipthipose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a businesmbination is, from the acquisition date, allechto each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expecté@dnefit from the combination, irrespective of wregtbther assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to thasiésu
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Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating @amtl part of the operation within that unit is dised of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposedisofincluded in the carrying amount of the operatiohen
determining the gain or loss on disposal of theragien. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstansameasured based
on the relative values of the operation disposeahadfthe portion of the cash-generating unit retin

3.3 Investment in Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group hasifgiant influence but which does not exercisetomnover their
financial and business strategies. Significantuifice is substantiated when the Group has a dgharticipate in the
financial and strategic decision making, withouhatving the right to enact these. Investments soa@ates on which
significant influence is exercised are accountedifing the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in the@asmis carried in the statement of financial posiat cost plus post
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of neetassf the associate until significant influenceasEs to exist.
Furthermore, the cost of the investment is adjusiigld any potential impairment loss. When the Igss#ributed to the
Group exceed the carrying amount of the investming, carrying amount is reduced to zero without &myher
recognition of losses, except if the Group hashdistzed liabilities or has made payments in refatio the associate.
The proportion of goodwill which relates to eacts@sate company is included in the carrying amoafnthe
investment and is not tested for impairment indiailtly.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the prdiparof the Group’s investment in the results & #ssociate company.
Any change in other comprehensive income of thongestees is presented as part of the Group’s otiveprehensive
income. In the event that there is a change whidtirectly recognized in the associate companytstggthe Group
recognizes the proportion of its investment in ¢hebanges and reflects these in Equity. Unrealigéds and losses
arising from transactions between the Group anddtciate companies are eliminated to the extetiteoGroup’s
share in the associates. The Financial Stateméats associate are prepared for the same accoyrgingd as those of
the parent company and appropriate changes are maoleler to ensure consistency with those of tleu@ and
Company when considered necessary.

3.4 Biological Assets and Agricultural Activity

Agricultural activity refers to an entity’s managemt of the biological transformation of biologiGsets for sale, into
agricultural produce, or into additional biologieesets.

Biological assets are defined as animals and fisitclware under growth and are classified as suththe point in
time of harvest of the entity’'s biological assegsyen that they are intended for sale, process amsumption.
Management’s right to biological assets can arigmfownership or from another type of legal action.

With the definition “Agricultural Activity” we refe to a diverse range of activities, which have aertcommon
features such as:

v' Capability of change, as for example, living oligars (animals and fish) that are capable of biclalgi
transformation.

v' Management of change, creating, reinforcing deast stabilizing conditions necessary for the tigment of the
living organism.

v Measurement of change, that is the difference ditoabout by biological transformation so much umliy
(maturity, fat cover) as also in quantity (weightogeny, etc.) of the entity’s biological assets.

The Group and Company should recognise a biologiesgt or agricultural produce when and only when:

1) They control the asset as a result of past events.
2) Itis probable that future economic benefits aisged with the asset will flow into the Group aheé Company.

70



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

3) The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
4) A biological asset is measured upon initial reétigm and at each balance sheet date at its faievass costs to sell
except from the case where the fair value cannohéasured reliably.

The Group and company, following initial recognitiof the biological assets measures these at a#rfeguent
balance sheet date at fair value less costs to Isebuch a case where the biological asset cabaomeasured
accurately it is remeasured at its cost less aoyraualated depreciation and any accumulated impairtosses.

A gain or loss arising on initial recognition obalogical asset at fair value less costs to sadl fiom a change in fair
value less costs to sell of a biological assehdtuded in profit or loss for the period in whidharises.Gain may also
arise on initial recognition of biological asseds,for example, at the birth of a living organism.

Biological assets are categorized into subcategatigpending on the stage of maturity in order that users of
financial statements be informed about the timihGuture cash flows that are expected to inflovitte Group and the

Company from the biological resources.

Biological assets consist of mature, immature fijsiieniles and broodstock that are measured inrdacce with 1AS
41 and IFRS 13 as follows:

Juveniles:
Juveniles are counted in pieces, which arise frapeeted quantity net of statistically arisen matyalT his quantity is
physically verified with the quantity of sold juviés plus the quantity consumed for the productibiresh fish of the

Company.

Juveniles are measured at fair value which redidta the estimated selling prices less any estichétensportation
costs.

Mature and immature fish:

The total biomass results from the following:

(a) Measuring the biomass depending on the consuatetidnd the prevailing temperature and the typbefish

(b) The average weight per fish is calculated basesompling testing per cage. The average weightipliet by the
number of fish, determines the total fish biomass/igled that each fish cage contains a specifiegmay and fish
size.

(c) The Company fully measures and compares any difters arising from the actual data of cages whieh a

harvested with the data of the above estimatiomfigrnecessary amendments.

Mature fish:

The mature fish are measured at fair value. Dubddact that there is no active market for fistnirthe Mediterranean
aquaculture (and even more so for live fish) irpitssent location and condition, the obligatiorthaf valuation of these
fish in accordance with IAS 41 and IFRS 13 leadsht use of a estimated fair value of the fish lom basis of a
hypothetical market and on the basis of Hierarchiyevel 2 fair value, considering the present laatnd condition
of the biological assets.

The estimated fair value of the fish populatiomrath reporting date is based on various factoct as considerations
for the hypothetical main market, the representagigrticipants in this market, what the highest best use of these
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assets are at the reporting date, the expecteddpéridate of harvesting, and the prevailing obdde/aand
representative market prices for the final prodbetvested fish).

Immature fish:

Regarding immature fish, biomass is measured, basttiodology which is defined by Level 3 of ther faalue
hierarchy, at fair value less costs to sell baseduture cash flow calculations and based on tke s maturation of
each lot, minus part of the estimated gross prefifgected to realised during the specified hamgsgieriod.

Broodstock:

Broodstock is measured at cost less any impairtossés .

Critical accounting estimates and judgments thé&cafthe valuation of biological assets are reférte note 5.J.
3.5 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements of the Group and the Compare presented in Euros, which is the parent Goryip
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated mdunctional currency using the exchange rategaiieg at the dates
of the transactions. At each reporting date at lvtie financial statements are prepared all mopetreivables and
liabilities in foreign currency are translated iroro in accordance with the prevailing exchande e the balance
sheet date and foreign exchange differences aoeded in the income statement of the year.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currewbych are carried at historical cost are translatedccordance
with the exchange rate at the date of acquisition-monetary items which are measured at the faine’s foreign
currency are translated by using the exchangeatatee date of designation of the fair value. Gaing losses resulting
from the translation of the non-monetary itemsraagnized in the same manner as gains and lassaglie change
in the fair value of these items.

During the consolidation assets and liabilitiesfofeign entities (foreign subsidiaries) are trateslato the Euro
currency by using the exchange rate which prewaithe reporting date of the financial statementstae results of the
year are translated busing the rate which prewaitee date of transaction. The exchange diffeemgdgch result from
the conversion for consolidation purposes are piEmbin the foreign currency translation reservea asparate item in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and areféraed in the Income Statement during the saleheffbreign
operation.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

All owner occupied property plant and equipmengrafrom land, , construction in progress, buildinghachinery and
technical installations as well as floating meaars, presented in the financial statements at esstthe accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses)yif

Cost includes all directly attributable expenditimeurred for the acquisition of the asset, in &ddito the replacement
cost of parts of the fixed assets in addition ®lbrrowing cost provided that the capitalizatiotecia are met.

Self-constructed property plant and equipment cisapan addition to the cost of the assets at valkésh include
direct personnel costs, those which contributeh® d¢onstruction (corresponding social contributexpenses), raw
material costs and other general expenses.

Subsequent costs and borrowing costs are inclutlédei asset’'s carrying amount or recognized asparate asset
provided that the capitalization criteria are met.
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All repairs and maintenance costs are chargededntome statement during the financial period hicl they are
incurred.

Land and Buildings in addition to machinery, tedahiinstallations and floating means are measutefdiavalue
reduced by accumulated depreciation and accumulatpdirment loss, if any. Measurement of fair vabezrurs at
frequent intervals so as to ensure that the fdirevaf an adjusted asset does not significantfigdifom its fair value.

A revaluation surplus which results from the rewtion of land, buildings, technical installationsdéloating means is
recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revanasurplus in equity. However, to the extent thateverses a
revaluation deficit or impairment loss of the saasset (as referred to in Note 3.9) previously racxagl in profit or
loss, the increase is recognized in profit and.léseevaluation deficit is recognized in the stagatnof profit or loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existingpkis on the same asset recognized in the revaluetserve.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation wesdo retained earnings is made for the differebeéween

depreciation based on the revalued carrying amotithe asset and depreciation based in the assegimal cost.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at theahgation date is eliminated against the grossyaagramount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the rel/almeunt of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluatiserve relating
to the particular asset being sold is transferoetained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-limethod over its estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Average 50 years

Other Installations and equipment Average 10 years

Mechanical equipment and technical

installations 7 -12 years
Other transportation means 8 - 25 years
Floating means 8 - 10 years
Furniture and othe equipment 5-10years

An asset which is used for the purpose of selfissterecognized during it sale or when no futurenemic benefits
are incurred from its use of sale. Gains and lossedisposals are assessed by comparing the poeginst the
carrying amount and are recorded in the incomemstant during the derecognition of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives anearained, and adjusted if appropriate, for futweediits at the end of
each balance sheet date.

3.7 Investment Properties

Investment property is initially measured at cadstluding transaction costs Subsequent to initedtognition,
investment properties are stated at fair valueckvinéflects market conditions at the reporting d&ains and losses
arising from changes in the fair values of investtr@roperties are included in profit or loss in geiod in which they
arise, including its corresponding tax effectsrbaiues are evaluated annually by an accreditéetead, independent
valuer, applying a valuation model recommendedheyimternational Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognized when etttey have been disposed of or when the investmeaqtepty is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future ecdodyanefits expected from its disposal. The diffiees between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amoluthieoasset is recognised in the profit or losghie period of
derecognition.
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Transfers to, or from, investment property showditade when, and only when, there is a changeeinFas a transfer
from investment property carried at fair value taner-occupied property or inventories, the propergost for

subsequent accounting should be its fair valubetdate of change in use. For a transfer from invexst property to
owner occupied property, the deemed cost for theesguent accounting is the fair value at the dathange in use. If
owner-occupied property becomes an investment prigpthe Group and Company account for such prgpert
accordance with the policy stated under propetgntpand equipment up to the date of change in use.

3.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measureaitial recognition at cost. Intangible assetaimty include

licenses computer software, and other programs.cbleof intangible assets acquired in a businesshmation is its
fair value as at the date of acquisition. Intangjibbsets include goodwill, concessions and indigiroperty rights
such as exploitation in fish farming, which relatesaquaculture licenses. Following initial recdgmi, intangible

assets are carried at cost less accumulated aatatizand accumulated impairment losses, if argrially generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized developroests, are not capitalized and expenditure Iegtfd in the income
statement in the year in which the expendituradsiired.

The useful lives of assets are assessed as ditfterdr infinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortisegrothe useful economic life and assessed for impait whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assey tmaimpaired. The amortization period and the dization method

for an intangible asset with a finite useful lifee @eviewed at least at the end of the reportingpde

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives aot amortised but are tested for impairment attleasan annual basis,
either individually or at the cash-generating ueitel. The assessment expense is reviewed annigalietermine

whether the indefinite life continues to be supgbie. If not, the change in useful life from indt to finite is made

on a prospective basis.

Aquaculture licenses are not amortised due to indlefuseful life, although licenses and softwaoenputer licenses
and other programs are amortised using the striightnethod over their estimated useful livespird to 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognitionrofraangible asset are measured as the differeaetvgebn the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of teetand are recognized in the income statement wieeasset is
derecognized.

Development Costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Develomrpenditures on an individual project are recpegias an
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intallgi asset so that it will be available for useales
e ltsintention to complete and its ability to usesell the asset

e How the asset will generate future economic besefit

e The availability of resources to complete the asset

e The ability to reliably measure the expenditureimtythe development

Following initial recognition of the developmentpenditure of the asset, the cost model is apphediring the asset
to be carried at cost less accumulated amortizatimhaccumulated impairment losses. Amortisatioth®fasset begins
when development is complete and the asset isadlaifor use, while the asset is tested for impanton an annual
basis during its development stage.
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3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of nmafficial assets are also provided in the followintgs:
e Property, plant and equipment Note 18
e Intangible assets Note 21
e Goodwill and intangibles assets with indefiniteebvNote 20

The Group and Company assess at each reportinguhether there is an indication that an asset neayripaired. If
any indication exists, or when an annual impairntesting for an asset is required, the Group antf2my estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverablei@nod the asset is the greater between the faievaf the asset or
the Cash-Generating Unit, less the required setiogis and the value in use and is individuallgsssd for each asset,
except if the asset does not create cash flowshadie to a large extent independent from othertassegroup of
assets. If the carrying amount of an asset or @aslerating unit exceeds the revalued recoverabteuamthen the
asset is considered impaired and is thus decread#dts recoverable amount. For the valuationtefvalue in use, the
valued future cash flows are discounted at presane with the use of a pre-tax interest rate wheflects the current
market value for the time-value of money and fe isks which are associated with these assetshE@ssessment of
the fair value less the selling expenses, the meaeint market transactions are taken into condiderd these exist. If
such corresponding transactions cannot be idemiifiehe market, then an appropriate revaluatiothotis used.

The Group’s and Company’'s assessment of impairtosees is based on detailed budgets and projeatedlations
which are prepared separately for each Cash géamgpnait of the Group to which each asset has ladlecated. The
budgets and projected calculations generally ceveeriod of 5 years although for extended peri@edfng-term
growth rate is calculated which is applied to fetaash flows following the fifth year.

The impairment losses are recognized in current'yeasults apart from the revalued assets wheeepttevious
valuation results have been recognized in Othergehensive Income until the amount of the previewsluation.

3.10Financial Instruments (receivables/ liabilities)

i) Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

During initial recognition, financial assets arasdified into the following categories:

) Loans and receivables

. Financial assets at fair value through profitass|
. Available-for-sale financial assets

. Held-to-maturity investments

The classification of the financial assets is dateed according to management’s intent and is basedhe
characteristics and the purpose for which it hankescquired. All financial assets are recognizéihlly at fair value
which is the value at which it has been acquiredaddition to, in cases where investments are aloied at fair value
through profit or loss, all directly attributablansaction costs.

The financial assets of the Group and the Compaciyde cash and short-term deposits, trade aner odteivables,
available for sale financial assets and derivdin@ncial instruments.

Measurement of financial assets after initial rexittgn depends on the category to which they belong
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahatejuoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such fiicial assets are subsequently measured at amoctistdising the
effective interest rate method (EIR), less impammémortised cost is calculated by taking into@att any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thaarintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortizai®mcluded under
finance income in the income statement. The loassig from impairment are recognized in the inecstatement
under other financial costs.

Receivables and loans are included in current ;isadth the exception of items with a maturity dateexcess of 12
months following the reporting date. The above deassified as non-current assets in the balancet sfege and are
presented as “Trade and other receivables” and €iOReceivables”, constituting the largest part ted Group’s

financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iss

Financial assets at fair value through profit ossldnclude financial assets held for trading anmwhritial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair valheough profit or loss. Financial assets are clesbifis held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sellingrepurchasing in the near term. This category iresuderivative
financial instruments which have not been desighate hedging instruments. Following initial recdigmi, financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss argezhin the statement of financial position at fealue with changes in
fair value recognized in finance income or finanosts in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group and Company evaluate its financial adseid for trading, other than derivatives, to datee whether the
intention to sell them in the near term is stilpegpriate. When, in the rare circumstances, thau@ie unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets magdagement’s intent to sell them in the foreseedblare
significantly changes, the Group may elect to i=sifg these financial assets in rare circumstaritles.reclassification
to loans and receivables, available for sale od belmaturity depends on the nature of the as¢es. dvaluation does
not affect any financial assets designated atviaine through profit or loss using the fair valygtion at designation,
these instruments cannot be reclassified aftaaimgcognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accduisieas separate derivatives and recorded atvédire if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closabted to those of the host contracts and the ¢mstracts are not
held for trading or designated at fair value thiopgofit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if thewre change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifibe tcash flows that would otherwise be required mctassification of
a financial asset out of the fair value throughfipemnd loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for- sale financial investments includguéty and debt securities. Equity investments di@ssas available-
for-sale are those, which are neither classifiedheld for trading nor designated at fair value tigio profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those whiehiatended to be held for an indefinite periodiofet and which may
be sold in response to liquidity needs or in respdon changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale finat investments are subsequently measured avdéie when this
can be reliably measured, with unrealized gainssses being recognized in other comprehensivariacand credited
in the available for sale reserve until the investinis derecognized at which time the cumulativan ga loss is
recognized in other operating income, or the inwesit is determined to be impaired, when the cunwaldbss is
reclassified from available-for-sale reserve to stetement of profit or loss in finance costs. fes¢ earned whilst
holding available for sale financial investmentseported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafigial assets with fixed or determinable paymemd fixed
maturities. The Financial assets are classifietedd-to-maturity investments provided that the G@euManagement
has the positive intent and ability to hold untidtority. Following initial recognition, the held-tmaturity financial
investments are measured at amortised cost usingffiactive interest method, less impairment.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into accaamy discount or premium on acquisition and feesosts that are an
integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization is ing&d in finance income in the statement of profitass. The losses

arising from impairment are recognized in the inesstatement in finance costs.
The Group did not have any held-to-maturity invesstts during the years ended 31 December 2016 drfsl 20

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asseelexpired

e The Group or the Company has transferred its right®ceive cash flows from the asset or has as$wane
obligation to pay the received cash flows in fuitheut material delay to a third party under a “p#wough”
arrangement: and either (a) the Group has traesfeubstantially all the risks and rewards of theeg or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retainedtanotially all the risks and rewards of the asset ftas
transferred control of the asset.

e According to IFRIC 19 " Extinguishing financiabilities with equity instruments ", equity instranis which
are issued by the entity to the creditor for thetiphor total repayment of financial liability afeonsidered
paid "in accordance with paragraph 41 of IAS 3%his respect the equity instruments are valuddiatalue.
The difference between the carrying amount of tharicial liability (or part) extinguished and threirfvalue
of the "paid-consideration" is recognized in theufes.

Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of ficiahassets are also provided in the following apte
e Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 5
e Financial assets Note 24
e Trade Receivables Note 28,29,30

The Group assesses at each reporting date whétreris an objective indication that a financiadedor a group of
financial assets has been impaired. An impairmergt® if one or more events that has occurred stheeinitial
recognition of the asset has an impact on the astanfuture cash flows of the financial asset erghoup of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

More specifically, the Group and the Company cargat an impairment test for certain receivablesaonndividual
basis (for example for each customer separatelghses where collection of the receivable has lbharacterized as
overdue as at the balance sheet date or in casa® whjective evidence indicates the need for impait. All other
receivables are categorized and tested for impairme an aggregate basis. The categories have @smanon
characteristic the geographical distribution, thperational segment of the counterparties and if atiyer common
characteristics of credit risk which characteriesm.

Indication of impairment may include events suchwhgn debtors or a group of debtors are experignsignificant
financial difficulties, default or delinquency interest or principal payments, the probability ahkruptcy or financial
restructuring, and where observable data indidwstethere is a measurable decrease in the estirhdated cash flows,
such as changes in the structure of payments andial conditions that associate with defaults.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost@rmup or Company initially assesses whether anabble indication
of impairment exists for financial assets that sokely significant, on an individual basis, or anaggregate basis for
financial assets that are not individually sigrafit. If the Group assesses that no objective itiditeexists for
impairment on an individual basis, whether sigmifit or not, it includes the asset in a group odrfirial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectivaksesses them for impairment. Assets that aiédodlly assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is,continues to be, recognized are not included imlikedive
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss is measured eglifference between the assets’ carrying amouthttlae present
value of estimated future cash flows (excludingufatexpected credit losses that have not yet besmred). The
present value of the estimated cash flows is disimnliat the financial assets original effectiveiast rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is either reduesttly in equity or through a provision accouhhe amount of the
loss is recognized in the statement of profit @sldn the event whereby in subsequent perioddntpairment loss is
reduced and the reduction objectively relates teant which occurs following the recognition oé timpairment loss,
the impairment loss which had been previously racgl is reversed either directly or through a [gion account.
The reversal does not result in a carrying amotitieasset which exceeds the amount which thetésadrcost of the
asset would have had if the impairment had not eeagnized during the date of the reversal. Thewnof the
reversal is recognized in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial investments, theop assesses at each reporting date whether ithesbjective
evidence that an investment or a group of investsnerimpaired.

In the case of equity investments classified amlae-for-sale, objective evidence would incluglesignificant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investimieelow cost. “Significant” is evaluated agairtst briginal cost of
the investment below and “prolonged” against theoggein which the fair value has been below itgoval cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulatives losneasured as the difference between the adquisibst and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss ort thaestment previously recognized in the incormegeshent - is
removed from other comprehensive income and regzednin the income statement. Impairment losses quitye
investments are not reversed through the incontersémt; increases in their fair value after impa&intrare recognized
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘pooiged’ requires judgement. In making this judgmeing Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration @mgxo which the fair value of an investment islésat its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as abkilfor-sale, impairment is assessed based osdime criteria as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. Howetleg amount recorded for impairment is the cunwdatoss
measured as the difference between the amortizedatwl the current fair value, less any impairmess on that
investment previously recognized in the stateméptafit or loss.

Future interest income continues to be accrueddbasehe reduced amount of the asset, using theofdhterest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpoSeeasuring the impairment loss. The interest ineasnrecorded as
part of finance income. If in a subsequent yeae, fiir value of a debt instrument increases andrbesase can be
objectively related to an event occurring afterithpairment loss was recognized in the statemeptafit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the statemigpitadit or loss.

i) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as financiahilities at fair value through profit or lossales and borrowings, or as

derivatives designated as hedging instruments ireféattive hedge, as appropriate. The Group andCbepany
determine the classification of its financial liies at initial recognition.
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Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initiallat fair value and in the case of loans and borrgsirplus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities of the Group and the Caanp include trade and other payables, other long-8nd short-term
liabilities, short-term and long-term loans andivigive financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilitiesedels on the classification as follows:
Loans and trade payables

Bank borrowings provide financing to the Group @odhe Company. The distinction between short-tand long-
term is based according to prevailing contractgddition to the repayment of these in the follayviwelve months or
later.

After initial recognition, interest bearing loansdaborrowings are subsequently measured at ambntisst using the
effective interest rate method. Gains and lossesracognized in the income statement when thelitiabi are
derecognized as well as through the effective é@sterate method (EIR) amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into accaamy discount or premium on acquisition and feesosts that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortizationrisluded in finance costs in the income statement.

The convertible bond loan is composed of two partfinancial liability (a contracted liability toetiver cash or another
financial asset) and an equity component (a puechight granted to the holder which provides thpadslity, for a
fixed period of time, to convert the instrumentoitommon shares). The financial benefit of suchinstrument is
substantially the same as the simultaneous issusfreech a title, with a lien of a premature setiéat and a right to
purchase common shares or with the issuance obfatitle having a splitted purchase right of shavs a result, the
company presents both the liability and the equoidstion (net of taxes) separately identified in Badance Sheet.
Trade payables, are initially recognized at cost are subsequently remeasured at amortised castséement
payments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profiind loss include financial liabilities held for ding and financial

liabilities designated upon initial recognitionatsfair value through profit and loss. Financiabiiities are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the pwspf selling in the near term. This category ideki derivative

financial instruments entered into by the Group #ra not designated as hedging instruments ineneglgtionships.

Separate embedded derivatives are also classBiéeld for trading unless they are designated dgihg instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading e¥eognized in the income statement.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the ajdtion under the liability is discharged or careglbr expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced agother from the same lender on substantiallyedsfit terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially difeed, such an exchange or modification is treasdlerecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a ndiability, and the difference in the respectivargang amount is
recognized in the income statement.
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i) Off-setting of financial statements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are s#t-and the net amount is presented in the comasetidstatement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a cently enforceable legal right to offset the recagdi amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to reahe assets and settle the liabilities simultasigou

3.11 Derivative financial instruments and Hedge Aaaunting

Derivative financial assets such as futures anavdodts, swaps and option contracts are used fondiah risk
management from the Group’s business activitiest@dinancing of these activities.

All derivatives are initially recognized at fairlua on the date of settlement and are subsequemtiyeasured at their
fair value. Derivatives are reported as assets wherfair value is positive and as liabilities whigre fair value is
negative.

The fair value is determined from the price pramailin active markets or through the use of measard techniques
in cases where there is no active market for tireteuments. Gains or losses from changes duriayéar, in the fair
value of derivatives that are not recognised agjingdinstruments, are recognised in the statemeptadit or loss,
apart from the effective portion of the hedged d#ives which have been characterized as a cashhigalge which is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.12 Inventories
Inventories include raw materials, consumablesgoutls purchased.

The cost of inventories includes all purchase casiaversion and other costs realised in ordetferinventories to
reach their present state and position and finhnoigts are not included. The cost is determineattordance with the
weighted average.

The purchase costs of inventories comprises thehpse price, import duties and other taxes (othem those which
subsequently can be recovered by the entity froentéx authorities), and transport, handling ancemwttirectly
attributable costs. Trade discounts, rebates dref gtmilar items are deducted in determining tinelpase cost.

The costs of conversion of inventories include saltectly related to the units of production, sashdirect labour.
They also include a systematic allocation of fixad variable production overheads that are incuimezbnverting
materials into finished goods. Fixed productionrbreads comprise indirect costs of production teatain relatively
constant irrespective of the volume of productisnch as depreciation and maintenance of factoridibgs and
equipment, and the cost of factory management dnuinéstration. Variable production overheads amséhindirect
costs of production that vary directly, or nearigedtly, with the volume of production, such asiiedt materials and
indirect labour. The allocation of fixed productiomerheads to the costs of conversion is basetiendrmal capacity
of the production facilities. Normal capacity istproduction expected to be achieved on average aweimber of
periods or seasons under normal circumstancesgtakito account the loss of capacity resulting frplanned
maintenance. The actual level of production mayded if it approximates normal capacity.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andeedizable value. Net realizable value is thenestéd selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less the estinmsglithg expenses incurred until its completion avidch ever costs
are associated with the sale.
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3.13 Share capital

Share capital is determined according to the noiviakie of shares issued. Ordinary shares areifitabas equity.
Expenses incurred in connection with the issuarichares are presented in equity as a deductiorofriax, from the
proceeds.

No gain or loss is recognized in the income statgroa the purchase, sale, issue or cancellaticheofGroup’s and
Company’s own equity instruments. Any differencéwsen the carrying amount and the consideratioreigsued, is
recognized in the share premium. Voting rights teglato the treasury shares are nullified for th@uprand no
dividends are allocated to them.

3.14 Current and deferred income tax

Taxes charged to the period’s results consist afeati and deferred taxes, i.e. taxes and tax edieelated to the
financial benefits which incur during the period bave been charged or are going to be chargellebtak authorities
in different periods. The income tax is recognizedhe income statement of the period, except daes$ relating to
transactions which have been directly classifieédnity (outside the income statement), in whickecthe respective
tax is similarly charged to equity (outside thedne statement).

Current income taxes include short-term liabilittgsreceivables attributable to the tax authoritidsich relate to taxes
payable on the period’s taxable income in additmmny taxes relating to prior years which could le previously
assessed. Current taxes are calculated accordititeteffective tax rates and tax laws prevailingaashe Balance
Sheets dates in the territories in which the Gropgrates and in which taxable income arises. Adhges in short-term
tax assets or liabilities are recognized as taxerges in the current year’s income statement. Takah have resulted
from transactions recorded in the Statement of ticqare also presented under Equity instead of bedngrded in the
current year's profit and loss statement.

The Group does not establish any provisions forotgntial tax case but only when conditions exisich tax charge
impositions are possible. The related provisioméasured in accordance with the possibility by Wiécmay occur.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability methma temporary differences at the reporting dateveen the tax bases
of the assets and liabilities and their carryingants for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for allable temporary differences except where the dafdaee liability arises
from:

o the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asgmtliability in a transaction that is not a busise&®mbination
and at the time of the transaction affects neitheraccounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e in respect of taxable temporary differences assetisvith investments in subsidiaries and associatesre
the timing of the reversal of the temporary diffeves can be controlled and it is probable thatehgorary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeablerkit

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all dedecté&mporary differences, carry forward or unusax dredits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is prob#ide taxable profit will be used against the déitble temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tasds, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the ddaledi@mporary difference arises from the initialagnition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is adiusiness combination and at the time of the action affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profil@ss.

e In respect of deductible temporary differences aased with investments in subsidiaries and assesia
deferred tax assets are recognized only to thenextat it is probable that the temporary differemnavill

81



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabletpnolfi be available against which the temporaryfetiénces
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vexieat each reporting date and reduced to the teftiahit is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit vii# available to allow all or part of the defertad asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculatzbrding to the tax rates which are expected tapipéied in the period
during which the asset will be recognized or tlability will be settled, taking into account thexteates (and tax
regulations) that are in effect or have been edadteing the date of preparation of the BalanceeShe

In the event of the inability to determine the tinfereversal of the temporary differences the &be mpplicable in the
year following the balance sheet date is used.

Current year’s deferred tax calculation for the pamy and its subsidiaries in Greece is based onutrent tax rate of
29% (2015: 29%) while the current tax rate for swbsidiary in Spain the corresponding deferredcagulation has
been based on 25% (2015: 30%).

3.15 Pensions and other post-employment benefits

Short-term benefits Short-term benefits to employees in money orind lare recognized as an expense when they are
accrued. Any outstanding amounts are classifie@ diability, while in case the amount already paiteeds the
amount of the benefits, the Group and company mEzeghe excessive amount as an asset (prepaithgpenly to

the extent that the prepayment will lead to a rédancf future or in return payments.

Benefits on retirement: The benefits on retirement include a lump sum mengidemnity or other benefits (social
security or medical coverage) paid to employeesiuptirement in exchange for their service. Thamfthey include
both defined contribution plans and defined ben@éihs. The accrued cost of the defined contriloupians is recorded
as an expense in the period to which it refers.

Defined contribution plan: According to the defined contribution plan, the @ or company’s obligation (legal or
constructive) is limited to the amount agreed tocfantribution to the entity (e.g. social secustytity), which manages
the contributions and grants the benefits. Theegfttre amount of benefits received by the emplayeefined by the
amount contributed by the company and the emplayeethe paid investments of these contributions.

The accrued cost in a defined contribution plare@gnized as an expense in the period in whiates to.

Defined benefit plan: The staff termination indemnity provision recordadhe balance sheet for the defined benefit
plan is the current value of the liability for tefined benefit in addition to changes occurrirapfrany other actuarial
profit or loss and the past service cost. The distoate is considered as the yield, at the balaheet date, of high
quality European corporate bonds which have a ntatwhich approaches the time period of the Grougisl
Company’s liability.

The liability for this plan is determined using tpeojected unit credit method from an independextier and is
composed of the present value of accrued servisesgithe year, the interest on future liabilitidee prior service cost
and the actuarial gains or losses.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gaind@sws, the effect of the asset ceiling, excludieginterest and the
return on plan assets, are recognized immediatetiie statement of financial position with a copasding debit or
credit to the actuarial differences reserve throatfter comprehensive income in the period in whiety occur. Re-

measurements are not classified to profit or lnssubsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or dosthe earlier of:
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e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognizes restructuriteje@ costs

Share-based payment transactionEmployees (including senior executives) of ther receive renumeration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whergtplayees render services as consideration for e@qustruments
(equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recaghizogether with a corresponding increase in atheital in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/oviserconditions are fulfilled. The cumulative exgerrecognized for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting dati the vesting date reflects the extent to whtwd vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the nunabezquity instruments that will ultimately vesthd income
statement expense or credit for a period represeatmovement in cumulative expense recognized tedeginning
and end of that period and is recognized in em@dyenefits expense.

The share based stock options which have beenegraatspecific high level executives have beenrdamb in the
results of the previous years with a correspondicgease in the reserve in equity. Up until theorépg date of the
financial statements no stock option rights havenbexercised and therefore the established resawvaot yet been
converted to shares.

3.16 Government grants

The Group and the Company recognize governmentgyrahich satisfy the following criteria: a) Thasereasonable
assurance that the Group and company will compih &ll attached conditions and b) the grants wélreceived.
Grants which are associated with expenses are mamhat fair value and are recognized on a systerbasis in

income, based on the matching principle of the tgravith the respective cost, which will be grant&bvernment
grants which relate to assets are included indhg-term liabilities as deferred income and ar@gezed as income
on a systematic basis, offset against current gempreciation, over the useful lives of the asset.

3.17 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingnt Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group and Coyripawve a present obligation (legal or constructagg result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of reses embodying economic benefits will be requiredsettle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be madé@famount of the obligation. Examples of presefigations which

arise from a present legal or constructive oblagats a result of past events include warrantigsroducts, litigations
or onerous contracts. Restructuring provisionsracegnised only when a detailed formal plan has lisyeloped and
implemented or Management has at least announeedhdim features of the plan to those that areylik@lbe affected
by it. Provisions are not recognised for futureragiag losses.

Provisions are measured at an expected cost whichquired to determine the present obligationngishe most

reliable evidence that is available as at balaheetsdate, including the risks and uncertaintiexigig to the present
obligation. Where the effect of the time value afmay is material, the amount of a provision isghesent value of the
expenditures, expected that will be required, titles¢he obligation. The discount rate is a predtate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value oegnand the risks specific to the liability. Theatiant rate does not
reflect risks for which future cash flow estimatesve been adjusted. Where the discounting methagsesl, the

carrying amount of a provision increases in eadfiogeto reflect the flow of time. This increaserexognized as a
borrowing cost in the statement of profit or I0dghere there are a number of similar obligations,gfobability that an
outflow will be required for settlement is assesBgdonsidering the class of obligations in itsirety.
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The expense relating to a provision may be preddntthe statement of profit or loss, net of theoant recognized for
a reimbursement. A provision is used only for apesse for which the provision was originally reciagd. Provisions
are examined at each balance sheet date and thisipnois reversed if an outflow of sources reqdite settle the
obligation ceases to be probable.

Probable inflows of economic benefits for the Gravhich do not yet meet the criteria of an asset@msidered
contingent assets. Contingent assets and contirligduilities are not recognized in the Balance $h&@wntingent

liabilities which are recognized under the scope bfisiness combination are measured at fair v8iuigsequent to this
they are remeasured at the higher of the amoutfieoprovision which would have been recognized dasethe basic
recognition principles as described above and ataimount which was initially recognized, less acgumulated

amortization which was recognized based on thecjmlies of revenue recognition.

3.18 Revenue and Expense Recognition

(a) Revenue Revenue comprises the fair value of the proddistdand other biological assets, sales of goods an
services, net of value added tax rebates and dissoduter-company revenue within the Group isyfeliminated.
Revenue is recognized as follows:

- Sales of biological assetdAre recognized after their harvest, provided tinat products are delivered to the
customer who has accepted the products and coilégtof the related receivables is reasonablyuesd in addition to
that significant risks and rewards associated withership are transferred to the buyer.

- Sales of non-biological assetqRevenue from sale of goods is recognized whenstprificant risks and
rewards associated with ownership are transfeodbe buyer, given that the goods are acceptetidptiyer and the
economic benefits from the transaction can be nmredseliably and an inflow to entity is highly paltie.

Sales are presented net of returns and allowatreés, discounts and volume rebates.

- Sales of servicesSales of services are recognized in the accayipémiod in which the services are rendered,
by reference to the completion of the specific $eation assessed on the basis of the actual squiegded as a
proportion to the total services which are to bevjated.

- Interest income Interest income is recognized on a time-proparbasis using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reducesc#inrying amount to its recoverable amount, béiegestimated
future cash flow discounted at original effectiméerest rate of the instrument, and continues udiwithe discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired (namwying) value is recognized using the originakefive interest.

- Dividend income Dividend income is recognized when the rightdoaive payment is established.

(b) Expenses:Expenses are recognized in the income statemenahatcrual basis. Payments realized for operating
leases are transferred to the income statementpahses, during the time of use of the leased .dstetest expenses
are recognized on an accrual basis.

( ¢) Gains/Losses attributed to changes in Fair Vak of Biological AssetsAre recognized during the year and result
from changes both in price, quantity and develogroéthe Biological assets.

3.19 Leases
Liabilities from finance leases are measured &tinralue net of the amount of principal repaynsent

Group or Company as a lessed-inance leases on assets where substantialtislketl and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the Group or Company are capitaliettie lease’s inception at the lower of the Vaiue of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum |gasgments. Lease payments are apportioned betvieancé
charges and reduction of the lease liability séoaachieve a constant rate of interest on the meimgibalance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in firmposts in profit or loss. A leased asset is degtext over the useful
life of the asset. However, if there is no reasdmabrtainty that the Group will obtain ownershigle end of the lease
term, the asset is depreciated over the shortiveodstimated useful life of the asset and theelézrsn.

84



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

Lease agreements where the lessor transfers the aofguse of the asset for an agreed period of ,timighout
transferring the risks and rewards of ownershipctassified as operating leases. Payments made apdeating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessoe) @rarged to the profit or loss on a straight-basis over the period
of the lease.

Group or Company as a lessarWhen assets are leased out under a finance lg@spresent value of the minimum
lease payments is recognized as a receivable. iffieeedce between the gross receivable and theepteslue of the
receivable is recognized as unearned finance inchesse income is recognized over the term of ¢asd using the
net investment method, which reflects a constaribgee rate of return.

3.20 Cash Dividend and non-cash distribution to eqty holders of the parent

The Group and Company recognizes a liability to enalkcash and non-cash distributions to equity msldethe parent
when the distribution is authorized and the disttifn is no longer at the discretion of the Compahyistribution is
authorized when it is approved by its shareholdersorresponding amount is recognized directly quigy.

Non-cash distributions are measured at fair valtighe assets to be distributed with fair value rasmeement
recognized directly in equity.

Dividends to shareholders are included in the it€ther Current Liabilities” in the period in whicthe General
Meeting of Shareholders approves the dividends.

3.21 Related parties

Transactions and intercompany balances betweerreflaged parties and the Group and Company areodisdl
according to IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”e3# transactions relate to transactions betweemgearent, the
principal shareholders and the subsidiaries ofGheup with the parent company and other subsidiatiat comprise
the Group.

3.22 Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statemenhahéial position comprise include cash on handopsiegpheld at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid intveents with original maturities of three monthsglsas products of
the financial market and bank deposits as well\asdryaft bank accounts. The Group and Company hesteicted
cash deposits as at December 31, 2016 which aseniea in Note 31 of the annual financial statement

3.23 Events after the reporting period

The presented amounts in the financial statemeetadjusted to reflect events arising after theubzd sheet date for
which conditions existed prior to the balance sladé.

Events which occurred after the balance sheetatadefor which no indications existed as at the tadasheet date but
occurred subsequent to this date, are disclostiwtinotes to the financial statements.

3.24 Comparative figures

Comparative figures are restated in the event ofiange in accounting policy or prior period eruring the year a
reclassification and a net-off was made of an amfrom “other income” to “depreciation expense” Hdi8.
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3.25 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdfios, construction or production of assets thatessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for thetended use or sale, are added to the cost of texms. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in whiey are incurred. Other borrowing costs condishterest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connectiorhwlite borrowing of funds are charged to the peiodhich they are
realised.

3.26 Non-current assets held for sale or for distbution to equity holders of the parent

Non-current assets are classified as held fori#tle carrying amount will be recovered princigathrough sale or for
distribution to equity holders of the parent if ithearrying amounts will be recovered principallyrdugh sale or
distribution rather than through continuing use.

Immediately prior to being classified as held fatesthe carrying amount of the item is measuredcitordance with
the applicable standard.

After classification of an asset as held for silés measured at the lower of the carrying amand fair value less
costs to sell or to distribute. Costs to distribaite the incremental costs directly attributechi distribution, excluding
the finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for distribution classificati is regarded as met only when the sale of didigh is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is avaifabimmediate distribution in its present coratit Actions required
to complete the distribution should indicate that itiidikely that significant changes to the distriloatiwill be made or
that the distribution will be withdrawn. Managementist be committed to the distribution within oreay from the
date of the classification.

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or Ides any initial and subsequent write-down of theedsand disposal
group to fair value less selling costs. A gainday subsequent increase in fair value less satlirsgs is recognized in
profit or loss to the extent that it is not in egseof the cumulative impairment loss previouslyoggtzed either in
accordance with IFRS 5 or in accordance with IASN®®-current assets (or disposal groups) that lassified as held
for sale are not depreciated.

Assets and liabilities as held for sale or distiitiu are presented separately as a current itethanstatement of
financial position.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operaifid is a component of an entity that either bagn disposed of, or
is classified as held for sale, and:

e Represents a major line of business or geograpaieal of operations

e Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to disposa séparate major line of business or geopgrapaieal of
operations, or

e |s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a viewesale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the tegidlcontinuing operations and are presentedsitsgde amount as
profit or loss after tax from discontinued operation the statement of profit or loss.
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3.27 Current versus non-current classification

The Group and Company present assets and liabiiitithe statement of financial position based ument/non-
current classification. An asset as current whest it
e Expected to be realized or intended to be solbosamed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realized within twelve months atterreporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fromgbexechanged or used to settle a liability for astawelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-currentalility is current when:

e |tis expected to be settled in normal operatingecy

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e |tis due to be settled within twelve months aftex reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settat of the liability fro at least twelve monthseafthe
reporting period

The Group and Company classify all other liabi$itaes non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classidiethon-current assets and liabilities.
3.28 Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, suckesagalives, and non-financial assets such as imest properties,
at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value related disclosures for financial instents and non —financial assets that are meastifaét &alue where
fair value is disclosed are summarized in the foillmg notes:

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significantresties and assumptions Notes 18,19,26,29,31,32,34,44

e Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurenhigrarchy Note 44

e Investment in unquoted equity shares Notes 24

e Property, plant and equipment under revaluationehbldtes 18

e Investment properties Notes 19

¢ Financial instruments (includingdke at amortised cost) Notes 28,29,30,31,32
e Biological assets current and non-current Notes 26

e Short-term borrowing Notes 34

e Short-term portion of the long-term borrowings 8084

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddl an asset or paid to transfer a liability in @lerly transaction
between market participants at the measurement @hagefair value measurement is based on the pratsumthat the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer thelitghiakes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability,
¢ Inthe absence of a principle market, in the mdstatageous market for the asset or the liability

The principal or the most advantageous market ineistccessible to the Group. The fair value of a@etasr a liability
is measured using the assumptions that markecjpamit would use when pricing the asset or liahiltsssuming that
market participants act in their economic bestrege
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial aszkeéd into account a market participants abilitgénerate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and bssstor by selling it to another market participtnat would use the
asset in it highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are apptepin the circumstances and for which sufficielatta are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the wderelevant observable inputs and minimizing thee wf
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valuengeasured or disclosed in the financial statemawtsaegorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,eolasn the lowest level of input that is significaotthe fair value
measurement as a whole:

o Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active marf@ identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest infhattis significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest levgut that is significant to the fair value measuzam
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognizedha financial statements on a recurring basis, theu® determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levelkdrhterarchy by re-assessing categorization (baseithe lowest
level input that is significant to the fair valueeasurement as a whole) at the end of each repquirigd.

The Group determines the policies and procedumrelsdth recurring and non-recurring measurements) agsets held
for distribution for discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved in the valuation ighgficant assetsf the Group and Company, such as property plant &
equipment and property investment, as well astHerprovision of net employee defined benefit plangolvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by theu@rafter discussion with and approval by the Camisaaudit
committee. Selection criteria include market knalgle, reputation, independence and whether professgtandards
are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the mewés in the values of assets and liabilities wlaieghrequired to be
re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’sraicgppolicies. For this analysis, management iexithe basic
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agredimg information in the valuation computation to ants and other
relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the @rdetermines classes of assets and liabilitiehi@masis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liabditd the level of the fair value hierarchy as eixygld above.
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4. Changes in accounting policies

4.1 New and revised standards and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent Witise of the previous financial year, except foe thanges
resulting from the adoption of new standards aterfmetations effective as of from January 1 2016.

Standards and interpretations mandatory for the curent financial year which do not have a significanteffect on
the financial statements of the Group

e |FRS 11 Joint arrangements (Amendment): Accountingor Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendment is effective for annual periods b@gmon or after 1 January 2016. IFRS 11 addrebseaccounting
for interests in joint ventures and joint enterpsisThe amendment adds new guidance on the aacguioti the
acquisition of participation in a joint venture ascompany in accordance with IFRS and specifiesathgropriate
accounting treatment of such acquisitions. The Gowpand the Group have no transactions in scopthief
amendmentAs a result, the above amendments do not have act @ffi the financial position or performance of the
Group and Company.

e |AS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible assets (Amendment): Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

The amendment is effective for annual periods be@gm on or after 1 January 2016. The amendmentigeev
additional guidance on how the depreciation or dimetion of property, plant and equipment and igthle assets
should be calculated. This amendment clarifiespheciple in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment dAS 38
Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattémconomic benefits that are generated from opegati business (of
which the asset is part) rather than the economiefits that are consumed through use of the a&sed result, the
ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expettidhe generated cannot be used to depreciatenypplant and
equipment and may only be used in very limitedwinstances to amortise intangible assBte above amendments do
not have an effect on the financial position off@enance of the Group and Company.

e |AS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture (Amendment): Bearer Plants

The amendment is effective for annual periods begmon or after 1 January 2016. Bearer plants mallv be within
the scope of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipmadtwill be subject to all of the requirements therd his includes
the ability to choose between the cost model amdluation model for subsequent measurement. Adurll produce
growing on bearer plants (e.g., fruit growing otnege) will remain within the scope of IAS 41 Agrittre. Government
grants relating to bearer plants will now be acd¢edrfor in accordance with IAS 20 Accounting for v@mment
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistanceégaasof in accordance with IAS 4Ihe above amendments do not
have an effect on the financial position or perfantce of the Group and Company.

o |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (amended)

The amendment is effective from 1 January 2016s Bmendment will allow entities to use the equitgtinod to
account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ues$ and associates in their separate financiesents and will help
some jurisdictions move to IFRS for separate fimgnstatements, reducing compliance costs witheducing the
information available to investors’he above amendment does not have an effect oninbacfal position or
performance of the Group and Company given thattmepany has not made any use of the above amehdmen
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e |IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans (Amended): Employee @dributions

The amendment is effective for annual periods begmon or after 1 February 2015. The amendmentiempo
contributions from employees or third parties tdirted benefit plans. The objective of the amendnignd simplify

the accounting for contributions that are independ® the number of years of employee service, dgample,
employee contributions that are calculated accgrttina fixed percentage of salary. The Company@raup do not
have any plans that fall within the scope of thiseadmentThe above amendment does not have an effect on the
financial position or performance of the Group &ampany.

. IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Aplying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments)

The amendments address three issues arising itiggrac the application of the investment entit@msolidation
exception. The amendments are effective for anpaebds beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Therelments
clarify that the exemption from presenting consatiédl financial statements applies to a parentyethiat is a
subsidiary of an investment entity, when the inwvestt entity measures all of its subsidiaries at ¥alue. Also, the
amendments clarify that only a subsidiary thatds an investment entity itself and provides suppeirtvices to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other sulmigs of an investment entity are measured atviaine. Finally, the
amendments to IAS 28 Investments in AssociatesJaiat Ventures allow the investor, when applying gquity
method, to retain the fair value measurement agliethe investment entity associate or joint vemto its interests in
subsidiariesThe above amendments do not have an effect onrihadial position or performance of the Group and
Company.

. IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Finandate$ents further encourage companies to applesgsainal

judgment in determining what information to diseoand how to structure it in their financial stagens. The

amendments are effective for annual periods beggnon or after 1 January 2016. The narrow-focusnaiments to
IAS clarify, rather than significantly change, diig IAS 1 requirements. The amendments relateateriality, order

of the notes, subtotals and disaggregation, acoaypblicies and presentation of items of other poghensive income
(OCI) arising from equity accounted Investmeriihe above amendment does not have a significanttefie the

financial position or performance of the Group &ampany.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFR§2010 — 2012 Cyclewhich is a collection of amendments
to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annealogs beginning on or after 1 February 20Ibe below
amendments do not have an effect on the finanositipn or performance of the Group and Company.

e |FRS 2 Share-based Paymenf(This improvement amends the definitions of 'vegtiondition' and 'market
condition' and adds definitions for 'performancedition’ and 'service condition' (which were prexsty part
of the definition of 'vesting condition”).

¢ |FRS 3 Business combinationsThis improvement clarifies that contingent consadien in a business
acquisition that is not classified as equity issaduently measured at fair value through profloes whether
or not it falls within the scope of IFRS 9 Finandi@gstruments.

e |FRS 8 Operating SegmentsThis improvement requires an entity to disclosejtiigments made by
management in applying the aggregation criteriaperating segments and clarifies that an entiti shéy
provide reconciliations of the total of the repbitasegments’ assets to the entity's assets $setlyment assets
are reported regularly.

e |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement This improvement in the Basis of Conclusion dRB-13 clarifies that
issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and IAS 3thdidemove the ability to measure short-term reagizs
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and payables with no stated interest rate at thedice amounts without discounting if the effe€not
discounting is immaterial.

e |AS 16 Property Plant & Equipment: The amendment clarifies that when an item of priypelant and
equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amouadjssted in a manner that is consistent with évaluation
of the carrying amount.

e |AS 24 Related Party DisclosuresThe amendment clarifies that an entity providieg knanagement
personnel services to the reporting entity or toghrent of the reporting entity is a related paftshe
reporting entity.

e |AS 38 Intangible Assets The amendment clarifies that when an intangibketis revalued the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that isistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFR§2012 — 2014 Cycle, which is a collection of amenénts
to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual pericelginming on or after 1 January 201Bhe below
amendments do not have an effect on the finanositipn or performance of the Group and Company.

e |FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discomued Operations: The amendment clarifies that
changing from one of the disposal methods to thergithrough sale or through distribution to thenevs)
should not be considered to be a new plan of diprsther it is a continuation of the original pl&here is
therefore no interruption of the application of tequirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also atarifiat
changing the disposal method does not change theoflalassification.

¢ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendment clarifies that a senyicontract that includes a
fee can constitute continuing involvement in afficial asset. Also, the amendment clarifies that FfRS 7
disclosures relating to the offsetting of finan@akets and financial liabilities are not requirethe
condensed interim financial report.

¢ |AS 19 Employee BenefitsThe amendment clarifies that market depth of lgjghlity corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the dbligatdenominated, rather than the country whieee t
obligation is located. When there is no deep mdidetigh quality corporate bonds in that currency,
government bond rates must be used.

e |AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment clarifies that the required intatistlosures must
either be in the interim financial statements @oiporated by cross-reference between the inteénan€ial
statements and wherever they are included wittérgtieater interim financial report (e.g., in thenagement
commentary or risk report). The Board specified tha other information within the interim finantraport
must be available to users on the same terms asténan financial statements and at the same timesers
do not have access to the other information inrtiasner, then the interim financial report is ingdete.

4.2 The following New Standards, Amendments and letpretations have been issued but have not yet been
applied to the Group and to the Company nor have an changes occured or has there been any earlier
application.

¢ |FRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for annual periods beégmon or after 1 January 2018, with early applarapermitted. The
final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments refteall phases of the financial instruments progaeat replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measureraeadtall previous versions of IFRS 9. The standatmbduces new
requirements for classification and measuremerpairment, and hedge accounting. The Group and Coynaee in
the process of assessing the impact of this stdratathe financial position or performance of the.
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e |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods begmon or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 establishfdge-step model
that will apply to revenue earned from a contraithva customer (with limited exceptions), regardle$ the type of

revenue transaction or the industry. The standasgtjgsirements will also apply to the recognitiord aneasurement of
gains and losses on the sale of some non-finaasgdts that are not an output of the entity’s amgimctivities (e.g.,

sales of property, plant and equipment or intaegiplExtensive disclosures will be required, inolgddisaggregation
of total revenue; information about performanceigdilons; changes in contract asset and liabildyoant balances
between periods and key judgments and estimatesGFbup and Company are in the process of assebsrigmpact

of this standard on the financial position or parfance of the Group.

e |FRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cldfications)

The Clarifications apply for annual periods begingnon or after 1 January 2018 with earlier appilicapermitted. The
objective of the Clarifications is to clarify thA$B’s intentions when developing the requirementd=RS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, particularly the aaotding of identifying performance obligations amigny the
wording of the “separately identifiable” principlef principal versus agent considerations includimg assessment of
whether an entity is a principal or an agent ad welapplications of control principle and of lisamg providing
additional guidance for accounting of intellectpaibperty and royalties. The Clarifications also e additional
practical expedients for entities that either apifiRS 15 fully retrospectively or that elect to gpgthe modified
retrospective approach. These Clarifications hateyat been endorsed by the EU. The Group and Coyngie in the
process of assessing the impact of this clarificatin the financial position or performance of @reup.

¢ Amendment in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statenmgs and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets betwen an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsidtenween the requirements in IFRS 10 and tho$&3n28, in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assetsweenh an investor and its associate or joint ventlifee main
consequence of the amendments is that a full gdiose is recognized when a transaction involvbssiness (whether
it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partialrgar loss is recognized when a transaction invoag&sets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets asetian a subsidiary. The amendments will be effecffom annual
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016.arhendments have not yet been endorsed by the EJGTbup
and Company are in the process of assessing thectrop this amendment on the financial positioperformance of
the Group.

¢ |FRS 16: Leases

The standard is effective for annual periods bdgmon or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 sets auptinciples for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and diseasfueases for both parties to a contract, he.customer (‘lessee’)
and the supplier (‘lessor’). The new standard nexpulessees to recognize most leases on theircfalastatements.
Lessees will have a single accounting model fotealbes, with certain exemptions. Lessor accourigirsgibstantially
unchanged. The standard has not been yet endoyded EU. The Group and Company are in the prookassessing
the impact of this standard on the financial positor performance of the Group.
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e |AS 12 Income taxes (Amendments): Recognition of Berred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments are effective for annual periodmhety on or after 1 January 2017, with early agation permitted.

The objective of these amendments is to clarify dbeounting for deferred tax assets for unreallssdes on debt
instruments measured at fair value. For exampéeathendments clarify the accounting for deferredatsets when an
entity is not allowed to deduct unrealised lossegdx purposes or when it has the ability andnitios to hold the debt
instruments until the unrealised loss reversess&laenendments have not yet been endorsed by théHelGroup and
Company are in the process of assessing the ingbalosts amendment on the financial position or perfance of the

Group.

e |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments): Discloge Initiative

The amendments are effective for annual periodsnhag on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier leggpion
permitted. The objective of these amendments éntble users of financial statements to evalusaagds in liabilities
arising from financing activities. The amendmentt require entities to provide disclosures thatlele investors to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from finengcactivities, including changes arising from célslvs and non-cash
changes. These amendments have not yet been ethdgrdbe EU. The Group and Company are in the pooé
assessing the impact of this amendment on thediabposition or performance of the Group.

o |FRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share basl Payment Transactions (Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual periodsinpégg on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier agiion
permitted. The Amendments provide requirements lmn dccounting for the effects of vesting and nostiag
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled d¥wsed payments, for share-based payment transaatith a net
settlement feature for withholding tax obligaticensd for modifications to the terms and conditiofisa share-based
payment that changes the classification of thesaation from cash-settled to equity-settled. Thesendments have
not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group and @oynare in the process of assessing the impabissamendment
on the financial position or performance of the @ro

o IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual periodsripégg on or after 1 January 2018. The amendmadtsess
concerns arising from implementing the new finahaiatruments Standard, IFRS 9, before implementhey new
insurance contracts standard that the Board islolgwg to replace IFRS 4. The amendments introdwoeoptions for
entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporagmgtion from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay apphpavhich
would permit entities that issue contracts withive tscope of IFRS 4 to reclassify, from profit osdoto other
comprehensive income, some of the income or exgegrdsing from designated financial assets. Thesemdments
have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The GroupCamdpany are in the process of assessing the ingdabis
amendment on the financial position or performaofdde Group.

e |AS 40: Transfers to Investment Property (Amendmens)

The Amendments are effective for annual periodsinoégg on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier &aion

permitted. The Amendments clarify when an entitgudti transfer property, including property undenstouction or
development into, or out of investment propertye Wmendments state that a change in use occurs thbgroperty
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investnproperty and there is evidence of the changesen A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use pfoperty does not provide evidence of a changesm These
Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the E&)GFbup and Company are in the process of assebsngpact
of this amendment on the financial position or parfance of the Group.
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e |FRIC INTERPETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactio ns and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation is effective for annual peridosginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlippli@ation
permitted. The Interpretation clarifies the accoumtfor transactions that include the receipt oyrpant of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The Intergietacovers foreign currency transactions whenrityerecognizes a
non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liabilityiagisrom the payment or receipt of advance consiilen before the
entity recognizes the related asset, expense omecThe Interpretation states that the date ofrthesaction, for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the dfinitial recognition of the non-monetary prgpent asset or
deferred income liability. If there are multipleypaents or receipts in advance, then the entity mestrmine a date of
the transactions for each payment or receipt ofiade consideration. This Interpretation has nobgein endorsed by
the EU. The Group and Company are in the proceass#ssing the impact of this amendment on thaediabposition
or performance of the Group.

ThelASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 4@ — 2016 Cyclewhich is a collection of amendments
to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annegiiogs beginning on or after 1 January 2017 for SFR2
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and omafoer 1 January 2018 for IFRS 1 First-time Adoptad International
Financial Reporting Standards and for IAS 28 Inwesits in Associates and Joint Ventures. Earliediegtpn is
permitted for IAS 28 Investments in Associates dotht Ventures. These annual improvements haveye@iobeen
endorsed by the EU. The Group and Company areeirpthcess of assessing the impact of this amendamrettie
financial position or performance of the Group.

> IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financal Reporting StandardsThis improvement
deletes the short-term exemptions regarding disoéssabout financial instruments, employee benefits
investment entities, applicable for first time atop.

> IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventur@he amendments clarify that the election to
measure at fair value through profit or loss aregtinent in an associate or a joint venture thaeid by an
entity that is venture capital organization, orestigualifying entity, is available for each invesim in an
associate or joint venture on an investment-bystment basis, upon initial recognition.

> IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other EntitiesThe amendments clarify that the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12, other than those of surnmediinancial information for subsidiaries, jowgntures
and associates, apply to an entity’s interest snilasidiary, a joint venture or an associate thatassified as
held for sale, as held for distribution, or as dignued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.

5. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated finahstatements requires management to make judgepestimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amountswainues, expenses, assets and liabilities, anddbompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingentliigds. Uncertainty about these assumptions arnichasts could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustmentéocarrying amount of assets or liabilities affdatefuture periods.

In the process of applying the Group’s accountinficies, management has made various judgementseTwhich
management has assessed to have the most signéifact on the amounts recognised in the cons@difinancial
statements have been discussed in the individuakrad the related financial statement line items.

The key assumptions concerning the future and dtegrsources of estimation uncertainty at the reppdate, that
have a significant risk of causing a material aijesnt to the carrying amounts of assets and ltasliwithin the next
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financial year, are also described in the indivich@tes of the related financial statement linengebelow. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parametglabde when the consolidated financial statemeree prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about fudakelopments, however, may change due to marketges or
circumstances arising that are beyond the confroh® Group. Such changes are reflected in thengs$ons when
they occur.

The basic judgments and estimates made by the GrndpgCompany which have the most significant immacthe
financial statements, mainly relate to:

A. Recovery of Receivables

Management examines the recoverability of the @agramounts of accounts receivable on an annuas,bgven
external information (data base of customers cnedihgs, legal advisors) in order to assess theverability of the
carrying value of accounts receivable.

Bad debt accounts are presented according to é&iimaas regards the amounts which are expectée r@covered
following analysis as well as in accordance with txperience of the Group regarding the probahiftgustomer
default. At the time at which a specific accounsibject to a greater risk as compared to the rocredit risk (for

example, low customer credibility, dispute in retpe the existence or the amount of the receivetidgthe Group and
the Company establish a provision for bad debtsew of covering the loss which may estimated ammitctv stems for
these receivables. The established provision i®asored with a corresponding charge to the restikgsich year and
any write-offs are accounted for through the priovis

Further information is provided in notes 28 and 37.
B. Impairment testing on goodwill and intangibles asets with an indefinite useful life

The Company and the Group examine and reassedaithalue and useful life of intangible assets witkere are
indications of a change in value.

The Group and the Company assess whether themepairiment of goodwill and intangible assets withiraefinite
useful life at least once a year and examine tle@tsvor conditions that render the possibilityropairment, such as a
significant adverse change in the business enviemiror a decision to sell or dispose a unit or sggmFor the
purpose of impairment testing, the value in useawth cash generating unit (CGU) to which an amotigbodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life haeb allocated, must be assessed.

The application of the valuation methodology of #adue in use, takes into consideration the aatparating results,
future business plans and financial projectionthefGroup and the Company in order to estimatdutuge cash flows
of the CGU and selection of the appropriate distoate, based on which the present value of futaigh flows is
determined. The Group and the Company annuallyidensvhether the aforementioned assets have begairied, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated imgaph 3.9.

Further information is provided in notes 20 and 21.
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C. Fair Value, Useful life and Impairment of Tangibde and Intangible assets

The Company and the Group examine and estimat®ithealue and useful life of tangible and intarigihssets when
there are indications of changes in value. Addélyn tangible and intangible assets are examinedhipairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicatehi carrying value may not be recoverable. \\ifipect to the
examination and assessment of the fair value apgatential impairment the company cooperates imdiependent
valuers.

Further information is provided in notes 18,19.

D. Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and aciates

The management of the Company examines the exétefcany indication of impairment of the Company’'s
investments in the share capital of other compathiesigh the impairment test of cash generatingsuni which these
investments are allocated. In the event that inidica of impairment exist, the Company proceedéncalculation of
the value in use of the cash generating unit basdtie discount cash flow method.

The recoverable amount which is represented thra@ogh is sensitive to parameters such as the wisdnterest rate
which is used in the above method as well as irptbgcted cash inflows and in the incremental vetiech is used for
extrapolation purposes and approximate calculations

Further information is provided in note 22.
E. Current income taxes and deferred tax assets

The Group and Company are subject to income tax@a fiumerous tax regulatory authorities. The pionisfor

income taxes includes the current tax and the pi@vifor possible additional taxes which may inasra result of the
audit from the tax authorities in addition to tlsgnificant judgments are required in determinihg provision for
income taxes. The actual income taxes may diffemfithe estimated amounts due to future changeséntax

regulations, significant changes in the regulatiohthe countries in which the Group operates @nticipated effects
from the final assessment of the tax liability @fck year from the tax authorities. In the eventergby the final
additional taxes which result following the tax @sicare different from the initial estimations, skedifferences will
affect the income taxes and the deferred taxdseoyéar in which the tax differences were assessed.

Deferred tax assets are recognized on all unuseldgaes to the extent that sufficient profits Wil available to offset
these tax losses.

The Group and Company recognize deferred tax afsetsansferred tax loses when sufficient taxaiefits have
resulted for two continuous years.

Further information is provided in note 16,23.

F. Fair value of biological assets
The accounting policies and methods applied fonvtieation of biological assets are explained ineN&4 .

As referred to in Note 3.4, the valuation of bidtag assets is subject to significant estimatesjaddments, the most
important of which are described below.
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Assumptions estimates and judgments in determininthe fair value of live fish

The estimated fair value of biomass is always basedssumptions, estimates and judgments involziniggree of
uncertainty, even if the company has gained corslide experience in the assessment of these factors

These estimates apply to the following key factding: volume of biomass, size distribution of bictad assets and
market prices.

Biomass volume

The determination of the volume of biomass is ftsel estimate based on the number of juvenileseplan the
seal/cages, the expected growth from the time afkstg, the accuracy of the Company’s biological edpdhe
estimated mortality based on statistical models@skrved mortality etc. The uncertainty in relatio the volume of
the biomass is usually low, although it is highercases where there may be an occurrence whichekaked in
massive mortality, especially in the beginningloé tycle, or if the fishes state of health restritie treatment of the
fish.

The Company monitors any deviations between thimattd volume of biomass and the actual data franadsting in
case any differences arise, in order that the Vialuanodels be altered (if required).

Size distribution of fish

Size distribution of fish in each cage: The fistthe sea, grow at different rates, where even ugded conditions, the
average weight of fish can result in a significdifterence in the quality and weight of the fisthelsize distribution
affects the price at which fish is sold, as eaes<lof fish size is separately priced in the matkeassessing the value
of biomass a normal, and expected size distribu@pplied.

Distribution of fish to mature and immature: Then@any distributes the fish population between neaturimmature,

depending on whether the fish population in a qagets the Company’s internal criteria for harvegtind sale. As far
as fry is concerned, and given that an active maekists at which sales are made, this categociassified as mature
biological stocks.

As regards fish fattening, the mature fish categmgsludes the fish population that exists in thges and which satisfy
the criteria of the company's size on harvesting sade, while the remaining fish fattening is cifisd as immature

fish. Management periodically evaluates its assesswf the criteria for mature and immature clasation, depending

on the dynamics of the market (demand, prices méghw class, etc.) regarding the sizes from whighharvesting of

each cage will be made.

Fair value

The assumption of fair value estimation is veryngigant for the valuation of biological assets aan small changes
in market prices will significantly affect the valion. The methodology used for determining the ketavalue is
presented in Note 3.4 whereby various parameteishwhquire estimates and judgments are presented.

The valuation depends on inter alia on the estichdar value / prices of biological assets, whiels, there is no
organized market for live fish , is calculated them various parameters taken into account, sudheagprevailing
market values of the harvested species , the deweot of the contracts of future delivery ( if anthe estimated
market prices during the harvesting period if ibh dze estimated reliably , any adjustments to beenfad potential

97



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

differences between the assets are valued andréhwailing prices in the market of harvested speerd which
primarily concern the condition and location of #pecies under assessment.

Further assessments are carried out in conneciithrpwices which are of the highest and best usenduhe period of
these assessment of the assets, who the partgijpatite hypothetical representative market arevaimat is the most
appropriate type of valuation each time within therarchy of valuation of IFRS 13. For immaturehfi@dditional

estimates are made as regards future costs tocbeed until these the assets become mature asawelstimates on
the discount rates of future cash flows.

The Group and the Company used as a source ofaihevdlue prices the recent transactions on whigbciic
adjustments were made taking into account , agitbescabove , various factors such as the prepitiarket values of
harvested species , changes in contracts for falelreery (when such is the case ) , the estimatarket prices during

the harvesting period if these could be estimagdidbly, any adjustments for potential differentegween the assets
which are valued and the prevailing prices in trekat for harvested species which mainly conceenctindition and
location of species under assessment . With thetaooof IFRS 13 which provided explanations inati&n to the
measurement of fair value and which introduced résguirement of maximizing the use of observablea dat any
method of measurement, the Group and the Compaogepded with the reassessment of the method used in
calculating the fair value of mature fish populatiomiting the unobservable data and focusing mesamant on actual
prices of recent transactions that occur duringn@aporting date.

As referred to in Note 4.1, the Company reviewéastimates and judgments in connection with thepsion of new
IFRS 13 which are made during the valuation ofdgalal assets. As a result of the above the folgwihanges in
estimates are hereby presented:

1. Level of separation between mature and immature:

As the intention and plan of the Company is to batwcages with an average weight of over 340 gr.updt,
management considered as the appropriate segmegaiiat between mature and immature fish the wdal.

2. Valuation methodology immature fish:

The Company examines the best practices that tmationally accepted for the valuation of immatfish, and alters
the valuation model of immature fish population whiteemed necessary.

Estimates and judgments are reviewed by Manageatesdich reporting period in order that the Compamyplies,
where applicable , with the general conditions dypdamics prevailing in the market in which the Camyp operates
and which may be changed in the future dependinghanges in circumstances and market dynamics .

Further information on the fair value of biologi@asets is provided in Note 26.

The valuation of biological assets of mature fisk haen based on the average price of the first wé#te principal
market prevailing during the month of January f@ €Company.
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6. Objectives and risk management policies

6.1 Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group and Company operate internationally. &posure to foreign exchange risk is zero becawes&ansactions
are realized in Euro. Foreign exchange risk affisa future commercial transactions, as well asnfret investments
in foreign operations.

The financial assets and the respective liabilitieforeign currency, translated into Euro at tixénfy rate, are analyzed
as follows:

2016 2015

Amounts in Euro

Notional amounts usb GBP NOK DKK CAD TRL CHF usb GBP NOK DKK CAD TRL CHF
Financial assets 94.13¢  592.723 - 348.398 0 17.590 780.651 578.280 - 219.174 0 11.805
Financial liabilities 33.609 8.982 87313 0 0 0 378 41.845  3.005 17.788 0 0 0 378
Total current exposure 930.525 583.741 (87.313) 0 348398 0 17.211 738.807 575.275  (17.788) 0 219.174 0 11.426
Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Total non-current

exposure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The table below presents the sensitivity of therafix profit for the year as well as of equityréiation to financial
assets and financial liabilities and the Euro erglearate against the above currencies.

We assume that a change occurs on 31 Decemberii2@i® exchange rate Euro/Foreign Currency. Thisgrdage is
based on a typical variance of the foreign curreasythis arises from the monthly observation effuro against any
foreign currency, for a period of 12 months.

In the event where the Euro changes in relatiothéoForeign Currency by the following percentademtthe impact
on the after-tax profit for the year and on eqistas follows:

Amounts in Euro 2016
usb GBP NOK DKK CAD TRY CHF
2,44% 2,44%  474%  -4,74%  20,08% -20,08% 0,97% -0,97% 3%  3,23% 16,08% -16,08%  1,06%  -1,06%
Post-tax profit for the year 2704 (2.704) 27.657 (27.657)  (17.536) 17.536 . - 11239 (11.239) - 182 (182)
Equity 22.704 (22.704)  27.657  (27.657) (17.536) 17.536 - - 11239 (11.239) - - 182 (182)
Amounts in Euro 2015
usb GBP NOK DKK CAD TRY CHF
3,57% -3,57% 1,89%  -1,89%  38,19% -38,19% 0,66% -0,66% 512% -5,12% 18,86% -18,86% 4,15% -4,15%
Post-tax profit for the year 26348 (26.348) 10894  (10.894) (6.792) 6.792 - - (11.221) - 475 (475)
Equity 26,348  (26.348) 10.894 (10.894)  (6.792) 6.792 . o121 (11.221) . . 475 (475)

The Group’s and Company’s exposure to foreign exgbarisk varies over the year in proportion to Weéume of
transactions in foreign currency. However, the @amalysis is deemed representative of the GrapdsCompany’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s and Company’s income and operating ¢lasts are substantially independent of changesnarket
interest rates. The Group and Company have signifimterest-bearing assets. Group and Compangyp@stimating
the present economic junctures and in generaltlceubition of the Euro interest rates, is to mamgpart of borrowings
in products with floating interest rates EURIBORdaS8PREAD. At the end of the accounting period, tbial

borrowings related to loans with floating interestes.
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The table below presents the sensitivity of thetpas profit for the year as well as of equity ateasonable change in
the interest rate of +1% or —1% (2015: +/-1%). Qeanin interest rates are deemed to fluctuatereasonable basis in
relation to current market conditions.

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 2016 2015 2016 2015
o0 7 -1,00% T o100 7 -1,00% T 1,00% 7 -1,00% 7 1,00% 7 -1,00%
Post-tax proft for the year ~ 1.688.934  -1.688.934 2222013 -2.222.013 1.665.272 -1.665.272 2.017.446 -2.017.446
Equity 1.688.934  -1.688.934 2222013 -2.222.013 1.665.272 -1.665.272 2.017.446 -2.017.446

Price risk

The Group and Company have exposed to equity siesuprrice risk due to investments held eithertfading or which
are classified as available-for-sale financial ssss€hanges in the value of assets are signifisards to result in a
significant fluctuation which can result in riskttte Group due to non-maturity dates.

The Group is exposed to changes in the value diidkogical assets. The Group assesses price luskuéitions of
biological assets regularly and examines the needdtions in order to anticipate the financiakrié volatility in the
price by +/(-) 5 would change the valuation posgitW(negatively) by an amount of € 7,6 mil/€ (7r6)l and a change
in the discount factor by +/(-) 1% would change ¥h&iation (negatively)/positively by a minimum&7f0,3) million/€
0,3 million.

The financial analysis department operates towareisting this purpose, by collecting informatiorviaw of offering
the product, from the domestic and internationaldpction, in addition to changes in demand from ¢heésting
Traditional International market and the new maskatroduced in Eastern Europe and America. THisrination is
evaluated and the parameters regarding the leviavehtories and the product’s expected pricesgHerfollowing two
(2) years are set.

6.2 Credit risk

The Group and Company’s exposure to credit riskniged to financial assets, which at the Balanbe& date are
analyzed as follows:

Amounts in Euro

GROUP COMPANY

2016 2015 2016 2015
Categories of financial assets
Restricted Cash 4.236.567 6.984.229 4.236.567 6.984.229
Cash and cash equivalents 8.754.791 8.777.477 6.993.008 7.242.741
Trade and other receivables 37.165.355 33.163.868 33.289.804 29.868.885
Other receivables 9.147.369 7.777.747 8.976.473 7.437.739
Total 59.304.082 56.703.321 53.495.852 51.533.594

The Group and Company’s management considers @lleofbove financial assets, which have not begminad in
prior period financial statements, of a high crediing.

For trade and other receivables, the Group and @aynpre not exposed to significant credit riskse Wholesale of
fresh fish and -livestock are mainly made to custasnwho are insured for the payment of their dsfatreover, the
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sale of juveniles is realized in its totality witie term that retention of ownership of the prodyzuntil its settlement.
Therefore, due to that the time required for thegletion of the production cycle of fresh fish iegter than the credit
time granted for the sale, the receivable is falgured.

6.3 Liquidity risk

The Group and Company manages its liquidity negdsabefully monitoring its debts, long-term finaalkliabilities as
well as of the payments that are made on a dagisb@he liquidity needs are monitored on a dailgt &weekly basis as
well as on a rolling period of 30 days. The Longwdiquidity needs for the next 6 months and thiéofeing year are
monthly assessed.

The Group and Company maintains cash for coveigdity needs for a period of 30 days. The funoisthe long-
term liquidity requirements are additionally maintd by an adequate amount of committed creditifi@si including
the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

The maturity of the financial liabilities at 31 Derober 2016 for the Group is analyzed as follows:

GROUP
Amounts in Euro 2016
Short-term Long-term
within 6 months between 6 to between 1 to over 5 years
12 moths 5years
Long-term borrowings 11.741.015 10.451.722 113.795.673 87.635.961
Short-term borrowings 2.000.984 - - -
Other Long-term liabilities - - 982.383 -
Trade payables 45.874.750 - - -
Other short-term liabilities 8.663.485 - - -
Total 68.280.234 10.451.722 114.778.056 87.635.961
COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 2016
Short-term Long-term
o between 6 to between 1 to
within 6 months 12 moths 5 years over 5 years

Long-term borrowings 11.699.652 10.410.360 113.609.541 87.635.961

Short-term borrowings 1.861.313 - - -

Other Long-term liabilities - - 982.383 -

Trade payables 39.449.532 - - -

Other short-term liabilities 7.901.660 - - -

Total 60.912.157 10.410.360 Y 114.591.924 87.635.961

The maturities of long-term borrowings during theay decreased compared to the previous year asul of the
reclassification of loans with maturities as presdrin Note 34.

The relevant maturity of the financial liabilitias of 31 December 2015, was as follows:
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GROUP

Amounts in Euro

2015

Short-term

within 6 months

between 6 to 12

Long-term

between 1to5
over 5 years

moths years

Long-term borrowings 20.469.816 91.885 58.665.866 80.798.087
Short-term borrowings 10.518.243 - - -
Other Long-term liabilities - - 1.492.249 -
Trade payables 44.568.844 20.162 - -
Other short-term liabilities 11.505.936 - - -
Total 87.062.839 112.047 60.158.115 80.798.087

COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 2015
Short-term Long-term
I bet né6t bet nlt
within 6 months elrﬁfot:s ° e SW::ars ° over 5 years

Long-term borrowings 20.428.453 50.523 58.396.857 80.798.087

Short-term borrowings 7.310.869 - - -

Other Long-term liabilities - - 1.492.249 -

Trade payables 40.864.517 20.162 - -

Other short-term liabilities 11.432.422 - - -

Total 80.036.262 70.685 59.889.106 80.798.087

The above contractual maturity dates reflect tlasgicash flows (interest is recognized only onlda@ borrowings),
which may differ from the carrying values of thetilities as at the balance sheet date.

7. Structure of “NIREUS AQUACULATURE S.A”

companies

group of

The company has the following participations whark consolidated either through the full consoiaabr through
the net equity method as follows:

PARTICIPATION
COMPANY PERCENTA GE
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A 100,00%
NIREUS INTERNATIONAL LTD 100,00%
MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD - UK 100,00%
PREDOMAR S..L. 100,00%
KEGO AGRI S.A 100,00%
NIREUS GMBH (*) 100,00%

(*) As at 27 July 2016 the name of the company wasealttom SEAFARM IONIAN (CENTRAL EUROPE) GMBH to
NIREUS GMBH

The companies participating in the financial staata are set out in the following table:
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COMPANY COUNTRY OF PARTICIPATION METHOD OF

INCORPORATION PERCENTAGE CONSOLIDATION

PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A GREECE 100,00% Full consolidation

NIREUS INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 100,00% Full consolidation

MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD - UK ENGLAND 100,00% indirect Full consolidation

PREDOMAR S.L. SPAIN 100,00% indirect Full consolidation

KEGO AGRI S.A GREECE 100,0% Full consolidation

NIREUS GMBH (*) GERMANY 100,00% Full consolidation

(*) As at 27 July 2016 the name of the company wasealttom SEAFARM IONIAN (CENTRAL EUROPE) GMBH to
NIREUS GMBH

It should be noted that during the year, liquidatirocedures regarding the subsidiary Company AQOKCTD
have been finalised, while liquidation procedurssegards MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTS-UK are in progréche
company’s investment in KEGO AGRI has been paytiatipaired (Note 22).

8. Calculation of EBITDA versus operating EBITDA

The Group’s and Company'’s policy is to calculatd HBA according to the profit before tax plus/mirthe financial
and investment results plus the depreciation anatésation expenses. Investment results includesg@dsses) from
the revaluation of fixed assets, grants, impairnoéigtoodwill and intangibles assets in additiomptofit/(losses) of

subsidiary companies held for sale.

Operating EBITDA is defined as EBITDA prior to te#fect of biological assets at fair value versostc

GROUP
Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Results for the period before taxes 7.859.169 68.057.887
Finance expenses 13 (9.767.286) (13.438.929)
Finance income 13 112.596 482.558
Gain on measurement from refinancing of financial liabilities 34 750.664 57.186.865
Losses from measurement of financial assets at fair value 18,19 (128.024) (1.246.026)
Depreciation 18,21 (5.493.892) (6.199.963)
Losses from sale of subsidiary companies - (2.988.850)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 20 (57.633) -
Profit before taxes, financing and investing results and
depreciation (EBITDA) 22.442.744 34.262.232
Effect from the change in biological assets at fair value 26 (4.866.583) 11.922.241
Profit before taxes, financing and investing results and
depreciation (EBITDA) - before the effect of biological
assets 27.309.327 22.339.991
COMPANY
Note 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Results for the period before taxes 6.509.576 68.996.699
Finance expenses 13 (9.548.284) (12.824.078)
Finance income 13 325.743 605.610
Gain on measurement from refinancing of financial liabilities 34 750.664 57.186.865
Losses from measurement of financial assets at fair value 18,19 (128.024) (1.246.026)
Depreciation 18,21 (5.423.188) (5.573.281)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 22 (1.100.000) (1.680.908)
Profit before taxes, financing and investing results
and depreciation (EBITDA) 21.632.665 32.528.517
Effect from the change in biological assets at fair value 26 (4.366.036) 11.262.045
Profit before taxes, financing and investing results
and depreciation (EBITDA) - before the effect of
biological assets 25.998.701 21.266.472 |
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9. Segment Information

Information per segment

The Group’s operating segments have been desighatst on monthly internal information which is\pded to an
Executive Committee (“CODM”) which has been assthiyy Management and which monitors the allocatiébn o

resources and the performance of the segmentsatipes as well as determining their business difui

We consider that it be mentioned that the operagemgments have similar products and productionilairpolicies

(sales —distribution) and similar financial chaeaistics that have been accumulated in one segment.

The operating segments which have been determiasddbon the financial decision making and the iooabf

monitoring are as followed:

» Aquaculture

> Fish feed

» Aviculture-Stockbreeding

The segment of Aquaculture includes the sales a@ievand processed fish in addition to the salgavahiles.
The remaining segments mainly include sales ofpegant for Aquaculture companies.

The profit before tax per segment does not incltlte segment’s financial results and the generalirdtrative

expenses are presented under the column elimiséidjnstments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are @nrma’s length basis in a manner similar to tratisas with third

parties.

The following amounts are presented in Euro.

31/12/2016
Amounts in Thds of It Fishfeed Aviculture- °“‘.e.’ Eliminations/ lidati
€ Aquaculture ee Stockbreeding remaining Adjustments Consolidation
segments
Sales revenue per
segment 178.349 7.108 9.970 4.876 (2.491) 197.812
Net operating costs (157.658) (5.823) (9.696) (2.580) (14.196) (189.953)
Profit before taxes 20.691 1.285 274 2.296 (16.687) 7.859
Depreciation expense 4.352 774 - 146 222 5.494
31/12/2015
. - Other SRR
Amounts in Thds of Aquaculture Fishfeed Aviculture- remaining Eliminations/ Consolidation
€ Stockbreeding Adjustments
segments
Sales revenue per
segment 168.619 5.092 9.884 5.422 (3.617) 185.400
Net operating costs (136.943) (4.232) (10.539) (2.811) 37.184 (117.341)
Profit before taxes 31.676 860 (656) 2.611 33.567 68.058
Depreciation expense 4.804 782 34 478 102 6.200

Assets per segment include those which the execatmmittee monitors and which can be distinguishexseparate

operating segments. Liabilities are monitored gnap basis.
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31/12/2016
Amounts in Thds of Aviculture- EA Eliminations/
Aquaculture Fshfeed 5 remaining . Consolidation
€ Stockbreeding Adjustments
segments
Assets per segment 267.634 19.186 2.823 6.975 77.757 374.375
Capital expenditure 5.878 100 14 193 68 6.252
31/12/2015
Amounts in Thds of Aviculture- Other Eliminations/
Aquaculture Fishfeed . remaining . Consolidation
€ Stockbreeding Adjustments
segments
Assets per segment 264.786 19.587 2.888 5.427 78.524 371.212
Capital expenditure 3.805 30 8 794 - 4.637
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
Information in relation to the destination locatioivevenue is presented below.
Amounts in Euro GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Greece 41.710.863 35.802.984
Euro-zone 134.930.142 130.488.864
Other countries 21.171.186 19.107.964

197.812.191 185.399.812

An analysis of the revenue and non-current assestiscbon the geographical area of customers in whahare located
is presented below:

Revenue per Country of subsidiary

GROUP
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Greece 183.863.925 172.800.869
Spain 13.948.266 11.695.892
Turkey - 903.051

197.812.191 185.399.812

Non-current Assets

GROUP
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Greece 88.933.128 89.126.835
Spain 2.933.490 3.178.257
91.866.618 92.305.092

Non-current assets include property, plant andmgant and intangible assets in addition to investmeoperty.

There is no customer which exceeds 10% of the Gsamd Company’s revenue
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10. Sale of non-biological assets-goods and other material

Sale of non-biological assets and other matera@abarlysed as follows:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Sale of merchandise 17.090.108 19.870.810 8.936.767 8.960.676
ng d‘;f finished and semi-finished 8.849.178 6.049.990 7.863.159 6.148.779
fi'fesrf;fl other inventories and scrap 1.103.061 1.242.549 559.550 922.855
Sale of services 348.839 663.425 443.473 617.210
- r r r E
Total sales of merchandise and 27.391.186  27.826.774 17.802.949  16.649.520
other materials

11. Salaries and personnel expenses

(o) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group and Company assess the retirement behdifiation as the present value of the legal @lilan which has
been assumed for the lump sum indemnity paymepeteonnel who terminate employment as a resulétiement.

The relative obligation was estimated based oreaictucalculations.

The respective obligation of the Group and the Camyps as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Balance liability at beginning of the year 2.608.348 2.365.903 2.508.226 2.106.215
Balance of merged companies during the year - - - 168.208
Current cost of merged company during the year (Note
11b) - - - (4.010)
Current service cost (Notellb) 308.061 213.045 298.243 204.484
Interest cost (Note 13) 51.959 51.810 49.961 49.705
Benefits paid (278.435) (152.816) (273.139) (144.486)
Remeasured actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation and
effect from change in IAS 19 81.132 130.406 78.966 128.110
Total liability at end of the year 2.771.065 2.608.348 2.662.257 2.508.226

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows

31/12/2015 31/12/2016

Discount rate 1,80% 2,00%
Future salary increases 1,80% 1,80%
Inflation rate 2,00% 2,00%

The amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that the deptthefmarket of high quality corporate bonds is eatdd based on
the currency in which the obligation is expressed @ot according to the country in which the oliigia exists.
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The assessment of the present value of the defieadfit liability and as applicable of the servamest, was made in
accordance with the Projected Unit Credit Meth@d(1L9, par.67).

When there is no in depth market for high qualityporate bonds in the same currency, governmend baties should
be used instead.

For this reason the basis on which the discoumt wats determined was the decreasing trend whiclyighe of the
European bonds iBoxx AA Corporate Overall 10+ EWRi¢es present and which was determined as at 2D1@ at -
1,8 % (2015: 2%), which is based on the bonds @o@ance with the estimated duration in relatiorih® benefits
rendered to employees and as suggested for longgevisions.

The use of an increased technical interest rafe586b would result in the actuarial liability beismaller than 7% while
the opposite percentage rate, meaning the usesofiadler interest rate of 0,5% would result in ahleigactuarial
liability by 8%.

The corresponding sensitivity checks with respecthe anticipated increase in salaries, that isuses of the 0,5%
higher than the anticipated increase in salariegldvoesult in the actuarial liability being increalsby 7% while the
exact opposite percentage, that is the use of wedsed by 0,5% rate would result in the actuaidlility being less
than 7%.

The use of an increased technical interest rat@ %% would result in the service cost being lesstB% while the
opposite percentage rate, namely the use of aemiatérest rate of 0,5% would result in a highawie cost by 10%.

The corresponding sensitivity checks with respecthe anticipated increase in salaries, that isutbe of the 0,5%
higher than the anticipated increase in salariegldveesult in the service cost being increased @ Ivhile the exact
opposite percentage, that is the use of a decrdgse®d% rate would result in the service cost géirss than 9%.

COMPANY COMPANY GROUP GROUP
Other comprehensive income (OCI) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Actuarial gains/(losses) due to financial
assumptions (74.562 (71.2Q5) (77407  (74.309)
Actuarial gains/(losses) due to experiencq (4.404 (56.90%) (3.325 (56.097)
Amount recorded in OCI | (78.964) (128.130) (81.132] (130.409)

The following payments are expected contributianghe defined benefit plan in future years:

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

YEARS GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2016
Oto1l 61.455 58.355
2to 5 258.785 240.887
6to 10 358.496 345.777
11 and above 2.092.329 2.017.239
Total 2.771.065 2.662.257
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

YEARS GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2015 31/12/2015
Oto 1 57.846 54.979
2t0 5 243.589 226.950
6 to 10 337.445 325.771
11 and above 1.969.468 1.900.526
Total " 2608348 = 2.508.226

(B) Employee benefit expense

The expenses recognised for benefits to employeearalysed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Wages and Employee Salaries (23.453.243) (22.299.487) (21.773.656) (18.543.479)
Social contributions (5.192.455) (4.982.700) (4.760.843) (4.107.361)
Provision for staff termination indemnity (Note
10a) (308.061) (211.874) (298.243) (200.474)

(28.953.759) (27.494.061) = (26.832.742) (22.851.314)

Number of employed personnel

The number of employed personnel as at Decemb&(B, amounted to 1.067 for the Company, and 1fd2the

Group while as at December 31, 2015 the correspgrmuimber totalled 1.039 for the Company, and 1f681he

Group.

12. Third party fees and benefits

The analysis of third party fees and benefits fofio

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Third party fees and expenses (11.493.732) (11.012.524) (7.332.779) (12.411.751)
Third party benefits (10.451.377) (10.251.612) (9.739.060) (9.233.559)

Total third party fees and
benefits

(21.945.109) (21.264.136) (17.071.839) (21.645.310)

13. Finance income and costs

Analysis of finance income and expenses is asgvsl

Finance Income
Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Dividend income - - 230.633
Interest income 112.596 76.543 95.110
Gain on measurement of derivative financial _ 406.015 )
instruments

Total finance income 112.596 482.558 325.743
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Finance Expenses
Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Interest expense from bank borrowings at
amortised cost

Interest expense from defined benefit
plans (Note 11a) (51.959) (51.810) (49.961) (49.705)

Total finance expenses (9.767.286) (13.438.929) (9.548.284) (12.824.078)

(9.715.327)  (13.387.119) (9.498.323) (12.774.373)

During the current year net financial expenses wital amount of € 1.988.820 (2015: €291.140) Hasen recognised
in relation to the discounting of loan and inteliestalments regarding the gain on the valuatiolvafh borrowings for
both the company’s and merged subsidiary’s, SEAFARMIAN S.A financial borrowings which is included the
above figure “interest expense from bank borrowiagamortised cost. Further information is presgriteNote 34
“Interest Bearing and Loan Borrowing”.

14. Other expenses

The analysis of other income and expenses isofleniing:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Donations and subsidies (25.707) (25.643) (25.207) (24.993)
Special export expenses (140.972) (124.346) (138.223) (121.223)
Printed material and stationery (76.570) (69.058) (69.450) (61.519)
Publication expenses (13.498) (18.988) (2.889) (8.040)
Exhibition expenses (38.531) (24.254) (38.531) (24.254)
Transportation expenses (17.748.160) (16.304.331) (16.887.661) (15.006.460)
Sales promotion and advertising expenses (183.703) (214.009) (161.001) (167.984)
Travelling expenses (378.455) (376.707) (281.084) (280.108)
Losses from disposal of assets (55.683) (468) (19.383) (468)
Losses from destruction of scrap inventories (182.346) (209.266) (125.549) (5.731)
Other extraordinary & non-operating expenses (556.571) (865.937) (515.065) (581.668)
Other prior year expenses (Notes 28,29,37) (374.941) (693.597) (379.204) (216.262)
Exchange differences (290.063) (441.702) (288.032) (238.532)
Subscriptions — Contributions (95.632) (78.982) (81.631) (67.407)
Consumable materials (4.422.081) (3.623.020) (4.362.965) (4.074.906)
l’;zf;tﬂ;tlcesséot:;eerst)han the non-incorporated in the (928.410) (709.168) (874.979) (622.423)
Tax fines and surcharges (168.362) (130.934) (162.924) (107.575)
Cleaning expenses (188.952) (164.960) (186.782) (156.063)
Security expenses (175.440) (175.470) (175.351) (175.025)
Various expenses (441.938) (363.266) (421.282) (266.588)
Total expenses (26.486.015) (24.614.106) (25.197.193) (22.207.229)
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15. Other income

Analysis of other operating expenses is as follows

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Sales subsidies and other sales revenue 381.853 321.834 381.853 200.252
Income fromother operations 107.334 327.887 65.953 273.557
Income from operating leases 925 5.769 40.600 60.900
Gain on disposal of assets 148.046 9.439 145.839 6.200
Other unutilised provision of bad debts (Note 28,29) 244,985 250.212 79.762 157.574
Credit notes for prior year purchases 76.538 152.810 56.188 152.810
Income frominsurance credit notes 79.150 189.889 79.150 189.889
Exchange differences 152.829 314.002 146.772 255.562
Other income 460.468 933.427 376.815 782.214
Total Income 1.652.127 2.505.269 1.372.931 2.078.958

During the current year amortization of grants xed assets of the prior year of an amount of EA8.590 for the
Company and Euro 792.621 for the Group has bedassified from “Other income”, as a deduction t@pdeciation
expense” (Note 35).

Other income mainly relates to third party revenue.

16. Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group and the Comisaay follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Current tax (265.298) (139.800) - -
Deferred tax 3.327.883 (7.862.105) 3.471.644 8.219.205
Income tax expense 3.062.585 (8.001.905) 3.471.644 8.219.205
Deferred tax - recognised in other comprehensive income
(Equity holders of the parent company) D=2 (G355, 22.900 (500.830)
Deferred tax - recognised in other comprehensive income

L - (2.882) - -
(non-controlling interests)
Income tax-other comprehensive income 67.432 (566.412) 22.900 (500.830)

The reconciliation between Income tax and defeta@dhs compared to the estimated charge is presbatew:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Current tax (265.298) (139.800) - -
Deferred tax 3.327.883 (7.862.105) 3.471.644 (8.219.205)
Total 3.062.585 (8.001.905) 3.471.644 (8.219.205)
Profit before tax 7.859.169 68.057.887 6.509.576 68.996.699
Tax rate 29% 29% 29% 29%
Estimated tax charge 2.279.159 19.736.787 1.887.777 20.009.043
Effect fromthe change in the income tax rate - (898.970) (628.640)
Tax effect of non-taxed income/expense which are non
tax deductible for tax purposes (1.582.026) (9.798.389) (1.599.703) (10.123.675)
Use of tax losses of the prior year for which no deferred _ (1.037.523) (1.037.523)
tax has been calculated
Effect of recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses (3.759.718) = (3.759.718) -
Actual Tax Charge (3.062.585) 8.001.905 (3.471.644) 8.219.205
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According to the Group’s policies, deferred taxeassare recognized following two consecutive patii¢ years. As a
result, the Group and Company has accumulated doiss@xcess of € 25,0 million for which the compams
recognized a deferred tax asset of € 3.759.718a@xtent that it is probable that future taxabteipwill be available
against which the unused tax losses will be naifedgainst the above-mentioned profits in accocganith paragraph
34 of IAS 12. (Note 23).

The parent company and all domestic subsidiariee baen audited for tax purposes for the prior gje@ccording to
the provisions of par. 5 of article 82 of L. 2238/8nd the provisions of article A5of L. 4174/2013 for which “Tax
compliance Reports” have been issued. Furthernforehe year 2015, the tax audit of the parent gany and its
subsidiaries were completed during the current yeawhich they had been subject by the Charteret Gertified

Accountants based on the provisions of articla,6& L. 4174/2013.

With respect to the financial year 2016, the Comgpas well as its domestic subsidiaries are in tloegss of issuing
the Tax compliance Certificate as provided by L411472013. Upon completion of the tax audit the G¥su
management does not expect that any significanlidaiities will occur beyond those recognized aegorted in the
financial statements.

According to the same provisions and based onakeudit of prior years, companies which may inexable profits
following the net off of accumulated tax lossesyéhastablished a provision for contingent tax liies which may

arise from the tax audit of the open tax years. dstablished provision for unaudited tax year®isstdered adequate.

Information with respect to the unaudited tax years
The unaudited, by the tax authorities, financiargefor the group companies are as follows:

GROUP COMPANIES UNAUDITED TAX YEARS
NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A From 2009 to 2010
AQUACOM LTD Since 1998
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A 2010
PREDOMAR S.L. 2013-2014

KEGO AGRI S.A 2010

NIREUS INTERNATIONAL LTD Since 2006
MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD - UK Since 2005

SEAFARM IONIAN (CENTRAL EUROPE) GMBH -

Further information on deferred tax is presenteNate 23 “Deferred tax receivables/(liabilities)”
17. Earnings per share
Analysis of earnings per share of the Group andCihpany is as follows:

Basic Earnings per share

Amounts in Euro GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Earnings attributable to equity holders

of the Company 10.921.754 59.248.995
Weighted average number of ordinary 283.839.126 AT
shares

Earnings per share (€ per share) 0,0385 0,5678
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Earnings per share is calculated as losses atililruto equity holders of the parent Company didide the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue duniegear.

Diluted Earnings per share

Amounts in Euro GROUP GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Earnings attributable to equity holders of the 12.868.595 62.215.908

Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 382.038.578 142.943.049
Diluted earnings per share (€ per share) 0,0337 0,4352

Diluted earnings per share, profit or losses pareskwhich are attributed to the equity holdersiddition to, the
weighted average of shares which are outstandmgdjusted so that all effects from the conversioshares to
common shares are taken into consideration.

18. Property Plant and Equipment

Land utilized for the purpose of either production administration is stated at fair value. Simiarbuildings,
machinery, technical installations and floating meare presented at fair value less accumulategtciegion reduced
by any other impairment losses which are recognézedt the date of measurement (Note 5.E).

The Group and the Company during the prior yearpas of their policy which requires the assessnantthe
recoverable value of fixed assets at each repodatg and whenever there is an objective indicétian the carrying
value of assets may not be recoverable, takinganotmunt the new operating structure of the compétiythe merger
of the subsidiary company SeaFarm lonian SA andttineent economic environment, proceeded with thygairment
of specific machinery, technical installations dloéting means of a total amount of € 3.011.029.

Statement of
il ; Fair value reserve Total
comprehensive
income
Buildings 9.706 1.038 10.744
Mechanical equipment and technical installati 970.619 1.561.074 2.531.693
Other Transportation means 116.072 288.956 405.028
Furniture and other equipment 63.564 - 63.564
Total 1.159.961 1.851.068 3.011.029

Taking into consideration the current conditiorsuteng from the developments in the Greek econaamywell as from
the economic environment assessed, given the natwation and valuation method (the comparablehogtand the
method of residual replacement cost) of the prgpéhe management of the Group and the Companyssesdeahat
there were no significant changes in the assetsvédues as at 31.12.2016.

Other property, plant and equipment are preseritedsh less accumulated depreciation less and impat costs.
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Depreciation expense of tangible assets (excepamor which is a non-depreciable asset) is caledlan a straight-line
basis over the useful life of the asset. Duringytbar, depreciation expense of property plant apdpenent as well as
of intangible assets of the Group and Company afraaunt of € 6.286.513 and € 6.145.778 respectiadypresented
below has been netted off against the amortizatioome of grants.

Property, plant and equipment is analysed as fallow

GROUP
Mechanical
Other ) Other . ’
Land Buildings Installations eql;lpme_n e Transportation i Furnltur.e ey unfier Total
. echnical means  other equipment construction
and equipment . . means
installations
Amounts in Euro
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2015 7.723.350 36.431.278 60.575324  15.460.767 4815616  4.494.583 9,330,904 645596  139.477.418
Additions - 294.292 3.734.936 41.705 1.127.591 - 81179 1.368.997 6.798.700
Disposals - - (58.480) (8.804) (22.367) - (12.482) - (102.133)
Write-offs - - (190.958) (24.998) (590) (216.546)
Reclassffications - - (125.139) 9.073 (196.063) 160.762 - - (151.367)
Reclassffications to/from fixed/intagible
assets - 26.822 - - - - - (1.126.206) (899.384)
Reversals due to sold subsidiaries (3.390) (46.647) (97.384) (65.436) (6.810) - (8.494) - (228.161)
Revaluation of assets - (267.472)  (13.099.869)  (1.760.928) (315.092)  (370.476) (1.413.258) - (17.227.095)
Exchange differences 3390 46.647 95.624 65.436 6.810 = 7.481 - 225.388
Balance at 31 December 2015 7.723.350 36.684.920 50.834054  13.741.813 5.384.687  4.284.869 8.134.740 888.387  127.676.820
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1January 2015 - (3.112386)  (47.203.604) 1405  (4.292.552) 26828 (8762.227) - (63.342.536)
Depreciation charge - (804.250) (2.842.549)  (1.579.243) (120.856) (366.518) (155.001) - (5.868.417)
Disposals - - 58.254 49 21.818 - 8.260 - 88581
Write-offs - - 190.955 - 24.998 - 664 216.617
Reclassffications - - 124.083 (8.018) 62.128 (26.828) - - 151.365
Reversals due to sold subsidiaries - 12117 91.785 10.422 2.580 - 7.056 - 123.960
Revaluation of assets = 256.728 12.151.974 177.130 245.400 35.141 1.349.69%4 - 14.216.067
Foreign Exchange differences - (5.402) (75.993) - (1.038) - (3.971) - (86.404)
Balance at 31 December 2015 - (3.653.193)  (37.505.095)  (1.398.055)  (4.057.522)  (331377) (7.555.525) - (54500.767)
Net Book Value at 31 December 2015 7.723.350 33.031.727 13328959  12.343758 ' 1327.165 3.953492 579.215 888.387 73.176.053
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2016 7.723.350 36684920 50834054  13.741.813 5.384.687  4.284.869 8.134.740 888.387  127.676.820
Additions - 382.562 3.659.553 - 860.916 - 230.480 1.100.730 6.234.241
Disposals - (2.311) (72.380) (31.142) (25.652) - (12.907) (36.300) (180.692)
Reclassifications - - - - 306 (306) - - -
Reclassifications fromwork-in-progress - 913,513 106.071 - 21.800 - (1.729.893) (688.509)
Revaluation (118.826) (12.554) - (37.624) - D 0 - (169.004)
Balance at 31 December 2016 7.604.524 37.966.130 54.527.298  13.673.047 6.242,057  4.284.563 8.352.313 222924  132.872.856
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1January 2016 - (3.653.193)  (37.505.005) (1.398.055) (4057522)  (331.377)  (7.555525) - (54500.767)
Depreciation charge - (908.852)  (2.609.287)  (1.380.097) (04471)  (332.105) (171.886) - (5606.698)
Disposals ° 2311 28.280 6.546 25.655 (18) 10.856 2 73.630
Reclassffications - - - - (46) 46 - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 - (4.559.734)  (40.086.102)  (2.771.606)  (4.236.384)  (663454) (7.716.555) - (60.033.835)
Net Book Value at 31 December 2016 7.604.524 33406396 14441196 10901441 " 2005673  3.621.109 635.758 222924 72.839.021

113



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

COMPANY

Mechanical Other

Land Buildings Other Inst_allatlons equlpme_nt and Transportztion  Foating means Furnltur_e and  Assets um_ier Total
and equipment technical other equipment  construction

. : means

installations
Amounts in Euro
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2015 7445317  31.175.789 47072949  14.333.220 3,675,937 3.116.899 8.200.209 223.149 115.243.469
5::;"“ of merged companies in the B9 3075913 14542407 797.346 935.838 1,538,446 981078 - 21924997
Additions B 271.492 4,031.167 B 1.036.861 - 225.131 1.148.117 6.718.768
Disposals - - - - (21.721) - - (21.721)
Write-offs - - (190.958) - (24.998) - (590) - (216.546)
Reclassifications - - (123.733) 7.667 (35.300) - - - (151.366)
Reclassifications to/from fixed/intagible
assets - 226,822 - - - - - (1.126.206) (899.384)
Held for sale assets - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation of assets - (267.472) (13.099.869) (1.760.928) (315.092) (370.476) (1.413.258) - (17.227.095)
Write-off of depreciation - - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 7499.286  34.488.544 52.231.963  13.377.305 5.251.525 4,284.869 7.992.570 245.060 125.371.122
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2015 - (476.710) (33.791.508) - (3.292.420) - (7.667.242) - (45.227.880)
Balance of merged companies in the
year - (2.451.579) (13.662.598) (96.977) (848.793) (146.152) (955.224) - (18.161.323)
Depreciation charge - (650.736) (2.614.324) (1.425.076) (108.790) (220.367) (143.533) - (5.162.826)
Disposals - - - - 2717 - - - 21717
Write-offs 190.958 - 24.998 123 216,079
Reclassifications - 122.677 (6.612) 35.301 - - - 151,366
Revaluation of assets 256,728 12.151.974 177.130 245.400 35.141 1,349.694 - 14.216.067
Balance at 31 December 2015 - (3322297) (37.602.821)  (1.351535) (3.922.587) (331.378) (7416.182) - (53.946.800)
Net Book Value at 31 December 2015 7499.286  31.166.247 14.629.142  12,025.770 1.328.938 3.953491 576.388 245.060 71424322
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2016 7499.286  34.488.544 52231963  13.377.305 5.251.525 4,284,869 7,992,570 245,060 125371122
Addtions - 382.562 3.729.353 - 860.646 - 216.605 1.100.166 6.289.332
Disposals - (2.311) (60.917) (31.142) (25.652) - (12.907) - (132.929)
Reclassifications - - - - 306 (306) - - -
Reclassifications from work-in-progress - 371.716 40.277 - 21.800 - - (1.122.302) (688.509)
Balance at 31 December 2016 7499.286  35.240.511 55.940.676  13.346.163 6.108.625 4.284.563 8.196.268 222924 130.839.016
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2016 - (3322297) (37.602821)  (1.351535) (3.922.587) (331.378) (7416.182) - (53.946.800)
Depreciation charge - (676.410) (2.745.266) (1.341.055) (204.379) (332.105) (166.828) - (5:466.043)
Disposals - 231 27.853 6.546 25.655 (18) 10.856 - 73.203
Reclassifications - - - - (46) 4% - - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 - (3.996.39) (40.320.234)  (2.686.044) (4.101.357) (663.455) (7.572.154) - (59.339.640)
Net Book Value at 31 December 2016 7499.286  31.244.115 15620442  10.660.119 2,007.268 3,621,108 624.114 222924 71.499.376

In the Profit and loss statement in the figure ‘f@emtion” amortization of grants on assets has li#set against the
figure. With respect to the current year the figaneounts to € 722.590 for the Company and € 792f@2the Group.
The corresponding prior year figure amounts to €.627 for the Company and € 696.610 for the GriNgi€ 35).

Other Installations and equipment mainly includeedi assets concerning fattening and hatchery wmits more
specifically to cages, nets, anchorage, air corspregenerators, filters etc.
Mortgages and pledges against Group’s assets alysed in Note 41, below.
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19. Investment properties

The investment property of the Group and the Comjpmanalysed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Amounts in Euro Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total

Carrying value at 1 3
Jo1g D VaMe st T january 1.304.243  2.858.752 4.162.995 1.100.808  2.182.204  3.283.012

Balance of merged companies in the

vear 203.435 676.548 879.983
Gains/(losses) from fair value 239.163 (325.228) (86.065) 239.163 (325.228) (86.065)
Carrying value at 31 December

2015 1.543.406 2.533.524 4.076.930 1.543.406 2,533.524 4.076.930
Reclassification (6.848) 6.848 - (6.848) 6.848 -
Gains/(losses) from fair value 5.099 (133.123) (128.024) 5.099 (133.123) (128.024)
Carrying value at 31 December

2016 1.541.657 2.407.249 3.948.906 1.541.657 2.407.249  3.948.906

Investment property is measured on an annual batsygar-end by the use of an independent qualifidaer.

As at 31 December 2016 the Group and Company regdhnd and buildings based on a evaluation peddrhby an
accredited independent valuer. The fair value heenbbased on market values whereby the currenevalere
revalued in accordance with the location and playsiondition of the respective assets.

The fair value of land was determined based onmhbet recent transactions observable in the markaccordance
with the sales comparison Method. The fair valuéwifdings was determined based on the method pfed@ble
replacement cost. The above methods are in acamdaith the International Valuation Standards Cotteai

The fair value of the properties was determinedhgyuse of the replacement cost method. This migats/aluations
performed by the valuer are based on active mamkegs, significantly adjusted for differences fe thature, location
or condition of the specific property. As the datierevaluation 31 December 2016, the fair values laased on
valuations performed by the external valuer.

It should be noted that the maximum price of buii@i also includes installations of the surroundinga, while the
non-representative prices of land have been exdlude

The following table provides the fair value measueat hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabdlitie

Assets measured at fair value Date of Measurement TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

Office December 31 2016 462.332 - - \Y

Retail December 31 2016 3.486.574 - - %
3.948.906

Assets measured at fair value Date of Measurement TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

Office December 31 2015 477.190 - - \Y

Retail December 31 2015 3.599.739 - - %
4.076.930

Further information is presented in Note 43 and 44.
Significant and individual increases (decreasegh@estimated price per square meter in isolatioald result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value.
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The effect from the revaluation of land and builglirat fair value was a decrease in the equity ipasitf the Company
and Group by an amount of € 128.024 (Company 2088.065 and Group 2015: € 86.065) respectivelyuin profit

and loss (before tax).

20. Goodwill

GROUP COMPANY

Amounts in Euro Amounts in Euro

Carrying value at 1 January 2015 30.356.630 Carrying value at 1 January 2015 19.049.833
Balance of merged companies in the year - Balance of merged companies in the year 10.918.992

Carrying value at 31 December 2015 30.356.630 Carrying value at 31 December 2016 29.968.825
Impairment losses (57.633) Impairment losses -

Carrying value at 31 December 2016 30.298.997 Carrying value at 31 December 2016 29.968.825

The company’s goodwill of € 29.968.825 includes ook value of goodwill of the subsidiary SEAFARI@NIAN
which was recognized in 2015 of an amount of € 18.992. The remaining amount of € 19.049.833 rel&dethe
carrying value of prior years’ merged companies.

Goodwill acquired through business combinationsiatahgible assets with indefinite lives, i.e. fisim licenses,
have been allocated to three cash-generating (@@$Js), which are also operating and reportablenseds, for
impairment testing as follows:

e Aguaculture unit

e Fish feed unit

e Aviculture-Stockbreeding unit

The carrying amount of goodwill and fish-farm lices allocated to each of the cash-generating igrfitsther
analysed in Note 22:

AQUACULTURE FISHFEED AVICULTURE - STOCKBREEDING TOTAL
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Goodwill 26.590.022 26.590.022 3.708.975 3.708.975 - 57.633 30.298.997 30.356.630]
Aquaculture
Licenses 13.680.000 13.680.000 = - - = 13.680.000 13.680.000

As at 31 December 2016, the market capitalisatfoth® Group was shown to be below the book valugsoéquity,
indicating a potential impairment of goodwill amdgairment of the assets per operating segment.

The Group performed an annual impairment test amuwgil and intangible assets with an indefinite fuséife as at 31
December 2016. During the examination of indicatiof impairment, the Group examines, among othetofs, the
relationship between the market capitalization guedcarrying value.

The recoverable amount of the three operating setgres been determined based on a value in usdatain using
cash flow projections from financial budgets apgeb\vby senior management covering a five-year peridte
projected cash flows have been calculated in suglay so as to reflect the demand conditions of egmdrating
segment. The pre-tax discount rate applied to @ashprojections is 8,0%The cash flows which relate to the 5-year
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period change in accordance with estimates foraijpey profits, investments for equipment and wogkiapital needs.
Indicatively it is noted that for the 5-year peri(@D17-2021) the compound growth rate of (CAGR)tfer aquaculture
and fish feed segments is estimated at 2,7%, vibilehe Aviculture stock breeding segment, proptsi are set at
3,4%. Following the 5-year period, cash flows ateeeded with a growth rate of 3% for the aquaceltand fish feed
segments and 2% for the aviculture and stockbrgesttgment taking into consideration the long-terojqetions of
the company for the three segments in additioméocburse of long-term inflation. The above petages are based
on management’s projections.

The impairment test resulted in that the recoveramhount of the aquaculture segment and of thefdisti segment
exceeded their carrying value reflecting the pesiprospects of the market in the future. With ee$po the aviculture
and stock breeding segment the recoverable amauigidvbetween a range of values where the lowageraas lower
than the carrying value. Therefore, the Companggeized an impairment on the total of goodwill whicas been
allocated to the said segment of an amount of €33/.Furthermore, the Group proceeded with theatin of the
cash generating unit of the above aviculture andksreeding unit and wrote-off the asset revaluateserve of an
amount of €169.004. Based on management’s assessandnfollowing the above impairment, the total af

remaining assets are considered to be fully reeier

The calculation of value-in-use for the three uistmost sensitive to the following assumptions:

a) Profit margin

b) Discount rates

¢) Market share during the budget period
d) Growth rate to perpetuity

e Margin of earnings before interest, taxes, deptieciaand amortisatior Margins of earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation are basedtimations during the budget period of five yeard selate
to expected prices, sale quantities, market shagecast of sale and operating costs. Estimationghfose
amounts use the existing data of the industry iitkvthe three units operate.

e Discount rates — Discount rates reflect the curmaarket assessment of the risks specific to eash ca
generating unit. The discount rate was estimatsddan the average percentage of a weighted aveoagef
capital for the industry which takes into accourg tlebt to equity ratio. The cost of capital arisesn the
expected yield of investments from the investorthefGroup and the cost of debt is based on thetdabthe
Group should accommodate. This rate was furthersaéeljl to reflect the market assessment of anyspekific
to the cash generating unit for which future estara

e Market share during the budget period — These gssoins are important because, as well as usingsingu
data for growth rates management assesses hownit'e position, relative to its competitors, migthange
over the budget period. Management expects stalmilithe market where the three units operate duttire
budgeted period.

e Growth rate to perpetuity — Rates are based on-temg prospective of the group for the three rdapgrt
segments.

Profit before interest, taxes, depreciation and amwization (EBITDA)
Profit before interest, tax and depreciation argeldeon historical data and estimates during thiegéor the next five

years for the two cash generating units and moeeipally for the CGU aquaculture and fish feedcls that future
changes are incorporated in the Group’s profitghilis expected by management.
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Discount rate

The discount rates reflect the assessment of theerdgustatus of the risks related to each Cash f@éng Unit
(“CGU"). The discount rate was calculated as therage of the weighted average cost of capital éninldustry. This
percentage is further adjusted in order to refteetassumptions of the market risk for each casiemging unit for
which the estimates of future cash flows has nehtmdjusted. The discount rate used for impairresting is reduced
due to recent improvements in the credit qualityall as due to prospects of the Greek public detnd, that of the EU
as a whole. Moreover, this discount rate includesadditional percentage of risk-taking (companycéje risk
premium) as a result of the sensitivity analysiscieted on key operating parameters of the casisflo

Perpetuity growth
The growth rate is based on the Group's long-teoagects for both units.

Sensitivity analysis of changes in assumptions

Management performed a sensitivity analysis in fasethe three CGU’s with respect to movementshie above
parameters for the segments of Aquaculture andfeesth from which it was concluded that any reabtahange in
the above parameters would not result in the aagryialue exceeding the recoverable value for anthefabove
CGU's.

A sensitivity analysis was performed on the positiv negative movement in the discount rate by Qj&%e positive
or negative change in the growth rate in perpetbity0,5%, in order to examine any potential impantof the
aviculture stockbreeding segment. An increase endiscount rate by 0,5% with a reduction in thewghorate to
perpetuity by 0,5% would result in a further redmetby an amount € 0,5 million, while a decreasthmdiscount rate
by 0,5% and an increase in the growth rate by Op#sld result in a further increase in the recoviramount by €
0,6 million.

21. Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group and Companteretainly to acquired aquaculture licences and caensoftware
licences. Analysis of the carrying values of thewahis presented in summary in the tables hereabelo
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GROUP

Amounts in Euro

Cost

Balance 1 January 2015
Additions

Disposals/ Write-offs/Transfers to
investments

Transfers from work under
construction

Re-estimation
Reversals of sold subsidiaries

Exchange differences
Balance 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortisation
Balance 1 January 2015
Amortisation charge

Disposals/ Write-offs/Transfers to
investments

Spin-off assets

Reversals of sold subsidiaries
Exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2015
Net book value at 31 December
2015

Cost

Balance 1 January 2016
Additions

Transfers from work under
construction

Balance 31 December 2016

Accumulated amortisation
Balance 1 January 2016
Amortisation charge

Balance at 31 December 2016
Net book value at 31 December
2016

Computer and Aquaculture
. Total
other software Licences
8.464.542 13.680.000 22.144.542
112.294 - 112.294
(14.870) - (14.870)
899.384 - 899.384
(2.631) - (2.631)
1.986 - 1.986
9.460.705 13.680.000 23.140.705
(7.061.628) - (7.061.628)
(1.028.156) - (1.028.156)
244 : 244
2.615 - 2.615
(1.671) = (1.671)
(8.088.596) - (8.088.596)
1.372.109 13.680.000 15.052.109
9.460.705 13.680.000 23.140.705
17.887 - 17.887
688.509 - 688.509
10.167.101 13.680.000 23.847.101
(8.088.595) - (8.088.595)
(679.815) - (679.815)
(8.768.410) - (8.768.410)
1.398.691 13.680.000 15.078.691
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COMPANY

Computer and

Aquaculture

Amounts in Euro other software Licences Total
Cost

Balance 1 January 2015 8.245.264 2.766.000 11.011.264
Balance of companies merged in

the year 212.203 8.709.000 8.921.203
Additions 111.649 - 111.649
Disposals/ Write-offs/Transfers to

investments (14.870) - (14.870)
Transfers from work under

construction 899.384 - 899.384
Balance 31 December 2015 9.453.630 11.475.000 20.928.630
Accumulated amortisation

Balance 1 January 2015 (6.842.578) - (6.842.578)
Balance of companies merged in

the year (212.203) - (212.203)
Amortisation charge (1.027.132) - (1.027.132)
Disposals/ Write-offs/Transfers to

investments 244 - 244
Balance at 31 December 2015 (8.081.669) - (8.081.669)
Net book value at 31 December

2015 1.371.961 11.475.000 12.846.961
Cost

Balance 1 January 2016 9.453.630 11.475.000 20.928.630
Additions 17.887 - 17.887
Transfers from work under

construction 688.509 - 688.509
Balance 3° December 2016 10.160.026 11.475.000 21.635.026
Accumulated amortisation

Balance 1 January 2016 (8.081.669) - (8.081.669)
Amortisation charge (679.735) - (679.735)
Balance at 31 December 2016 (8.761.404) - (8.761.404)
Net book value at 31 December

2016 1.398.622 11.475.000 12.873.622

“Aquaculture licences” on a Group level relate e tvalue of the aquaculture licenses of the Comptrey Group
“SEAFARM IONIAN SA”, “KEGO AGRI SA”", and “"PREDOMAR S.L", which resulted from the acquisition of the
corresponding subsidiaries. The Company’s aquaeulicense value relates to the value of aquaailivenses of the
absorbed subsidiary companies KEGO S.A, RED ANCH&Rand SEAFARM IONIAN SA. The aforementioned
goodwill is not depreciated, but is assessed fapainment loss at each reporting period, in accardarith IAS 36.

The management of the Group and Company examieesutihent conditions which arise from the developtsién the

greek economy and the broader context of the ecmnenvironment and assessed that no material ckahgee
occurred in the fair values as at 31.12.2016.
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22. Investments in subsidiaries

In the financial statements of the Company, investi® in subsidiary companies have been measuradgatsition
cost less any impairment losses.

Amounts in Euro COMPANY
31/12/2016
Opening Balance 14.832.214
Impairment loss (1.100.000)
Closing Balance 13.732.214

The company’s percentage participation in investsjamhich are not listed on the Athens Stock Exgleallarket, is
analysed as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2016
Percentage Reduction Increase in Impairment Amount as | Impairment m Percentage
Company Cost Shareholding LRetun share Cost. of M?A per Financial of mﬁ"“' . M?—f Shareholding
Sold of SI!are capital 31.12.2015 Investment Subsidiary Position | Investment Position | incorporation 31.12.2016
Capital - 31.12.2016 I
[PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A 29.347 - -] 1.350.000 1.379.347 - 1.379.347 - 1.379.347 GREECE 100,00%
AQUACOM LTD (liquidated comp 1.141.394 - - 1.141.394 | (1.141.394) - - - VIRGIN ISLANDS  100,00%
ILKNAK SU URUNLERI SAN Ve
TIC A.S.(sold subsidiary) 3979492 |  (1.919.337) - 2.060.155 | (2.060.155) - - -] TURKEY 0,00%
NIREUS INTERNATIONAL LTD 7.380.508 - | (980.476), 6.400.033 - 6.400.033 - 6.400.033 CYPRUS 100,00%
BALIK YEMI URETIMI SANAYI
VE TICARET A.S.(sold
subsidiary) 272 (100) - 172 (172) - - - TURKEY 0,00%
SEA FARM IONIAN S.A (merged
subsidiary) 13.745.179 - - 34,000 | 13.779.179 -] (13.779.179) - - -] GREECE 0,00%
KEGO AGRI S.A 8.952.834 - - 8.952.834 | (1.900.000 7.052.834 | (1.100.000)]  5.952.834 GREECE 100,00%
35.229.026 | (1.919.437)| (980.476)| 1.384.000 | 33.713.114 | (5.101.721)| (13.779.179)] 14.832.214 | (1.100.000) 13.732.214

The share capital of the subsidiary company KEGORAG.A was resolved to be decreased by an amoui of
1.313.920, according to the resolutions of the &bdiinary General Assembly of the shareholdersdda8e04.2016,
and the amendments of the articles of associasdmaa been recorded in the General Electronic CaooiahdRegistry
on 17.05.2016, with a cash redemption of sharestfamotigh a reduction in the par value of sharesubyamount of €
0,64 each, with an ultimate net-off of the lialyilib the parent company. Following the above vacation of the share
capital reduction and restoration of the respectisticle of the Articles of Association was resalveased on the
resolutions of the Extraordinary Shareholders Meetif KEGO AGRI, dated 15.2.2017 (Note 44 “Evenfterathe
reporting period”).

It should be noted that there are no restrictiogtsvben the Group and the above-mentioned subsidias regards to
their access to the assets and the liabilitieshef Group, nor is there any restriction to the tiemsf funds and
dividends between the Group and companies.

Investments impairment test

As referred to in the financial statements of thémpyear 2015, as at 21.01.2015, (Note 21: “Inwesits in
subsidiaries”) the management of the Group enteredan agreement for the sale of all shares helthé Turkish
companies, ILKNAK SU URUNLERI SANAYI VE TICARET A.SIN and MIRAMAR SU URUNLERI VE BALIK

YEMI SANAYI VE TICARET AS. NIN. During the prior yar and with the completion of the sale of the comgs

an addition loss of € 2.988.850 ws recognized tegulfrom the direct movement in equity incorpothtérom the
subsidiaries’ results of the period up until theéte of the sale, in the Group results of a tatabant of € 203.657, in
addition to the transfer of reserves (foreign exgeareserve, other reserves and non-controllingrésts) of €
2.785.193.

The Company identifies similar nature CGUs as thdsatified by the Group which effectively overlamividual

investments in subsidiaries. For the purpose of ithpairment test of investments the Company alksats
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investments namely to Aquaculture unit and FiskeFenit where investments in subsidiaries have lalenated for
impairment test purposes:

AQUACULTURE AVICULTURE AND STOCKBREEDING TOTAL
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Investments in subsidiaries 7.779.379 7.779.379 5.952.835 7.052.835 13.732.214 14.832.214

With respect to the separate Financial Statemehttheo Company, an impairment test was performedfa8l
December 2016 on investments in subsidiaries waeradication of impairment resulted. The recoverabmount of
the unit was determined according to the valuese which was calculated based on the projected ftask from
financial budgets of the company approved by semi@anagement, covering a 5-year period. The prajecash flows
have been calculated in order that these reflecttinrent demand. The pre-tax interest which wad @isr the discount
of the projected cash flows amounts to 8,0%. Theh ¢lws have been calculated according to thesotistate of the
assets of the Company. Indicatively it is notedt ttor the 5-year period (2017-2021) the compourawth rate of
(CAGR) for the aquaculture and fish feed segmesitestimated at 2,7%, while for the Aviculture stdmeeding
segment projections are set at 3,4%. Followingbtlyear period the cash flows are extended withoavtir rate of 3%
for the aquaculture and fish feed segments and @eotHe aviculture and stockbreeding segment takirg
consideration the long-term projections of the campfor the three segments in addition to the awifslong-term
inflation.

The impairment test indicates that the recoveram®unt of the aquaculture segment exceeds itsiogriyalue
reflecting positive expectations which prevail hetmarket for the future. Regarding the investniei{EGO AGRI
which had been allocated to the aviculture andkét@e=ding CGU, the recoverable value fluctuatedvbeh a range of
values where the lowest value was less than ityiogrvalue. As a result, the Company proceedel wit impairment
in its investment of an amount of € 1.100.000.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recdsleramount was determined as the value in useuletéd on the
basis of projected cash flows from the Group’siiicial budgets approved by management, coveringiacoef five
years. The CGU being tested for impairment is Hmaesas that used for goodwill impairment and tleeetlisclosures
regarding assumptions used are the same as thesenped above in the disclosures for goodwill immpant.

Sensitivity Analysis

A sensitivity analysis was performed on the positiv negative movement in the discount rate by Qj&%e positive
or negative change in the growth rate in perpetbity0,5%, in order to examine any potential impantof the
aviculture stockbreeding segment. An increase endiscount rate by 0,5% with a reduction in thewghorate to
perpetuity by 0,5% would result in a further redmetby an amount € 0,5 million, while a decreasthamdiscount rate
by 0,5% and an increase in the growth rate by Opfsld result in a further increase in the recovieramount by €
0,6 million.
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23. Deferred Income Tax Receivables/(Liabilities)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities whicultefrom relative temporary tax differences, asdallows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION INCOME STATEMENT
GROUP COMPANY GROUP COMPANY

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016  31/12/2015
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Intangible assets (285.960) (262.096) (285.960) (262.097) (23.863) (10.979) (23.863) (11.232)
Property, Plant & Equipment (8.626.777) (8.779.472) (8.327.635) (8.432.826) 108.791 682.901 105.193 670.644
Other long-term receivables 209.878 = 209.878 - o o - -
Biological Assets (7.682.567) (9.069.533) (7.452.715) (8.718.866) 1.386.967 (4.030.022) 1.266.151  (3.830.082)
Receivables 7.848.617 7.826.771 7.655.276 7.584.279 21.845 1.253.942 70.997 510.613
Long-term loan borrowings (6.655.510) (5.254.857) (6.655.510) (5.254.857) (1.400.653) (5.254.858) (1.400.653)  (5.254.858)
Net Employee defined Benefit obligations 800.863 752.233 769.308 723.198 25.101 102.688 23.210 93.652
Other non-current iabilties 451,142 513.686 438.136 499.049 (62.544) (91.489) (60.913) (69.215)
Provisions (479.305) 304.070 (282.408) 293.362 (573.497) 89.935 (75.892) 84.823
Other current liabilities 2.550.709 2.464.691 2.562.387 2.464.691 86.018 (604.223) 97.696 (413.550)
Receivable fromtax losses carried forward 3.759.718 = 3.759.718 - 3.759.718 o 3.759.718 -

(8.109.192)  (11.504.507) (7.609.525)  (11.104.069) 3327883 ' (7.862.105) 3.761.644  (8.219.205)
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 527.875 572.781 - -
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (8.637.067) (12.077.288) (7.609.525)  (11.104.069)
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX (8.109.192)  (11.504.507) (7.609.525)  (11.104.069)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net

GROUP COMPANY
Beginning Balance as at 1
January 2016 (11.504.507) (11.104.069)
Deferred tax-income/(expense)
recognised during the period in profit 3.327.883 3.471.644
and loss
Deferred tax-income/(expense)
recognised during the period in OCI 67.432 22.900
Ending Balance as at 31
December 2016 (8.109.192) (7.609.525)

The offsetting of deferred income tax assets aaldilifies occurs when there is, on behalf of thenpany, a legally

enforceable right to offset current tax assetsregjaiurrent tax liabilities and when the defernecbime taxes relate to
the same fiscal authority. The deferred tax litie#i of the Group as at 31.12.2016 relate to thsidiary located in

Spain by an amount of € 235.281 (tax rate 25%)abyamount of € 561.981 as regards the companyelddat

Germany (tax rate 15%) and by an amount of 7.830f80companies that are located in Greece (tax2886). The

respective amounts as at 31.12.2015 were, forahgany located in Spain of an amount of € 396.048n amount of

€ 550.302 as regards the company located in Gernaauayof an amount of € 11.130.843 for companiatahe located
in Greece.

The deferred tax receivables for the Group as &232016 of € 483.970 relate to companies locate@reece. The
corresponding amounts as at 31.12.2015 of € 5726&1t from the companies located in Greece.

According to the Group’s policies, deferred taxeasare recognised following two consecutive pabfi years. As a
result, the Company has recognised a deferredsset @an prior period unused tax losses of an amufudit3.759.718
to the extent that it is probable that future tdegbrofits will be available against which unusect tosses will be
available to be offset against future profits ie@cdance with paragraph 34 of IAS 12.
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24. Available for sale financial assets

The change in available-for-sale financial assetaalysed as follows:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2015 31/12/2015
Beginning of the year 139.445 20.905 126.340 6.800
Balance of merged companies in the year - - - 22.157
Additions 10 118.540 - 97.383
Sales (14.000) - (14.000) -
Balance at end of the year 125.455 139.445 112.340 126.340

Assets held for investment relate to investmentadn-listed in an organised market, companies.a8flets held for
investment, are stated at historical cost giventtieir fair value cannot be accurately measured.

25. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets of the Group and the Coynpedate to receivables, which are to be collesidasequent to
the following year-end, and are analysed in théetabre below:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Guarantees provided 427.048 283.430 402.387 258.769
Total 427.048 283.430 402.387 258.769

26. Biological assets

Biological assets comprise broodstock, fish, jukeenand stock breeding products as at the Balaheet$late and are
measured at fair value. Following the adoption BR$ 13 as of 1.1.2013 and as at each balance dheetthe
measurement of fair value is based on IFRS 13 muemtion with the specific requirements of 1AS #kccording to
IFRS 13, fair value is the current exit price whishdetermined with reference to the principal neankhich is the
market at which the greatest volume of activitpliserved.

During periods of substantial increases/(decreagesjnventory and increases/(decreases) in salé&er this
methodology applied results in significant gairegfles) arising from the difference between theymtiah cost and the

sales value.

The reconciliation of the biological assets statefhir value is presented in the following table:
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Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Balance of biological assets at 1 January 179.598.825 163.662.396 170.808.519 156.861.359
Increases due to purchases of biological assets 1.136.253 1.079.679 1.136.253 1.079.367
Gain/Loss arising from changes in fair value attributable to price or
quantity changes of biological assets 170.310.789 172.725.225 157.701.484 161.639.464
Decreases due to sales of biological assets (170.421.005) (157.573.038) (157.240.985) (148.771.671)
Less: biological assets of sold companies - (295.437) -
End balance of biological assets at 31 December 180.624.862 179.598.825 172.405.271 170.808.519
ANALYSIS OF BIOLOGICAL ASSETS IN BALANCE SHEET
A) Biological assets of fish (Assets — Non-current assets) 65.624.495 60.828.477 63.760.470 59.441.639
B) Biological Poultry-Livestock (Assets - Non-current assets) 246.000 - - -
TOTAL BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - Assets - Non-current 65.870.495 60.828.477 63.760.470 59.441.639
C) Biological assets fish (Inventories - Current assets) 114.613.253 118.737.151 108.644.801 111.366.880
D) Biological Poultry-Livestock (Inventories - Current assets) 141.114 33.197 - -
Less: Transfer to held for sale subsidiaries
TOTAL BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - Assets - Current 114.754.367 118.770.348 108.644.801 111.366.880
TOTAL BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 180.624.862 179.598.825 172.405.271 170.808.519

The effect of biological assets at fair value betwdeginning and ending values as at 31.12.2018resented in the
Statement of cash flows amounts to € 4.866.5835260111.922.241)) for the Group and of an amotir& 4.366.036
(2015: € (11.262.045)) for the Company as is preeskin the following table.

GROUP COMPANY
LOCAL GAAP  ADJUSTMENT IFRS LOCAL GAAP  ADJUSTMENT IFRS
Fair value of Biological assets at beginning 1.1.2016 148.206.365 31.392.460 179.598.825 140.743.684 30.064.836 170.808.519
Less: Fair value of Biological assets at ending 31.12.2016 154.098.986 26.525.877 180.624.863 146.706.471 25.698.800 172.405.271
Changes/(movement) in the fair value of biological
assets - 5.892.621 4.866.583 - 1.026.038 - 5.962.788 4.366.036 - 1.596.752

Valuation of biological Assets
The accounting principles and the valuation mogeliad for valuation of biological assets are ekpd in Note 3.4
Assumptions used in determining the fair value ofive fish

The estimated fair value of biomass will alwaystd@sed on uncertain assumptions even though the asgnipas
obtained substantial expertise in assessing tteeter$. Estimates are made on the following facémd parameters:
biomass volume, the quality of the biomass, the digtribution and market prices.

Biomass volume

The biomass volume is in itself an estimate basethe number of juveniles placed in the sea, tiienated growth
from the time of placement, estimated mortalityedzasn observed and expected mortality etc. Thertaingy with
regards to biomass volume is normally low. The wagety will, however, be higher if an incident ha&sulted in mass
mortality, especially when early in the cycle, bthe health condition of the fish restricts theatiment of fish. If the
biomass in the sea varied by +/(-) 1% as comptresbtimates this would result in a change in 1ASvaluation by
approximately € 1 million / € (1) million.
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The size distribution

Fish in sea grows in various rates and even unataditons of satisfactory estimates, the averagghtef the fish can
result in considerable fish quality and weight a&&dn. The size distribution affects the price awhid for the fish as
each size category of fish is priced separatelhénmarket. When estimating, the biomass valuermalp expected
size distribution is applied.

Market price / Discount Rate

The market price assumption is significant for treuation and even minor changes in the marketepill
significantly result in changes in the valuation.

The methodology used for establishing the markieeps explained in Note 3.4. If it is assumedt thi fish, as at
December 31, 2016 were are harvest size, a chantfe iprices by +/(-) 5% per kilo weight would altee valuation
by a positive/negative € 7,6 mil /(€ 7,6) mil arad change in the discounting rate by +/(-)1% would
(negatively)/positively alter the valuation by anmium of € (0,3) million / € 0,3 million.

Write-down of biomass (extraordinary mortality)

Extraordinary mortality is accounted for when ae sitither experiences elevated mortality over timemassive
mortality due to an incident on the farm (outbreéklisease, lack of oxygen etc).

The increase in biological assets of the Groupf&1d42.2016, mainly resulting from the Companycampared to the
previous year € 31.12.2016 by approximately € 1il0 i mainly attributed to the positive effecoin the increase in
the number of fresh fish at year end as compardoketprior year, which has partially been offsetlyy negative effect
of the reduced fair value prices of biological asses at 31.12.2016.

The Group has insured, against any form of riskoflts biological assets at foreign reputableunace companies.
The respective receivables regarding insurancenindg claims are factored, as pledged assets gtbanks.

The company NIREUS SA, based on the agreement ddt€d.2016 has provided to the company NORSILDMEL
INNOVATION A / S a floating lien on the fish popdian, amounting to € 10,3 million to secure thestamding
balance. The pledge is valid until 31.12.2017.

Pledged assets regarding the biological assefstopbpulation against loans obtained amount t0&5399.345 and as
regards liens to suppliers these amount to € 100800as described in Note 41 below.

27. Inventories

The inventories of the Group and the Company afellsvs:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Merchandise 1.256.787 1.480.008 27 6.442
Finished and semi-finished goods 3.784.378 3.300.331 3.727.514 3.256.555
Work in progress 112.527 81.124 112.527 81.124
Raw and auxiliary materials- 5.172.550 4.512.274 4.042.731 4.073.701
Package materials
Consumables 133.189 114.835 58.955 67.688
Total 10.459.431 9.488.572 7.941.754 7.485.510
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The amount of inventories consumed during the yaat included in raw material consumption, amountsEt
99.526.475 for the Group and € € 86.142.925 foiGbmpany (2015: € 95.422.733 for the Group, and.£3.572 for
the Company).

For the assessment of the net selling price ofritorges, management takes into consideration thet netiable data
available at the measurement date.

28. Trade and other receivables

The trade and other receivables of the Group am€timpany are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Trade receivables to third parties (Trade debtors) 35.357.197 33.011.525 31.890.109 29.659.275
Trade receivables from third parties (Intercompany) - - 4.824.218 5.297.605
Trade receivables from third parties (Notes) 2.706.948 2.715.096 1.524.466 1.529.788
Trade receivables from third parties (Cheques receivable) 12.957.542 12.427.830 7.941.773 7.237.744
Less: Provision for uncollectible receivables (13.856.332) (14.990.583) (12.890.762) (13.855.527)
Total 37.165.355 33.163.868 33.289.804 29.868.885

Under the scope of the Group’s working capital iexjuents, the Group uses factoring services foreitgivables for
the purpose of obtaining immediate collection ofmestic debtors’ due balances. The factoring cot#rsigned regard
collection of receivables with recourse.

The movement in the established provision for balotslof trade receivables is presented below:

Amountsin €

GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Opening Balance 14.990.582 15.585.876 13.855.527 10.212.969
Reversal of sold subsidiaries - (305.975) -
Balance of merged company in the year = = - 3.583.869
Additions during the year 202.245 693.597 206.508 216.262
Reclassification to other receivables (1.139.041) (729.900) (1.139.041) -
Write-offs (197.455) (253.015) (32.232) (157.573)
Closing Balance 13.856.332 14.990.583 12.890.762 13.855.527

With respect to the Group’s and Company’s receesblan assessment of the impairment indicatorsbleas
performed. Receivables that have been impaired lynedtate to the Group’s customers and debtorsy eicounter
financial difficulties.

The movement in the established, during the yeanyigion of the Group of an amount of € 1.134.22016: €
595.293) mainly relates to the additional provisadrman amount of € 202.245 (2015: € 693.597) frohickv an amount
of € 206.508 (2015:€ 216.262) relates to the Compand write-offs of an amount of € € 197.455 (206 253.015).
Furthermore, the amount of € 1.139.041 has bedassified to other receivables (Note 29).

All of the above receivables are current and ofi@rtsterm maturity. The fair value of these currénancial assets is
not independently assessed given that their cayryaue approximates their fair value, given thatdollectibles is
expected to occur within a time period where tHeafof the time value of money is considered ingigant. There is
no concentration of credit risk in relation to teesistomers given that the Group has a big nunfbmrstomers and the
credit risk is dispersed. The ageing of receivalde®nsidered for the Group and Company are thawimg:
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2016
GROUP
2016 <30 30-60 60-90 90-180 Over 180 Total
Trade receivables and other
receivables 17.371.818 9.720.091| 3.422.973| 4.372.578 16.134.226 51.021.687
Prowvision for bad debts - - - - (13.856.332) (13.856.332)
COMPANY
2016 <30 30-60 60-90 90-180 Over 180 Total
Trade receivables and other
receivables 14.714.346 7.898.423( 2.842.558] 3.880.818 16.844.421 46.180.566
Provision for bad debts - - - - (12.890.762) (12.890.762)
2015
GROUP
2015 <30 30-60 60-90 90-180 Over 180 Total
Trade receivables and other
receivables 16.966.023 8.130.917| 2.691.443| 2.874.263 17.491.805 48.154.451
Provision for bad debts = = = = (14.990.583) (14.990.583)
COMPANY
2015 <30 30-60 60-90 90-180 Over 180 Total
Trade receivables and other
receivables 13.570.038 7.023.662( 2.029.407( 2.900.088 18.201.217 43.724.412
Provision for bad debts - - - - (13.855.527) (13.855.527)

The company’s policy, with the exception of certeirstomer contracts, is that receivables of foreiggtomers are

collected on average in 45 days, of domestic custsiim 60-90 days and of customers of juveniled fees months.

29. Other current financial assets

The other current financial assets of the GrouptaadCompany are as follows:

GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

COMPANY

Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Sundry debtors to third parties 11.352.069 8.927.457 13.127.292 10.617.034
Sundry debtors to intercompanies - - 418.909 26.437
Receivable fromthe public sector 6.936.573 6.874.643 6.372.689 6.593.255
Other receivables 534.139 507.703 534.139 534.139
Bad debt receivables 2.664.381 2.711.908 2.664.381 2.711.908
Employee financial assistance 49.563 53.881 40.363 44,754

Less : Provision for bad debts

Total

(12.389.356)

(11.297.845)

(14.181.300)

(13.089.789)

9.147.369

7.777.747

8.976.473

7.437.738

128



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

All of the above receivables are current and di@tsterm maturity. The carrying value of thesereat financial assets
is assessed that it approximates its fair value.

The balance of other receivables has been nettedjainst the established provision which is préesgbelow:

Amountsin €

GROUP COMPANY

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Opening Balance 11.297.845 10.879.314 13.089.789 7.926.788
Reversal of sold subsidiaries - (307.369) - -
Balance of merged company in the year = = - 5.167.001
Reclassification to trade receivables 1.139.041 729.900 1.139.041 -
Write-offs (47.530) (4.000) (47.530) (4.000)
Closing Balance 12.389.356 11.297.845 14.181.300 13.089.789

It should be noted that in accordance with IAS Bd#tsetting of financial assets and financial liidiles has been

made.
In the context of managing working capital, the Gr@nd Company use factoring of receivables ses\fimethe

immediate collection of receivables from domestistomers. The factoring contracts which have beempded entail

in advance collection of receivables with the rightecourse.

30. Other current assets

The other current assets of the Group and the Coyne as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Deferred expenses 615.474 295.513 601.269 285.548
Accrued income 124.686 1.468.093 123.066 1.466.473
Total 740.160 1.763.606 724.335 1.752.021

31. Restricted Cash

As at 31/12/2016 the Group and Company have restricash balances of an amount of € 4.236.5671/32Z”2015: €

6.984.228,77) from which an amount of € 4.000.06lates to the pledge for the collateral requiresmeritthe fire

victim loan of the National Bank, an amount of € 28D1,79 relates to other loans of the NationalkBand an amount
of € 28.965,40 relates to short-term borrowingsnf@iraeus Bank (Note 41).
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32. Cash and short-term deposits

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group an@dhgany are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Cash on hand 110.960 94.623 105.462 91.608
Sight bank deposits 8.643.831 8.682.854 6.887.546 7.151.133
Total 8.754.791 8.777.477 6.993.008 7.242.741

The cash and cash equivalents represent cash akdleposits available upon first call.

33. Issued Share Capital and Reserves

i) Issued Capital

The Company'’s share capital consists of commorstegid shares with a nominal value € 0,30 eachshétes grant
equal rights concerning the receipt of dividendd &me repayment of capital, and represent one gadiight at the
Shareholders’ General Assembly of the Companyshdires are listed and freely traded in the Seesrlarket of the
Athens Stock.

GROUP COMPANY
Share capital Share capital
Number of shares (ordinary UL 5"".’" Total Nurmrber of shares (ordinary Treasury S“afe Total
. shares premium shares premium
Amounts in Euro shares) shares)
Balance at 31 December 2014 63.697.153 85.354.185 (47.271) 36.248.476 121.555.390 63.697.153 85.354.185 (47.271) 36.248.476 121.555.390
Issue of shares with capitalization of
reserves 195.333.333 19.533.333 ] (946.290) 18.587.043 195.333.333 19.533.333 - (946.290)  18.587.043
Increase in share capital due to the
transfer to retained earnings > 39.066.667 - > 39.066.667 N 39.066.667 - N 39.066.667
Decrease in share capital due to the
reduction in the par value of shares - (66.245.039) - - (66.245.039) - (66.245.039) - - (66.245.039)
Effect from the merger of the
subsidiary company - - - 1.531.773 1.531.773 - - - 1.531.773 1.531.773
Effect fromthe change in the tax rate
t0 29% ] ] 6.325 6.325 - - 6.325 6.325
Balance at 31 December 2015 259.030.486 77.709.146  (47.271) 36.840.284 114.502.159 259.030.486 77.709.146 _ (47.271) 36.840.284 ° 114.502.159
Increase in share capital from the
conversion of the convertible bond 884.404 265.321 = 8.843 274.164 669.131 265.321 - 8.843 274.164
Increase in share capital due to merger
of subsidiary company 31.582.478 91474.743 = (79.642) 9.395.101 31.582.478 9.474.743 - (79.642) 9.395.101
Balance at 31 December 2016 291.497.368 87.449.210 (47.271) 36.769.486 124.171.425 291.282.095 87.449.210 (47.271) 36.769.486 124.171.425

Following the merger of SEAFARM IONIAN 22-12-201&dapproval of the trading of new shares as at322416,

the Company’s share capital:

a) increased by the amount of the contributed slcagbtal of the merged subsidiary SEAFARM IONIAN SA
amounting to € 9.474.743,20 following the cancallabf the shares which were held by NIREUS AQUAQUWIRE
SA of an amount of € 3.477.588

b) increased by the amount of € 0,20 through clzation of reserves in the acquiring of the roungdbf the account
"Difference from issuance of shares above par" Whithissuance of 31.582.478 new common sharesvaithg rights.
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Following the above, the share capital of the Nir&guaculture SA amounts to a total of € 87.18338%livided

among 290.612.964 common shares with voting righta nominal value of € 0,30 each. The above isered the

amount of € 9.474.743,20 as at 31.12.2016 hastbaesferred to the share capital account from atbeerves where it
was presented during the prior year 31.12.201%mgihat the Prospectus as regards the merger wasvap by the
Capital asset Committee as at 15 March 2016, lemtrading of the new shares was approved as ia?¢h 2016.

Subsequent to the above and as at 26-04-2016 theeniof the Board of Directors dated 18.04.201&wegistered in
the General Electronic Register (G.E.M.I) basedwvbith the increase in the company’s share capitalrbamount of
€ 200.739,30 and the increase in share premiunmayreount of € 6.691,30, were certified. The inceeaas a result of
the conversion of 15.075 bonds of a par value gf@2ach, of the convertible bond dated 11-04-2@0869.131 new
shares of a par value of € 0,30 and a sales pfi€®31.

Subsequent to the above and as at 01.11.2016 theeawiof the Board of Directors dated 21.10.201&wegistered in
the General Electronic Register (G.E.M.I) basedvbith the increase in the company’s share capijtalrbamount of
€ 64.581,90 and the increase in share premium bgnaount of € 2.152,84 from the conversion of 4.880ds to
215.273 new shares of a par value of € 0,30 aades price of € 0,31, was certified.

Following the above increase, the share capitéh®fcompany amounted to € 87.449.210,40 dividen 26t1.497.368

common shares with voting rights, at a nominaligaf € 0,30 each.

Treasury Shares

The company as at 31.12.2016 holds 24.061 treahames while the Group subsidiaries do not holdsirayes of the
Company.

i) Fair value Revaluation Reserve
The analysis of fair value reserves is as follows:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
Balance at 31 December 2014 30.809.596 29.096.988
Balance of merged companies in the year 10.505.863 11.008.797
Sale of subsidiary companies (676.594) -
Sale of fixed assets measured at fair value (1.928) -
Effect from th_e revaluation of property, (2.247.728) (2.247.728)
plant and equipment

Eafzzd from the change in the income tax (1.144.483) (1.081.117)
Balance at 31 December 2015 37.244.726 36.776.940
Impairment (125.000) -
Sale of fixed assets measured at fair value (21.132) (21.132)
Balance at 31 December 2016 37.098.594 36.755.808
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iii) Other reserves
Other reserves of the Company are as follows:

GROUP
Amounts in Euro
RESERVE SHARE
UNDER SPECIAL  INTENDED FOR BASED ACTUARIAL TOTAL OTHER
LAW SHARE CAPITAL PAYMENTS DIFFERENCES CAPITAL
LEGAL RESERVE  PROVISIONS INCREASE RESERVE RESERVE  OTHER RESERVES RESERVES
Balance at 31 December 2014 3.087.256 1.570.554 385.300 406.272 4.795.741 10.245.123
Transfers from merged companies 591.034 30.848 9.474.743 = 46.039 97.497 10.240.161
Reduction in shar capital due to the reduction in par value - 66.245.039 66.245.039
Net -off of reserves with retained earnings - (873.614) - - - 239.962 (633.652)
Actuarial gains and losses from pension obligations - - - - (92.588) - (92.588)
Reductions due to sale of subsidiaries . - o - 41.249 (1.231.197)  (1.189.948)
Balance at 31 December 2015 3.678.290 727.788 9.474.743 385.300 400.972 70.147.042 *  84.814.135
Increase in share capital due to merger with subsidary
= = (9.474.743) = = = (9.474.743)
Actuarial gains and losses from pension obligations - - - - (57.604) - (57.604)
Balance at 31 December 2016 3.678.290 727.788 o 385.300 343.368 70.147.042 75.281.788
COMPANY
Amounts in Euro
RESERVE
UNDER SPECIAL INTENDED FOR SHARE BASED ACTUARIAL TOTAL OTHER
LAW SHARE CAPITAL PAYMENTS DIFFERENCES CAPITAL
LEGAL RESERVE  PROVISIONS INCREASE RESERVE RESERVE  VARIOUS RESERVES  RESERVES
Balance at 31 December 2014 2.796.539 1.274.002 - 385.300 423.042 4.178.955 9.057.838
Transfers from merged companies 690.626 223.885 9.474.743 62.599 18.465 10.470.318
Reserve due to Gain on measurement from loan restructu - - - - - 66.245.039 66.245.039
Reduction in shar capital due to the reduction in par value -
Net -off of reserves with retained earnings - (873.614) - - - 239.962 (633.652)
Actuarial gains and losses from pension obligations - - - - (90.958) - (90.958)
Transfers to retained earnings due to sale of B
subsidiaries - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 3.487.165 624.273 9.474.743 385.300 394.683 70.682.421 7 85.048.585
Increase in share capital due to merger with subsidary
- - (9.474.743) - - - (9.474.743)
Actuarial gains and losses from pension obligations - - - - (56.066) - (56.066)
Balance at 31 December 2016 3.487.165 624.273 - 385.300 338.617 70.682.421 75.517.776

As referred to above, following the approval of thew shares of the Company in circularization a24a03-2016 a
reclassification of the increase in share capit& t the merger of the subsidiary company SEAFARMIAN (22-12-
2015), was made from other reserves to share tapita

34. Interest Bearing loans and Borrowings

The non-current and current borrowings are asvidlo

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Non-current borrowings

Bank borrowings 166.077.749 158.625.247 165.819.450 158.291.574

Less: Borrowings payable in following

year (Loans) (16.572.919) (33.718.861) (16.495.669) (33.643.487)

Total non-current borrowings 149.504.830 124.906.386 149.323.781 124.648.087

Liabilities payable in following year
Liabilities payable in following year

(Loans) 16.572.919 33.718.861 16.495.669 33.643.487
Total liabilities payable in

following year 16.572.919 33.718.861 16.495.669 33.643.487
Short-term loans

Bank borrowings 1.627.158 10.281.264 1.491.828 7.170.369
Total short-term loans 1.627.158 10.281.264 1.491.828 7.170.369
Total loans 167.704.907 168.906.511 167.311.278 165.461.943
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Maturity dates of non-current borrowings are anadyselow:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Between 1 and 2 years 21.906.404 10.770.877 21.827.237 10.693.627
Between 2 and 5 years 61.040.815 44.344.878 60.938.933 44.163.829
Over 5 years 66.557.611 69.790.631 66.557.611 69.790.631
149.504.830 124.906.386 149.323.781  124.648.087

The actual weighted average borrowing rate of theu@ is as follows:

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

€ €
Bank borrowings (current) 4,97% 4,97%
Bank borrowings (non-current) 3,66% 3,66%

The major long-term loans of the Group and of then@any as at 31 December 2016 are summarizedias$ol

A. REFINANCING OF THE LOANS OF THE MERGED SUBSIDIARY SEAFARM IONIAN SA.

As referred to in the financial statements of thiempyear 31.12.2015, on 2.10.2015 the capitaliratf part of the
existing loans totalling € 58,6 million was compl@étwhile on 16.10.2015 a total amount of € 82,1lionil was
disbursed.

Subsequent to the above and following the mergehefcompany with it subsidiary (22.12.2015), 0n0142016 an
amount of € 20,9 million relating to the refinangiof the loans of SEAFARM IONIAN was disbursed.

It should be noted that loans of the merged sulsidiith a balance of € 0,31 million as at 31.12&2®Mave not been
included in the total refinancing agreement ofltiens. From the above, an amount of € 0,3 millelates to the long-
term portion of the loan while an amount of € 0,illiom relates to the short-term portion. Furthersmaunder the scope
of the refinancing of the loan borrowing of the gext company SEAFARM IONIAN SA, the established smn for

the forfeiture of the guarantees of an associatepemy of an amount of € 1.674.696, was reverseihgltine year as

presented in Note 37 “Provisions”.

B. BOND LOANS

The major loans of the Group and that of the Com@anat 31 December 2016 are summarized as follows:
Common Bond Loan of an amount up to € 58,2 millionOn September 18th 2015 the Company, Piraeus Badk

National Bank signed a bond loan agreement witpnaisate of banks amounting to € 58.219.126 anserést rate of

Euribor plus a variable margin which fluctuatesading to the financial indicators specified in tbentract. The
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repayment period of the loan has been set to s@jerears. The base rate of the loan is set a¢dhiable Euribor rate

plus a margin of 4.25%.

The above said loan includes the refinancing ofdilgt of Sea Farm lonian of an amount of € 184&BBfollowing its
merger by absorption with the Company and its defitancing, as referred to above, as at 14.01.2016

As a result, the total amount of funds receivedhgycompany for the above mentioned loan amourfs5®.110.077.

The balance of the above loan as at 31.12.2016 mswtw € 53,4 million, from which an amount of €®2nillion
relates to the long-term portion of the loan ancamount of € 1,4 million relates to the short-tqramtion, from which

€ 0,9 million relates to the principal amount an@,® million to interest.

During 31.12.2016 the company is in compliance lith loan financial covenants and terms in accarelamith the

loan contract.

Convertible Bond Loan of an amount up to € 29,4 miibn: On September 18, 2015 the Company, Piraeus Bahk an
National Bank had signed a convertible bond loamtre@t of the amount of €29.466.293 with a conaartiof banks

apart from Eurobank and Attica Bank. Under the gewntract the following terms hold:

a. Loan Duration: 10 year duration with the issigaaf A’ Series of Bonds with full repayment in Sapber 2025
b. Interest rate:  + 1% (fixed for the entire Iq@ariod)
c. Conversion Ratio: 3.22 nominal voting share8 @30 each

d. Conversion Price € 0,31 per share

The above loan includes the refinancing of the adbfea Farm lonian of an amount of € 2.495.05BWahg its

merger by absorption with the Company and its defitancing as referred to above as at 14.01.2016.

As a result, the total amount of funds receiveadypany for the above mentioned loan amounts 1. £42.864.

From the balance of the above loan which as at232016 amounts to € 14,7 million, an amount of &% Hillion
relates to the long-tem portion while an amour€ 6f1 million relates to the short-term portion.
During 31.12.2016 the company is in compliance lith loan financial covenants and terms in accarelamith the

loan contract.

Common Bond Loan of an amount up to € 4,8 million:On September 18, 2015 the Company, Piraeus Bamk an
National Bank signed a bond loan agreement withnaisate of banks amounting to € 4.883.000 at &arast rate of
Euribor plus a variable margin which fluctuatesading to the financial indicators specified in ttentract. The bond
was issued in two series at an issue price of dheyro each. The purpose of the loan is to refiegrevious loans.
The full repayment of the loan is set at ten (1€arg in September 2025. The base rate of the faatiat variable

Euribor rate plus a margin of 4.25%.

The total amount of funds received by the companyHe above mentioned loan amounts to € 4.653.000
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From the balance of the above loan which as at23201.6 amounts to € 4,3 million, an amount of €milion relates
to the long-term portion of the loan, while an amioaf € 0,1 million relates to the short-term ponti
During 31.12.2016 the company is in compliance \ili loan financial covenants and terms in accarelamith the

loan contract.

Common Bond Loan of an amount up to € 31,4 million.On September 18th 2015 the Company Piraeus Bahk an
National Bank signed a bond loan agreement witynaisate of banks amounting to € 31.450.000 antareést rate of
Euribor plus a variable margin which flunctuatesading to the financial indicators specified ire tbontract. The
bond issued in three series at an issue price ®{bneuro each. The full repayment of the loaseisat ten (10) years

in September 2025. The base rate of the loanéslfat Euribor rate plus a margin of 4.25%.

The total amount that has been financed and regtdiyeeompany for the above mentioned loan amoon231066.666.
From the balance of the above loan which as at232016 amounts to € 22,1 million., an amount ofL2nillion
relates to the long-term portion, while an amouré 6,2 million relates to the short-term portion.

During 31.12.2016 the company is in compliance \ili loan financial covenants and terms in accarelamith the

loan contract.

Convertible Bond loan of an amount up to € 20,0 nlibn: On July 11 2007 the Company signed the contrhet o
convertible bond loan with a duration of 5 yearsbi fully repaid on July 2012. As at September 2812 an
agreement was signed between the bondholders esihect to the extension of the loan agreement iguat of
which totals € 24 million.

In accordance with the General Assembly of the Bofdkrs of the Convertible bond loan as at Oct@éth, the loan

terms have been amended as follows:

e The Loan at 26.10.2015 amounted to € 24.689.347,84

e The loan will expire on 21/10/2025. On that dat @ompany is required to repay the Loan of 1.794.28
bonds at their nominal value € 13,76 each, inciehgea percentage of 10.62%.

e The conversion right will provide 44,3871 commor&s of a value of € 0,31 each.

e Interest rate 1%

The balance of the above loan as at 31.12.2016 rmi¢w€ 16,9 million and is presented under largatloans.
During 31.12.2016 the company is in compliance \ili loan financial covenants and terms in accarelamith the

loan contract.

Amortised Loan of an amount up to € 13 million During 29 June 2016 a 5-year loan agreement igagd between
the company and Piraeus Bank of an amount of €003000 from which an amount of € 5.916.000 was ut&sdxd
during the year. The purpose of the loan was tfirargcing of the present loan obligations of thenpany. The loan
was granted with a grace period of 6 months ad4/41232016 and each one of the following installreesill be paid at
the corresponding date of each year which folldvesdate of payment of the first installments dubdgaid at the end

of the year 2021. The interest rate is calculategugibor 360 days plus a margin of 4,25%.
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The balance of the above loan as at 31.12.2016 oo € 6,0 million, from which an amount of € Sifillion is

presented under long-term loans, while an amou&t@f million relates to the short-term portiorthod loan.
C. MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(I) Debt-for-equity renegotiations for the year 205

During the year 2015 a part of the liabilities lo¢ tCompany decreased by the amount of € 58.599@98th a
corresponding issuance of the Company’s shares.

According to IFRIC 19 " Extinguishing financiahbilities with equity instruments ", equity instrants which are
issued by the entity to the creditor for the pauiatotal repayment of financial liability are "esidered paid "in
accordance with paragraph 41 of IAS 39.In this eesthe equity instruments are valued at fair valie difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liépilor part) extinguished and the fair value of t{paid-
consideration" is recognized in the results .

In application of the above interpretations, altptafit of € 39.066.667 incurred, as the differefmetween the fair
value of the equity instruments issued and the wadke of the obligations (bond loans). The faiueaof those equity
instruments held was assessed in accordance itméinket price prevailing as aO2tober 2015 (€ 0,10), date at

which the above transaction was performed.

The above gain had been reflected in the inconterstant and included in the figure "Gain on measergrfrom
refinancing of financial liabilities”. Subsequentthe Company transferred the above profit of £/86.667 to share
capital, with a corresponding transfer to retaiaachings directly in the statement of changes iitgdn order that the

share capital be equal to the nominal value oftiaes.
(I1) Debt-for-debt renegotiations for the year 2015

Under IAS 39 Para 40 OE 57, and OE 62 (Financisiriments: Recognition and Measurement), a &sting is

accounted for as an extinguishment if either theegetiated debt instrument is on different ternmnfrthe existing
instrument or the renegotiated instrument is witlifBerent lender. In this case the existing instent is derecognized
and the initial debt instrument is recognized at ¥alue. The difference between the fair valuettad renegotiated
instrument and the carrying amount of the old imsint is recognized in the profit or loss statemAny costs or fees

incurred in the event of extinguished debt are gated as part of the gain or loss on extinguisitmen

As a result of the above in accordance with IAStB8,company adopted the accounting treatmentsbfueturing of
existing debt obligations based on the principlavbkther the changed terms were "substantiallyedifit" from the
previous terms of existing loans. The assessmetiieofiew loans has revealed that there is a "sufitanodification”
of the loans and therefore the company proceed#dtiv extinguishment of the existing liability atiee subsequent
recognition of a new debt obligation in accordanith IAS 39 par. 40, in which the accounting treatrnincluded the

following:
-Derecognition of existing loan obligations
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-Recognition of the new loans at fair value, basadthe expected future cash flows of the modifiedbility, and
discounted using the interest rate at which th#yecwuld raise debt with similar terms and coratis of the market
-Gain equal to the difference between the bookevalfithe old loan obligation and the fair valuetloé new loan
liability, that is of amount of € 18.120.197,71f{dience between the book value of old loans aeddhr value of new
loan liabilities) which was recognized in the inamstatement in the figure "Gain on measurement fiefimancing of

financial liabilities ".

As a result of the application of IFRIC 19 and 188, which addresses the refinancing of financiabilities with
extinguishment of old loans and the issuance of delat with modified terms, as previously mentiongains of an
amount of Euro 57.186.865 were recognised in therire statement as presented in the figure “Gaimeasurement

from refinancing of financial liabilities”.
(1) Debt-for-debt renegotiations for the current year 2016

Subsequent to the above and during the year 2G&6campany proceeded with the accounting treatroérnhe
restructuring of the loan obligations of the mergedbsidiary SEAFARM IONIAN SA on the basis of wheththe
amended terms were "substantially different" fréva previous terms of the existing loans.The assessof the new
loans has revealed that there is a "substantiaifiaiibn” of the loans and therefore the companycpeded with the
extinguishment of the existing liability and thebsequent recognition of a new debt obligation icoagance with IAS
39 par. 40.

As a result of the above, the company has recogmjaes of an amount of € 750.663,84 in the incatatement as
presented in the figure “Gain on measurement frefinancing of financial liabilities”.

As a result, the loan liabilities prior to the effef the valuation of the Group’s loans at faituea during 31.12.2016
amount to € 184,6 million (2015: € 187,3 millionhite the corresponding net loan borrowings prioth® effect of the

valuation at fair value amount for the Group to,6 million (2015: € 171,5 million).

D. FIRE-VICTIM LOANS
“Fire victim” loan of an initial amount of € 25 million of “Nireus SA”:

As referred to the financial statements of the mpyar and given the letter sent by Piraeus Bamddd20.01.2016, the
Company was able to benefit from the provisionthefMinisterial Decision 2/43758 / 0025-29-7 6-20&8arding the
suspension of installments on loans guaranteetidyteek State. Loan installments concerning thiog@013 until

2016 that have been granted with the guaranteehefGreek State are due, under the new arrangenedids,

01.01.2017 without there being any extension oftin@tion of the total loan.

Subsequent to the above, and during the curreiddgyd?iraeus Bank granted a line of credit to tleenPany through a
long-term loan of an amount of € 5.916.000, asrreteto above in paragraph B “Amortised Loan obamunt up to €
13 million” with which loan the following were pai¢h) a short-term loan which had been obtainednduttie prior

year for the repayment of principal and interestafiments of the above fire-victim loan an amoof€ 4.500.845,95,
and (b) interest of the current period and of therpyears 2014 and 2015 of an amount of € 1.4/05
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Based on the above new settlement arrangementbathece of the loan as at 31.12.2016, amounts24,& million,
from which an amount of € 16,7 million relates e tong-term portion and the remaining of € 7,3iamlrelates to the

short-term portion of the loan from which an € G#lion relates to the principle amount and € 0,8iom to interest.

“Fire victim” loan of an initial amount of € 24,9 million of “Nireus SA”:

As referred to in the prior year’s financial statarts and given the letter sent by the National Baatied 01.09.2015,
the Company has been enabled to benefit from theigions of the Ministerial Decision 2/43758 / 062%-7 6-2015
regarding the suspension of installments guaranbsethe Greek State. Under the new arrangemerdsalliments
initially due on 30.06.2015, 31.12.2015, 30.06.26h6 31.12.2016 have been postponed to the rergasninsequent
years of 2017-2019, without there being any extemsf the duration of the total loan.

In accordance with the above settlement arrangespém loan balance as at 31.12.2016 amounts & rgillion
from which an amount of € 16,7 million is long-terwhile an amount of € 7,3 million relates to ti®<-term portion

of the loan from which € 6,8 million relates to fhxnciple amount and € 0,5 to interest.
Financial Indicators:

According to the Bond Loan agreement, the Compasyadssumed certain obligations which must be aditeramong
which, but not limited to, ensuring throughout tieem of the loan, that assets are insured agalhssks, that the
submission of audited or reviewed annual and semital consolidated financial statements are accomegaby
Certificates of Compliance as well as ensuringoulghout the duration of the bond loan period coamuée with all

financial indicators.
The agreed upon financial indicators are as follows

1. Net debt to EBITDA, less than 11 for the yeat2@nd less than 8,5 for the year 2016
2. Net debt to Assets, less than 0,6 for the y2ai$ and 2016

These above financial indicators for the purpodesomplying with the terms of the loans are caltedabased on the

consolidated Balance Sheet with the exception @igm companies (Greek Group).

The Group is in full compliance with all of the afecfinancial indicators as at 31.12.2016 as welta®1.12.2015.

Group financial indicators :

1. Net debt to Operating EBITDA ratio

Net debt to operating EBITDA presented a reductiom 6,86 in 2015 to 5,67 in 2016.
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Amounts in € thds. GROUP FINANCIAL INDICATORS

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Net debt (after the effect gf the 154.714 153.145
valuation of loans at fair - =5,67 -
value)/operating EBITDA

=6,86

27.309 22.340

2. Net Debt to total Assets ratio

Net debt to total assets amounted to 0,41 andatignesent any variation between years 2016-2015.

Amounts in € thds. GROUP FINANCIA L INDICATORS
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Net debt 154.714 153.145
| 0,41 ~0,41
Total Assets 374.375 371.212

Net Debt, is defined as long-term interest beafwans borrowings, short-term interest bearing Ipahs current
portion of the long-term loans payable in the fallog year, based on the financial statements, dest and cash
equivalents as well as restricted cash.

The existing pledged assets as these arise frontotlre borrowing contracts of the Group and the Camypare
presented in Note 41.

35. Government Grants

The analysis of Grants of the Group and the Comjimay follows:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
Balance at 1 January 2015 6.660.659 6.028.155
Balance at date of merger of new companies = 168.325
Recognised in the income statement (696.610) (616.677)
Balance at 31 December 2015 5.964.049 5.579.803
Grants Received during the year 1.457.510 1.457.510
Recognised in the income statement (792.621) (722.590)
Balance at 31 December 2016 6.628.938 6.314.723

In the Profit and loss statement under the figutepfeciation”, the amortization of grants on assets been offset
against the depreciation expense. With respedta@tirrent year, the amortization figure amounts #22.590 for the
Company and € 792.621 for the Group. The correspgrtior year figure amounts to € 616.677 for @@mmpany and
€ 696.610 for the Group (Note 18).
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36. Other non-current liabilities

The analysis of other non-current liabilities, o€ tGroup and the Company, is as follows:

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Non-current liabilities based on article 44 L.1892/90 982.383 1.492.249 982.383 1.492.249

Total 982.383 1.492.249 982.383 1.492.249

Other non-current liabilities, relating to long+tetiabilities at 31.12.2016 relating to the Groggult from liabilities of
the merged subsidiary “SEAFARM IONIAN SA” which sabject to article 44 of L. 1892/90. Further analyaf the

ageing of liabilities is presented in Note 6.
37. Provisions

The analysis of provisions for the Group and thenGany is as follows:

Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Provisions in relation to court litigation 224.696 52.000 224.696 52.000
Other provisions 675.100 2.737.403 631.015 2.700.478
Provision for unaudited tax years 90.000 90.000 - -
Total 989.796  2.879.403 855.711  2.752.478

The movement in the provision during the year espnted below:

[ GROUP
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Provisions in Provision Provisions Provision
relation to Other for in relation Other for
court provisions  unaudited LReAF-EC to court provisions unaudited RO
litigation tax years litigation tax years
Beginning Balance 52.000 2.737.403 90.000 2.879.403 = 750.762 90.000 840.763
Additions during the year 172.696 7.160 = 179.856 = 233.531 = 233.531
Transfers from merged subsidiary - = = 52.000 1.754.294 = 1.806.294
Write-off of provisions - (2.069.463) - (2.069.463) - (1.185) - (1.185)
Ending Balance 224.696 675.100 90.000 989.796 52.000 ' 2.737.403 90.000 2.879.403
| COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Provisions in Provision Provisions Provision
relation to Other for in relation Other for
court provisions  unaudited TOTAL to court provisions unaudited TOTAL
litigation tax years litigation tax years
Beginning Balance 52.000 2.700.478 - 2.752.478 - 717.968 - 717.968
Additions during the year 172.696 - - 172.696 - 228.216 - 228.216
Transfers frommerged subsidiaries - - - 52.000 1.754.294 - 1.806.294
Write-off of provisions - (2.069.463) - (2.069.463) - - - -
Ending Balance 224.696 631.015 - 855.711 52.000 2.700.478 - 2.752.478
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Provisions in relation to court litigation

From the balance of the provision as at 31.12.2&@&mount of € 52.000 relates to cases of the mecgmpany
SEAFARM IONIAN SA for which either no final decigiohas been issued or a decision has been issuedtffie®
multi-member first instance court though has bggealed.

Other provisions

Other provisions for the Group of an amount of 6.800 and for the Company of an amount of € 631relate to the
provision for unpaid employees leave. The corredpmnprior year figure for unpaid employees leaweZ015 for the
Group amounts to € 1.062.707,97 and for the Compargy1.025.782,43, while during the prior yearravision had
been established for the forfeiture of a guaraofes associate company of an amount of € 1.674.696

In the context of the restructuring of the mergemnpany’s SEAFARM IONIAN SA loan borrowings which sva
completed during the first semester of 2016, tharguiee of € 1.674.696 which had been granted tasanciate
company was included in the restructuring scheras thsulting in the reversal of the correspondirgyigion that had
been established.

Provision for unaudited tax years
The amount of € 90.000 relates to the provisioruftaudited open tax years of the subsidiary conggamii the Group.

38. Trade and other payables

The analysis of the balances of trade and othealpjay of the Group and the Company, are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Trade payables 30.972.173 30.238.623 25.884.246 28.326.870
Cheques payable 14.875.283 14.343.263 13.565.286 12.557.809
Promissory notes 27.294 7.120 - -
Total 45.874.750 44.589.006 39.449.532 40.884.679

The carrying values which are recognized in theestant of financial position approximate their faiues.

39. Other current financial liabilities

The analysis of other current liabilities is adduls:

GROUP COMPANY
Amounts in Euro 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Wages and salaries payable 1.255.611 1.269.398 1.143.859 1.216.618
Dividends - - - -
Social security 1.575.597 1.594.904 1.476.998 1.523.839
Taxes - duties 1.061.942 1.006.643 790.421 662.091
Accrued expenses 1.443.456 1.843.091 1.440.329 1.820.508
Sundry creditors - Prepayments 3.326.879 5.792.248 3.050.053 6.209.366
Total 8.663.485 11.506.284 7.901.660 11.432.422
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40. Commitments and Contingencies and un-audited, by the
tax authorities, open fiscal years

The Company and the Group have contingent liagdliind assets with respect to Banks, other guasaated other
securities-pledged assets, as presented in NotéAésets pledged as Security” arising in the ordjineourse of
business, as following:

Guarantees

The Group’s contingent liabilities for the year amted to € 14.025.977 which relates to the Compagyarantees
towards its associates and subsidiaries. The agmrinassets for the year amount to € 484.656 iGtoup and the
Company respectively.

No significant charges are expected to result floenabove contingent liabilities. No additional pents are expected
to arise following the preparation of these finahsiatements.

Information in respect of contingent liabilities from sea-area operating leases.

At 31 December 2016, certain companies of the Graye leased sea- areas under operating leaseregred he
future minimum lease payments payable under treelesrms are as follows:

Sea Areas

Amounts in Euro GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015

No later than 1 year 45.508 99.266 14.817 66.545

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 267.128 564.892 142.396 434.008

Later than 5 years 1.937.176 846.055 1.937.176 821.514

2.249.812 " 1.510.211 2.094.389 1.322.068

There are no other claims or litigations to natlosraarbitrary courts that may have a material @ffen the financial
position or operations of the Group.

Tax obligations
The unaudited tax years for the Group are preséntBdte 16 “Income tax expense”.

For the year 2016 the company and its subsidiamypamies are in the process of issuing the taxficate based on the
provisions in accordance with L. 4174/2013.

41. Assets pledged as Security

During February 2016 the new pledge contracts astgament of claims from insurance contracts betEREUS
AQUACULTURE SA and PIRAEUS BANK (representative loiwolders, original bondholder, coordinator and
payment administrator) were signed. During 31/12&@ledges and liens on pledged property plantegpuibment of
the Company amounted to € 420.143.260,58 and orGtloeip’s assets, liens amounted to € 422.143.26QtE8

analysis of which is presented below:

1) The following mortgages have been registered tloe fixed assets of the parent company “NIREUS

AQUACULTURE SA™:
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(a) a first class pledge amounting to € 2.973.989 theen registered in favor of Piraeus Bank, b#iagepresentative
bank and on behalf of the bondholders on floatiqgiment so as to secure the bond of up to € ®ldn, granted,
the balance of which as at 31.12.2016 amounte@ $8.357.582,79

(b) a first and second class pledge, followingaRisting pledges in favor of Piraeus Bank beimgmesentative and
on behalf of the bondholders, has been registenddsurance policies for inventory (biological asy}@f an amount of
€ 106.800.000 (€ 104.300.000 relates to insuramteies of fish population and € 2.500.000 relatesnsurance
policies for pre-fattening), of which an amount€76.600.000 relate to the new bond loan of up 582 million, and
an amount of € 30.200.000 relating to a’ class gagé on existing pledges include the following:

(i) first class pledge of an amount of € 11.650.@00avor of the Greek state to secure a loan @5£00.000 by
Piraeus bank with the guarantee of the Greek dtmebalance of which as at 31.12.2016 amounted um E
23.965.763,90

(ii) first class pledge of an amount of € 10.180.0n favor of the Greek state to ensure the fifgfng loan of €
24.100.000 from the National Bank of Greece SA watlguarantee of Greek state, the balance of whiclata
31.12.2016 amounted to Euro 24.079.856,71

(iiii) first class pledge of an amount of € 8.4@Mdor the Company NORSILDMEL INNOVATION A/ S assacurity
against the outstanding amount

(c) A second class variable pledge, following thstfclass pledge rand in favour NORDSILDMEL INNOVION
A/S has been assigned so as to secure the liabfligyy amount €10,3 and up to the amount of € DGO, on the
inventory and in favour of the Bank of Piraeus lpdine representative and on behalf of the bondhg|de ensure the
bond of up to € 58.2 million the balance of whicha# 31.12.2016 amounts to € 53.357.582,79.

(d) a first class pledge has been assigned inr faf/d?iraeus Bank, being the representative andeimalf of the
bondholders, to ensure the bond of € 58.2 millamfollows:

- Insurance underwritings on fixed asset contrdtveen European Reliance General Insuramod NIREUS
AQUACULTURE SA amounting to € 35.185.759,20

- Marine insurance contracts on boats between theopgean Reliance General Insurance and NIREUS
AQUACULTURE SA amounting to € 3.567.250

(e) a first class pledge has been registered inrfa¥ Piraeus Bank being the representative andeiralf of the
bondholders, all the assigned requirements on thepment (mooring materials, nets, cages) of an uain€
10.562.973,8 so as to ensure the bond of € 58|@mil

() A second class variable pledge on the totategate value of the Accepted Claims on which tieeePledge
Agreement on the factoring of receivables from &isaFactoring and the National Bank Factoring. gledge account
balance should not be lower than 105% of the outistg amount the Loan, hamely of an amount of 224.999. The
pledge is in favor of Piraeus Bank as a represgatand on behalf of the bondholders for the comimmmd of up to €
31,4 million, the balance of which as at 31.12.28t®unted to € 22.126.190,31

(g) a first class pledge has been recorded inrfafdPiraeus Bank being the representative and emalp of the
bondholders on all shares of PROTEUS EQUIPMENT $Amamount of € 48.000,24 so as to secure the lwamdof
up to € 58.2 million, the balance of which amourttedE 53.357.582,79

(h) a first class pledge of amount of approximal10.000.000 in favor of the Greek State, to s=the loan of €
25.000.000 by Piraeus Bank, issued under the sabfaorable regulations for the fire victims, thalance of which
as at 31.12.2016 amounted to € 23.965.763,90
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(i) Mortgages of an amount of € 7.000.000 has legistered in favor of the Greek State, to seduedite-victim loan
of € 24.910.000 million from the National Bank, time framework of favorable regulations for the fiietims, the
balance of which as at 31.12.2016 amounted to @24356,71.

() a first class assigned pledge has been registe favour of Piraeus Bank on behalf of the espntative banks
concerning VAT receivables. As at 31.12.2016 thaltof receivables of VAT of an approximate amooht€ 3,5
million have not yet been received from the GretkeS

(k) In relation to the fire victim loans of the Natal Bank, loans of a total amount of € 4.000.0860e been registered.
() Restricted cash on the company’s short-ternrdwings and in favor of Piraeus Bank and the NatidBank
amounts to € 28.965,40 and € 207.601,79 respegtivel

(m) Underwritings have been registered on propegyto the amount of € 69.879.010 in accordance Whth
3397S/2015 and 5S/2016 Court decisions of Athersedan which the registration of the underwritirays the
company’s assets was decided upon in favor of Br8ank, being the representative and on behatfeobondholders,
in order to secure the bond loan of € 58.2 million.

Furthermore, the following pledged assets on thd laf the consolidated subsidiary “SEAFARM IONIANAS have

not been removed as at 31.12.2016.

(a) An underwriting of a mortgage of an amount @0€.000

(B) Mortgages of an amount of € 1.969.742,15 haven begistered to secure the loans of ATE (Agricaltdrank of
Greece- under special liquidation), which balane@a31/12/2016 amounted to € 197.741,86. This irengabalance
will be paid in 25 equal semi-annual installment€d6.449 each, in accordance with the provisioiticle 44 in

which the company has been subject, which guardrteepayment of the above amount.

2) An underwriting of a mortgage from the NatioBaink of Greece of an amount of € 2.000.000 has kegstered on
the land of the consolidated subsidiary company GKEAGRI S.A” to secure the long-term loan of thergua

company “NIREUS AQUACULTURE S.A".

There are no other assets pledged as securityedixéd assets for the Company and of the Group.

42. Related party disclosures

Related party transactions

The company’s purchases and sales, cumulatively fitte beginning of the current year as well ashbkmnce of
receivables and payables of the company that hesudted from the transactions with related paiethe end of the
current year are as follows:

Sales of goods and services GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Subsidiaries - - 3.656.161 4.642.276
Total - - 3.656.161 4.642.276
Other income GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Subsidiaries = = 39.675 88.691
Total - - 39.675 88.691
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Purchases of goods and services
Subsidiaries

Directors and key management
Total

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Subsidiaries

Associates
Total

Fees to Directors and compensation

Directors and key management
Total

Period-end balances arising from Fees to
Directors and compensation

Directors and key management
Total

Period-end balances arising from purchases of

goods and services

Directors and key management
Total

Receivables
Subsidiaries
Associates
Total
Payables
Subsidiaries

Associates
Total

Key Management Compensation

The fees of the members of the Board of Directorgie year 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Transactions and compensation to Directors and key management

Amounts in Euro
Salaries, employment benefits and compensation to Directors
Salaries and other employment benefits to key management

Payables to Directors and key management
Amounts in Euro

Payables for salaries, employment benefits and other compensation

Payables for Directors compensation approved by A.G.M.
Pension and other post-employment benefit obligations

GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
- - 2.505.734 9.679.886
135.000 222.500 90.000 112.500
135.000 222.500 2.595.734 9.792.386
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
- - 2.372.572 2.795.949
|- 4 - 2.372.572 2.795.949
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
1.846.597 1.974.044 1.458.482 1.570.953
1.846.597 _ 1.974.044 1.458.482 1.570.953
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016  31/12/2015
408.557 447.116 375.033 436.260
408.557 447.116 375.033 436.260
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
11.700 78.968 7.800 9.656
11.700 78.968 7.800 9.656
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
- - 5.243.127 5.324.042
4.851.519  4.851.519 4.851.519 4.851.519
4.851.519  4.851.519 10.094.646 10.175.561
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 _ 31/12/2015
- - 39.614 3.397.220
4.851.519  4.851.519 - -
4.851.519  4.851.519 39.614 3.397.220
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
1.263.946 1.377.299 1.116.763 1.208.329
717.651 819.245 431.719 475.124
1.981.597 2.196.544 1.548.482 1.683.453
GROUP COMPANY
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
57.283 129.344 51.183 123.244
35.115 97.784 20.591 23.716
327.859 298.956 311.059 298.956
420.257 526.084 382.833 445,916
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Transactions among Group Companies

SELLING COMPANY
PURCHASING COMPANY NIREUS AQUACULTURE PROTEUS SA PREDOMAR KEGO AGRI S.A TOT,
Finished Finished . - " Finished .
Goods/ Senices Other Goods/ Senices Finished Finished Fixed Goods/ Services e Other
Products Products Goods/ Products | Goods/ Products | ~ Assets Products Assets
NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA
Administrative expenses - - - 48.943 141.502 - 27.753 76.696 141.502 =
Fixed Assets - - - 2.370.990 - - 1.582 2.370.990 1.582
Finished Goods/ Products - - - 39.600 2.247.936 2.287.536 - -
PREDOMARS.L.
Administrative expenses - 128.124 = 128.124
Finished Goods/ Products 2.523.106 - 2.523.106 =
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A
Administrative expenses - 99.661 15.600 - - - = 99.661 = 15.600
KEGO AGRI S.A
Administrative expenses - 141.122 24.075 = 141.122 = 24.075
Finished Goods/ Products 764.148 764.148 = = =
TOTAL
Administrative expenses = 368.907 39.675 48.943 141.502 = 27.753 76.696 510.409 = 39.675
Fixed Assets = = = 2.370.990 = = = 1.582 2.370.990 = 1.582 =
Finished Goods/ Products 3.287.254 39.600 2.247.936 5.574.790 =
COMPANY BEARING THE NIREUS PREDOMAR PROTEUS MIRAMAR PROJECTS NIREUS KEGO AGRI TOTAL
RECEIVABLE AQUACULTURE SA S.L. EQUIPMENT S.A COLTD - UK INTERNATIONAL LTD SA
NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA 4.067.260 345.961 - 72.948 756.959 5.243.127
PREDOMAR S.L. 39.600 - - - - 39.600
PROTEUS EQUIPMENT S.A 11.320 - - - 11.320
MIRAMAR PROJECTS CO LTD - UK 14 - 14 - 28
5.294.075
TOTAL 39.614 | 4.078.580 345.975 - 72.948 756.959 -

The company EUROMARE BROKER SA, a company 100% otwediir. Aristides Belles, acts as a mediation cente
following the approval by the Annual General Megtof NIREUS SA 2010 for the insurance of the Graupiblogical
assets as well as its fixed assets.

43. Presentation of financial assets and liabilities per category

Financial Assets and Liabilities The following tables present a comparison betwtbencost and fair value amounts
per category of financial and non-financial instents which are presented in the consolidated amdiatone financial
statements.

GROUP COMPANY
CcosT FAIR VALUE cosT FAIR VALUE

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Non-financial Financial Assets
Buildings, Land, Mechanical Equipment & technical
installations, Floating means 72.839.021 43.928.875 72.839.021 73.176.053 71.499.376 45.093.333 71.499.376 71.424.322
Investment Property 3.948.906 3.333.240 3.948.906 4.076.930 3.948.906 3.221.791 3.948.906 4.076.930
Biological assets-non-current 180.624.862 139.124.277 180.624.862 179.598.825 172.405.271 132.641.727 172.405.271 170.808.519
Financial Assets
Restricted cash 4.236.567 6.984.229 4.236.567 6.984.229 4.236.567 6.984.229 4.236.567 6.984.229
Cash and cash equivalents 8.754.791 8.777.477 8.754.791 8.777.477 6.993.008 7.242.741 6.993.008 7.242.741
Financial Liabilities
Long-term borrowing liabilities 149.504.830 124.906.386 149.504.830 124.906.386 149.323.781 124.648.087 149.323.781 124.648.087
Short-term borrowings 1.627.158 10.281.264 1.627.158 10.281.264 1.491.828 7.170.369 1.491.828 7.170.369
Current portion of long-term financial liabilities 16.572.919 33.718.861 16.572.919 33.718.861 16.495.669 33.643.487 16.495.669 33.643.487

The Group uses the following hierarchy for the dmteation of the fair value of its financial assatsd liabilities per
valuation method.
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GROUP

Hierarchy of
FAIR VALUE Fair Value
31/12/2016  31/12/2015

Non-financial Financial Assets
Buildings, Land, Mechanical Equipment & technical

installations, Floating means 72.839.021 73.176.053 Level 3
Investment Property 3.948.906 4.076.930 Level 3
Biological assets-non-current 180.624.862 179.598.825 Level 2,3

Financial Assets
Restricted cash 4.236.567 6.984.229 Level 1
Cash and cash equivalents 8.754.791 8.777.477 Level 1

Long-term borrowing liabilities

Long-term borrowing liabilities 149.504.830 124.906.386 Level 2

Short-term borrowings 1.627.158 10.281.264 Level 2

Liabilities payable within the following year 16.572.919 33.718.861 Level 2
COMPANY

Hierarchy of
FAIR VALUE Fair Value
31/12/2016  31/12/2015

Non-financial Financial Assets
Buildings, Land, Mechanical Equipment & technical

installations, Floating means 71.499.376 71.424.322 Level 3
Investment Property 3.948.906 4.076.930 Level 3
Biological assets-non-current 172.405.271 170.808.519 Level 2,3

Financial Assets
Restricted cash 4.236.567 6.984.229 Level 1
Cash and cash equivalents 6.993.008 7.242.741 Level 1

Long-term borrowing liabilities

Long-term borrowing liabilities 149.323.781 124.648.087 Level 2
Short-term borrowings 1.491.828 7.170.369 Level 2
Liabilities payable within the following year 16.495.669 33.643.487 Level 2

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active marketsdeniical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that haggmificant effect on the recorded fair value abservable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a signifieffatt on the recorded fair value that are noetam
observable market data

During the year, there were no reclassificatiortsvben the level of hierarchies.

147



@ NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA

44. Fair value Measurement

The following table provides the fair value measueat hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabdlitie

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ARE DISCLOSED NOTE DATE OF VALUATION  GROUP COMPANY  LEVFL 1 LEVEL2 LEVEL3
AMOUNT AMOUNT

Buildings, Land, Mechanical Equipment & technical installations, Floating means 18 31 December 2016 72.839.021 71.499.376 - - y

Investment Property 19 31 December 2016 3.948.906 3.948.906 - - V

Biological assets-non-current 26 31 December 2016 65.870.495 63.760.470 - - V

Biological assets-currrent 26 31 December 2016 114.754.367 108.644.801 - v‘

Restricted cash 31 31 December 2016 4.236.567 4.236.567 v

Cash and cash equivalents 32 31 December 2016 8.754.791 6.993.008 v‘

LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ARE DISCLOSED

Long-termloan borrowings 34 31 December 2016 149.504.830 149.323.781 - y
Short-term loan borrowings 34 31 December 2016 1.627.158 1.491.828 - v‘
Current portion of long-term financial liabilities 34 31 December 2016 16.572.919 16.495.669 - V

The fair value of buildings, land and machinerychtaéical installations and floating means for theo@r and the
Company are measured at fair value Level 3 by iaddpnt valuersThe date of the last revaluation was on December
31, 2015. The management of the Group and Compamsidered the current economic conditions whiclvgitén the
Greek economy and proceeded with the appropriateuating treatment for the accurate representaifothe fair
value of property plant and equipment as at 31062 Note 17). The valuations are carried out loppendent valuers
and are based on market prices with significamistdjents as regards the nature, location and ¢ondif each asset.
Significant and isolated increases/(decreased)dmiarket prices would result in significant incesi{(decreases) in

the fair value.

The fair value of investment property is measureléweel 3 for the Group and Company by independahiers.The
latest revaluation at fair value was performed 1©881a12.2016 based on current market conditiongnificant and

isolated increases/(decreases) in the market prioa result in significant increases/(decreagef)e fair value.

Long-term and short-term debt is measured at |I8vassessed by the Group and Company on the basariotis
parameters such as interest rates, specific cotiskfactors, and current prices prevailing athatbalance sheet date.
AS regards long-term debt, market values are usedldition to the utilisation of technical methadsletermining the
fair value of financial liabilities such as discaiung the future contractual cash flows with the rapiate market
interest rates (Note 13,34).

Biological assets are measured as follows: (i) Lfigd (mature fish) are measured to net market ezakffective

markets for sale of fish of the Mediterranean Seanat exist so the valuation of live fish under 1A% and IFRS 13
implies establishment of an estimated fair valu¢ghefmature fish in a hypothetical market and basethe hierarchy
of fair value level 2. (ii) immature fish which defined as level 2, biomasss is measured at fhievass cost to sell,

including a proportionate expected gross profiiaest.
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If it is assumed that all fish, as at DecemberZ8L6 were are harvest size, a change in the poigag(-) 5% per kilo
weight would alter the valuation by a positive/naga€ 7,6 mil /(€ 7,6) mil and an change in thecdunting rate by
+/(-)1% would (negatively)/positively alter the uation by a minimum of € (0,3) million / € 0,3 nwlh (Note 26).

The valuation reflects the current location andditton of the fish, expected quality grading andesdistribution.
Broodstock is valued at cost less any potentiakinmpent losses. The valuation is assessed forlmagihess unit and is
based on the biomass in the sea for each sea sittdn addition to the estimated market prices/aitang in each

market and as derived from the contracts in pragiéapplicable, as well as on current spot pritéste 26).
45. Events after the reporting period
I. Revocation of the resolution on the decrease share capital of KEGO AGRI SA.

As referred to in Note 22, in the context of theo@®r's loan restructuring and as mentioned in thacise
Memorandum of Understanding dated 24.3.3015 betwezparent company and the banks and in accordeitit¢he
resolutions of the Extraordinary General Assembfytiee shareholders and the amendments of the emtiof
association as have been recorded in the Genezetr&hic Commercial Registry on 17.05.2016, thaesltapital of
the subsidiary company KEGO AGRI S.A was approvete decreased by an amount of € 1.313.920. Theaker
has been made with a cash redemption of sharethemehh a reduction in the par value of sharesrbgraount of €
0,64 each, with an ultimate net-off of the lialyilitowards the parent company. The above reductamn ot been
materialized up until the issuance of the finanstatements.

Following the above, a revocation of the sharetahpeduction and restoration of the respectivielarbf the Articles of
Association was resolved according to the resaistiof the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of KEGGRI, dated
15.2.2017.

II. Proposed Increase of the Share Capital of the Gaian subsidiary NIREUS GMBH

The Board of Directors unanimously resolved to apprthe proposal on the issue of the capitalizatiihe receivable

of NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA and an increase in its@stment in its subsidiary company NIREUS GMBH, wahic
subsidiary will proceed with an increase in itsreheapital of an amount of € 3.900.000 and a spb=d settlement of

its liabilities towards its parent company.

There were no other events following the year eriedecember 2016 which relate to the Group ohéodompany
and which will require reference to in accordandthwhe International Financial Reporting Standaadshave been
endorsed by the European Union (EE).

Koropi, March 28, 2017

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOD CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER GROUP CHI  EF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING
OFFICER MANAGER
BELLES ST. ARISTEIDIS ANTONIOS G. CHACHLAKIS EFSTRATS G. ELISSAIOS KONSTANTOPOULOS G. IOANNIS
1.D No: AB 347823 1.D. No: AE 083337 1.D. No: AB 5929 1.D. No: AB 264939
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INFORMATION (WITH REFERENCE) OF ARTICLE 10 OF L.
3401/2005

During the year and until the present date, Nirkgsaculture SA, made available to the public, inaxdance with the

applicable legislation, the following informatiorhigh is posted on the company’s web site at wweusrcom as well

as on the web site of the Athens Stock Exchangevat.athex.gr.

DATE ANNOUNCEMENT WEB SITE
Resolutions of Shareholders General Meeting

4.4.2016 Proxy Form for the General Meeting of the Bondholders of 11.04.2016 |www.nireus.com
Invitation to Company's Bondholders to General Meeting of the

4.4.2016 Bondholders on 11.04.2016 WWW.nireus.com
Notice of Resolutions of the General Meeting of the Bondholders of 11

12.4.2016 April 2016 WWW. nireus.com

7.6.2016 Draft decisions for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on 30.06.2016 |www.nireus.com
Proxy Form for the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of

7.6.2016 30.06.2016 WwWw.nireus.com

7.6.2016 Invitation to Annual Meeting of Shareholders of 30.06.2016 WWW. nireus.com
Annotation of Financial Statements

31.3.2016 12M 2015 Financial Results Www.nireus.com

31.5.2016 FINANCIAL RESULTS 3M 2016 WwWw.nireus.com

30.9.2016 FINANCIAL RESULTS ON 6M 2016 WwWw.nireus.com

30.11.2016 FINANCIAL RESULTS ON 9M 2016
Other announcements and Press Releases

18.1.2016 Refinancing of SEAFARM IONIAN’ Loans WWW.hireus.com

12.02.2016 Lift of the Supenision on the shares of NIREUS AQUACULTURE SA  |www.nireus.com
ANNOUNCEMENT :INVITATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

16.02.2016 ABSORBED SEAFARM IONIAN S.A WWW.hireus.com
ANNOUNCEMENT FOR THE TOTAL NUMBER OF VOTING RIGHTS

24.3.2016 AND THE AMOUNT OF SHARE CAPITAL WwWw.nireus.com
Listing of the new shares of NIREUS SA resulting from the conversion

13.5.2016 of the Company’s convertible bond WWW.hireus.com

17.5.2016 NUMBER OF BONDS OF CONVERTIBLE BOND LOAN WWW.hireus.com

23.5.2016 Announcement for the Total Amount of Share Capital — Law 3556/2007 |www.nireus.com
Resolutions of the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

30.6.2016 of 30 June 2016 WWW.nireus.com

2.8.2016 Notice of Intention Sale of Fractional Shares WWW.nireus.com

22.9.2016 Notice of Intention Sale of Fractional Shares WwWw.nireus.com

22.9.2016 Invitation for the conversion of the Company’s conwertible bonds WWW. nireus.com

14.10.2016 Notice of Intention Sale of Fractional Shares WwWw.nireus.com
Listing of the new shares of NIREUS SA resulting from the conversion

15.11.2016 of the Company’s convertible bonds. WWW.hireus.com

17.11.2016 NUMBER OF BONDS OF CONVERTIBLE BOND LOAN WWW.hireus.com

18.11.2016 Announcement for the Total Amount of Share Capital — Law 3556/2007 |www.nireus.com
ANNOUNCEMENT :INVITATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

25.11.2016 ABSORBED SEAFARM IONIAN S.A WWW.hireus.com
Announcement of transactions

14.6.2016 Announcement of regulated information according to Law 3556/2007 WWW.hireus.com

29.6.2016 Notification for important changes on woting rights — Law 3556/2007 WWW.hireus.com




